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AT A GLANCE
LPKF LASER & ELECTRONICS AG

in EUR million 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

EBIT −6.8 4.0 6.8 19.2 7.5

EBIT-Marge (in %) −7.4 3.9 5.7 13.7 7.8

Consolidated net profit after 
non-controlling interest −8.8 1.2 8.0 13.1 5.3

Diluted EPS (in EUR) −0.40 0.05 0.33 0.54 0.22

Dividend per share* (in EUR) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.10 0.10

ROCE (in %) −6.9 4.1 7.0 25.5 9.0

Equity ratio (in %) 46.5 46.5 60.4 71.0 76.4

Investment in property, 
plant and equipment and intangible net assets 7.5 6.8 5.7 5.8 10.2

Free cash flow −1.8 3.3 5.8 42.2 −5.5

Orders on hand 27.8 38.8 58.4 32.3 38.3

Incoming orders 105.7 113.2 139.8 114.0 102.2

Employees** (Number) 700 683 655 682 689

* 2020: Annual General Meeting recommendation
** not including trainees and marginal employees

in EUR million 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Revenue 91.1 102.1 120.0 140.0 96.2

Revenue by region

Germany 12.9 10.4 12.8 9.7 8.6

Rest of Europe 16.5 20.5 31.9 29.2 12.2

North America 17.7 23.0 24.7 37.5 19.0

Asia 42.3 45.7 49.1 60.8 55.5

Other 1.7 2.5 1.5 2.8 0.9

Revenue by segment

Development 22.6 24.4 24.3 24.5 22.5

Electronics 30.6 31.7 34.6 43.7 31.7

Welding 24.0 25.4 22.2 27.7 17.7

Solar 13.9 20.6 38.9 44.1 24.3

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL KEY FIGURES AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020
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COVER PICTURE
Our cover picture shows the inner workings 
of an LPKF Allegro system for structuring thin-
film solar modules. Our solar systems make 
a valuable contribution to climate protection 
by increasing the efficiency of solar energy.
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COMPANY PROFILE
THE LPKF GROUP

LPKF is a leading supplier of laser-based solutions for the technology industry. Our 
laser systems are vital in the manufacture of printed circuit boards, microchips, au-
tomotive parts, solar panels and many other components. The LPKF Glass Foundry 
additionally supplies customers from various industries with high-precision glass 
components.

Our machines allow our customers to manufacture smaller and higher-precision com-
ponents. At the same time, the functionality of the components can be increased and 
new design options used. This creates products at the cutting edge of technology, 
both for the industry and for consumers.

Energy-efficient and intelligent solutions from LPKF make an active contribution to 
climate and environmental protection. We help our customers become more resource 
efficient, reduce hazardous materials and waste, and save energy.

Our employees are laser technology experts and know how to integrate lasers as a 
tool into powerful machines. This gives us considerable influence over progress in a 
range of high-tech sectors. The result is more powerful, smaller and more energy 
efficient products along with improvements in mobility, connectivity, electricity gen-
eration and digital entertainment.

LPKF has 45 years of experience as a technology and innovation leader and will 
continue to maximize the full potential of laser technology in the digital world.

LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is headquartered in Garbsen near Hanover, Germany. 
We have a broad presence, with locations in Europe, Asia and North America and a 
total of 689 employees. Our global service network ensures our machines are ready 
for our customers around the clock.

The shares of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG are listed in the SDAX and the TecDAX of 
the German Stock Exchange.

Solutions for mass producing
assembled and non-assembled
printed circuit boards.

ELECTRONICS

Solutions for PCB prototyping
and micromaterial processing.

DEVELOPMENT

Solutions for thin-film
photovoltaic module production
and digital printing of ceramic
inks via Laser Transfer Printing.

SOLAR

Solutions for welding plastics in
mass production.

WELDING

Revenue

EBIT

REVENUE AND EBIT
in EUR million
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LPKF WORLDWIDE
LOCATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

REVENUES BY REGION REVENUES BY SEGMENTS

LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is headquartered in Garbsen near 
Hannover, Germany. We are represented in more than 60 countries, 

have 10 branches in Europe, Asia and North America and with a 
total of 689 employees we are broadly positioned worldwide.

USA
Portland
Sales and
Service

Germany
Garbsen
(Headquarter)
Suhl
Fuerth
Production,
Sales and
Service

Slovenia
Naklo
Production,
Development
and Service

China
Shanghai
Shenzhen
Suzhou
Tianjin
Sales and
Service

South Korea
Seoul
Sales and
Service

Japan
Tokyo
Sales and
Service

Locations

Representations

57.7%
Asia

0.9%
Other

19.8%
North America

9.0%
Germany

12.6%
Europe (without

Germany)

25.3%
Solar32.9%

Electronics

23.4%
Development

18.4%
Welding
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LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Today, we are reporting to you the development and 
financial results of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG during 
the 2020 financial year. It has now been over a year 
since the beginning of the pandemic, and the world 
today – in the fourth week of March 2021 – remains in 
the midst of the unprecedented crisis caused by it. This 
has impacted our business throughout 2020, and it 
continues to affect the outlook for our company at least 
through the end of the current year. At the same time, 
it does not impact our growth plan and perspective.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON LPKF
Before discussing the development of our business in 
2020, we want to share with you how the people of LPKF 
have addressed and been affected by the situation all 
around us.

First of all, we are extremely grateful that there have not 
been any fatalities related to COVID-19 among our 
employees or their family members anywhere in the 
world. Furthermore, no one has been infected at any of 
our locations since the beginning of the pandemic. Finally, 
our business operations –  including production at all 
locations – have continued without restrictions or inter-
ruptions throughout this time and continue to do so today.

This does not mean the past year has been without diffi-
culty  –  on the contrary: addressing the COVID-19 
pandemic’s impact has been one of our main priorities 
for over a year now and at the same time, the economic 
impact on LPKF has been substantial, including delayed 
orders and deliveries especially from our large customers, 
leading to a substantial drop in revenue for 2020.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM, 

LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Dr. Goetz M. 
Bendele  

CEO

OUR COLLEAGUES HAVE 
GONE ABOVE AND 
BEYOND IN THEIR 
DEDICATION TO  
OUR CUSTOMERS’ 
MISSIONS THIS YEAR. 

Dr. Goetz M. Bendele (CEO)
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Since the beginning of the pandemic, the way we work 
together and with our customers and partners has 
changed profoundly. Our teams are largely working from 
home, our locations are divided into sections with 
limited or no physical interaction, various protective 
measures continue to be in place. We have eliminated 
most incoming and outgoing travel, while at the same 
time continuing to serve our customers as well as pos-
sible. The degree to which the way we work has changed 
can hardly be overstated: beyond across-the-board 
online collaboration, we have been able to service and, 
in some cases, even install our systems remotely, i.e., 
without travel of our technical experts to the customer, 
e.g., involving use of live video feeds. In other cases, 
where travel was unavoidable, our colleagues have ac-
cepted to quarantine in several locations – often both 
after departure and after arrival back home – in order 
to serve our customers. LPKF colleagues have gone 
above and beyond in their dedication to our and our 
customers’ missions this year, and for this we give our 
heartfelt gratitude to each and every one of them.

As the pandemic appears to enter its next phase, with 
global vaccination efforts underway, LPKF is in good 
shape, both operationally and financially. Against the 
difficulties we have faced, we have become a stronger 
and better-performing company – in how we serve our 
customers, how we develop, manufacture, deliver and 
install our systems, how we work together. This will con-
tinue to help us grow and succeed going forward.

DEVELOPMENT OF OUR BUSINESS IN 2020
In the financial year 2020, we have once again accom-
plished one of our main goals – for LPKF as a technology 
company to return to and maintain to sustainable 
profitability and create value for our shareholders. We 
are especially happy that we were able to do so even 
against the significant revenue drop triggered by the 
COVID-19 pandemic – i.e., showing in practice that over 
the past 2-3 years, we have succeeded in meaningfully 
increasing the company’s financial performance and 
reducing its fixed cost base with the strategic decisions 
and operational improvements made in the recent past.

On the other hand, we have not been able to generate 
growth this year, the other of our main goals. While 
caused in no small part by the pandemic, we need to 
address and change this for 2021 and following years 
and we believe that we are well on track to do so. The 

various cost measures, including short time work, which 
we have leveraged in 2020 were implemented in such 
a way to ensure that our development and commercia
lization of new technologies does not slow down.

Company profit (EBIT) is down by more than half com-
pared to the prior year, but still above the company’s 
cost of capital; net working capital is slightly up but still 
well below historical levels. We have generated profit in 
three of our four segments, with only Welding – affected 
by the automotive sector weakness in addition to the 
pandemic – experiencing a loss in 2020. LPKF remains 
(net) debt-free and with a substantial net cash reserve 
on hand.

In summary, and in spite of the impact of the pandemic, 
we were able to deliver a decent financial result, 
continue our planned investments into new technologies 
without cuts or delays, and keep the company well-
positioned for its future growth path.

These are the significant outcomes in the past financial 
year:

Revenue has dropped by 31.3% to EUR 96.2 million. With 
that, earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) have 
declined to EUR 7.5 million with an EBIT margin of 7.8% 
after 13.7% in 2019. Even in this challenging year, LPKF 
has proven that it is fundamentally and sustainably profi
table, and capable of delivering a return on capital which 
has created value. At the same time, we continue to 
develop our global position as a leading technology com-
pany in a wide range of applications.

With revenue for the year at EUR 96.2 million, we have 
reached the lower end of our forecast. At EUR 102.2 million 
in 2020, our order intake is down 10.3% on the previous 
year, while orders on hand as of December 31, 2020 are 
at EUR 38.3 million, 6 million (18.3%) above the prior-year 
figure of EUR 32.3 million. The significant revenue drop 
compared to 2019 is driven to an overwhelming degree 
by large projects with our two of our biggest customers 
that were paused or postponed past the end of 2020. 
Both customers have explicitly given the pandemic as the 
reason for these delays. In total, our business without this 
effect has roughly remained flat from 2019 to 2020. 
Corresponding to that, the revenue share of our two 
largest customers has decreased from more than 50% in 
2019 to under 30% in 2020.
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LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Our revenue drop had a negative impact on earnings, 
but we have taken a number of cost reduction measures 
to limit this, and it was less than the magnitude of the 
drop would suggest: At 7.8%, our EBIT margin was still 
more than half of what it was in 2019 when LPKF 
recorded record revenue. It was also higher than our 
2018 margin, even as revenue then was 25% higher than 
in 2020. Return on capital employed (ROCE) was also 
down significantly at 9.0% from 25.5% in 2019. Never-
theless, the company has earned its cost of capital and 
created value for its shareholders in 2020.

On the balance sheet side, we have continued to focus 
on improving capital employed and reducing net working 
capital. Improved logistics, receivables management 
and trade payables have helped to improve our net work-
ing capital. However, the pandemic had a noticeable 
effect on our working capital and cash flow development 
in 2020. Down payments for Q4 orders in the Solar 
segment were not received until the beginning of 2021. 
Accordingly, advance payments decreased by more than 
EUR 5 million compared with the prior year figure and 
net working capital rose from EUR 17.1 million to EUR 
20.5 million. We expect these effects to be temporary 
and remain committed and confident to reduce working 
capital to less than 10% of revenue.

LPKF remains in a position to generate additional oper-
ating cash flow from growth, while not having earnings 
consumed by additional capital requirements. Overall, 
our operating cash flow remained positive in 2020, at 
EUR 4.0 million. At the same time, we have been able 
to invest in our future technologies independent of the 
pandemic. With those investments, total free cash flow 
for LPKF was EUR −5.5 million in 2020. LPKF continues 
to have net cash reserves of EUR 15.2 million at the end 
of 2020.

We have shown in 2020 that we have continued to 
improve the overall performance of the company, in-
creased our efficiency and reduced our fixed cost base 
leading to a reasonable overall profitability even during 
the pandemic. From a performance perspective, this is 
a significant milestone. Nevertheless, we have not yet 
reached our ultimate goals, especially regarding growth. 
Much remains to be done for 2021 and subsequent 
years – especially once the pandemic recedes. LPKF is 
well prepared for this and we have continued to invest 
in our growth areas. Today, LPKF is a profitable 

company which has sufficient financial resources to 
invest in research & development and in the commer-
cialization of future technologies, even during a serious 
economic crisis and regardless of the impact of outside 
events. We are very pleased by that.

DEVELOPMENT OF OUR SEGMENTS
The largest contribution to 2020 revenue came from the 
Electronics segment, even as revenue declined by 27% 
to EUR 31.7 million after EUR 43.7 million in 2019. Nev-
ertheless, the Electronics segment has remained prof-
itable with EUR 3.4 million in earnings (EBIT). More than 
100% of the revenue drop is from the delay of large or-
ders from one customer, with the pandemic given as the 
reason for these delays. Notably, this is not driven by 
any projects lost to competitors. Revenue in the 
Electronics segment from all other customers has actu-
ally increased by 11.8%, reflecting the positive impact 
of product and sales initiatives which were started ear-
lier on and which are now showing positive business 
impact. Our LIDE technology for microprocessing 
ultra-thin glass, one of the company’s main future growth 
drivers, has made a meaningful yet still modest revenue 
contribution. Among other things, we have delivered the 
first Vitrion system to a major display industry customer. 
Customer orders for engineering samples in our foundry 
manufacturing services business have also continued to 
grow. Our clean room factory at the company's headquar-
ters in Garbsen was opened and started production in 
December. It enables easy access to our technology for 
a broad set of customers across industries, who now can 
order structured thin glass components from LPKF for 
their high-volume applications, and this drives our cus-
tomers’ competitive advantage.

Following a very strong year 2019, revenue in the Solar 
segment has declined by 45% to EUR 24.3 million after 
EUR 44.1 million in 2019. Nevertheless, the Solar seg-
ment has also remained profitable with EUR 4.0 million 
in EBIT, reflecting the early and decisive deployment of 
cost reduction measures. The Solar segment typically 
has the longest visibility of our businesses, and prior to 
the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, we were expecting 
a much stronger revenue level for 2020. Once the pan-
demic hit our customers, key orders were post-
poned – e.g. due to interruptions in construction of 
factories we deliver systems into – until after the end of 
2020. In line with this, we have received one of our 
largest Solar orders in late 2020, with delivery expected 
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Christian Witt 
CFO

in 2021 and into 2022. This order also includes our first 
large order for modules with CIGS technology. Against 
the revenue drop of 2020, we are very pleased by this 
accomplishment of our Solar team.

Revenue in the Welding segment has declined by 36% 
to EUR 17.7 million, and the segment has experienced 
a loss of EUR 2.8 million in 2020. In addition to the 
pandemic impact via delayed orders from the same cus-
tomer as in Electronics segment, the segment has been 
affected by the ongoing weakness in the automotive 
industry.

While we believe that the Welding segment has become 
more effective in delivering customer value and in oper-
ating performance, the effect of this ongoing effort did 

not translate into better financial results in 2020. The 
beginning of the 2021 financial year has been stronger, 
with both revenue and order entry much higher than at 
the beginning of 2020. Going forward, we continue to 
expect growth in this area from technologically differen-
tiated new solutions that create competitive advantage 
for our customers, and we see a good basis for sustained 
success in this segment for 2021 and subsequent years.

The Development segment is characterized by a 
continuous and profitable development of its business 
over many years. At EUR 22.5 million, revenue in the 
financial year 2020 was 8% lower than the prior year 
figure. EBIT was at EUR 2.9 million, on par with the 2019 
figure. Given that lead times in the Development 
segment are the lowest among our segments and the 

LPKF IS PROFITABLE 
IN SPITE OF THE ECO-
NOMIC CRISIS AND  
HAS INCREASED ITS 
INVESTMENT IN 
RESEARCH, DEVELOP-
MENT AND THE COM-
MERCIALIZATION OF 
FUTURE TECHNOLO-
GIES IN 2020.  Christian Witt (CFO)
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fact that Development segment in the past has closely 
tracked macroeconomic developments, this illustrates 
the robustness and resilience of our business in this 
segment. In 2021, we expect to once again participate 
strongly in the growing number of prototypes produced 
worldwide.

OUR PEOPLE AND OUR SHAREHOLDERS
For LPKF’s success to be sustainable, it is important 
that we encourage our people to deliver a distinctive 
performance year after year and that they have the 
opportunity to participate in the success of the company.

We maintain targets for business units, sales companies 
and corporate functions which are value-oriented but at 
the same time tangible and easily comprehensible, and 
we maintain a high level of transparency throughout the 
company. This allows our colleagues to check their 
operational progress at any time and act when needed. 
This transparency will continue to be an important 
element in improving our performance going forward.

At the same time, we need to be able to maintain our 
colleagues’ passion for LPKF and bring their enthusiasm 
into their work. This is a question of mindset, way of 
working together, and appreciation experienced at work. 
Despite the challenges of 2020, LPKF has made a 
profit-sharing payment to our non-managerial staff. 
While this was significantly less than the record amount 
we paid in 2019, the fact that we were able to pay any-
thing at all during this year stands out among our peers. 
We have expanded the employee share purchase 
program we had started in 2019, which promotes the 
purchase of LPKF shares by our employees and their 
participation in the long-term success of LPKF.

We have said that we want to position LPKF such that 
we are able to invest in technology and pay a dividend. 
We have succeeded in doing so, and the 2020 Annual 
General Meeting resolved that – despite Corona-related 
uncertainties – a dividend of EUR 0.10 per share was 
paid for the first time after four years. Due to the prof-
itable business performance, solid financing and 

positive outlook, the Management Board and Super
visory Board will again propose to the Annual General 
Meeting on 20 May 2021 that a dividend of EUR 0.10 
per share be paid to our shareholders.

In September 2020, we explained the growth perspec-
tive of our individual segments to institutional investors 
and analysts at our second Capital Markets Day, this 
time held virtually. Together with several of our business 
leaders, we shared with investors the sources of our 
growth and our specific strategic plans for the different 
parts of our business.

We are pleased that the positive development of our busi-
ness continues to be reflected in our share price, and that 
after being admitted to the SDAX index in February 2020, 
LPKF was also admitted to the TecDAX index in August 
2020. In 2020, our share price has increased by 76.6% 
(SDAX + 16.8%) following an increase of 185.7% during 
2019 (SDAX + 30.8%).

Our shareholder structure has changed significantly in 
2020. In May, the share package of the Bantleon Group 
was successfully placed. Almost 30% of LPKF shares 
were sold to international institutional investors in a 
private placement. New shareholders resulting from this 
placement are actively engaging with and supporting 
LPKF and its management in pursuing our long term 
goals. We believe that this placement represents a very 
positive outcome for LPKF and for all of our shareholders.
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OUTLOOK
LPKF has made significant progress in 2020. We have 
set ourselves new, ambitious goals for the next several 
years and transparently communicated our targets to 
the financial markets. We will continue to to develop and 
launch new applications in new markets and customer 
segments.

LPKF is and has always been committed to have a pos-
itive impact on environment and society. Our solutions 
enable customers to save resources and, e.g., to pro-
duce green energy more efficiently. LPKF will continue 
to improve the positive impact for our employees, local 
communities and the environment as a basis for long 
term success.

At this point in time – in the fourth week of March 2021 –  
it is still not possible to predict how the next and hopefully 
final phase of the COVID-19 pandemic will play out in 
different geographies in the coming weeks. We believe 
that, as a company, we have responded as well as possible 
across our business. We will continue to do everything we 
can to protect our employees, their families, our business 
partners and the community, to minimize the economic 
impact, and to continue to serve our customers as effec-
tively as possible.

Last year, we have experienced a pronounced drop in 
revenue. At this time, we can clearly see that in 2021 
we will grow our business significantly once again. How-
ever, the timing and speed of the macroeconomic re-
covery expected in our markets is still uncertain, and 
there may be another wave of the pandemic coming to 
some countries before the vaccination programs finally 
drive down infection rates and case numbers. With that, 
our ability to forecast the current financial year 2021 
remains limited.

For subsequent years, the company continues to expect 
sustainable, profitable growth in each business unit. In 
addition, our innovative LIDE technology, whose revenue 
and profit potential we continue to review and assess 
following substantial progress made in several LIDE 

customer projects, will add to this growth. Together with 
the sales and earnings contribution from LIDE, we con-
tinue to expect consolidated revenue of more than EUR 
360 million, and an EBIT margin of over 25%, for 2024, 
with further growth after that.

We are both convinced of this outlook and none of it is 
changed by the fact that one of us – Goetz M. Bendele – will 
leave LPKF at the end of April 2021 when his contract 
ends. LPKF is financially stable, has a broad and growing 
portfolio of exciting technologies, and is on an exciting 
growth path despite the impact of the pandemic. The 
future of LPKF largely depends on its greatest asset: our 
people. Their consistently strong commitment, their 
experience, know-how and creativity are the basis for our 
continued success – in good times and in difficult times 
alike. This differentiates us from our peers. And for this 
we give our heartfelt gratitude to each and every one of 
our colleagues.

We would also like to thank the works councils for their 
constructive cooperation, especially during this difficult 
year, which is extremely important. We would also like 
to thank our Supervisory Board for their support and 
the trust placed in us.

Our special thanks go to you, our shareholders, and we 
hope that you will continue to support LPKF in the future.

Best regards,

Dr. Goetz M. Bendele	 Christian Witt

Garbsen, March 2021
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

This is my first letter to Shareholders following my 
nomination as Chairman of the Supervisory Board of 
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG in December 2020.

2020 turned out to be a very challenging year for the glob-
al economy, all of us, our family and our loved ones. LPKF’s 
business was not immune to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
However, despite the resulting unprecedented circum-
stances, LPKF has proved its capacity to maintain financial 
resilience while continuing to invest in innovation.

The company can be proud of what it has accomplished 
over the past few years, and as the Supervisory Board, 
we are pleased that the strategic changes initiated two 
years ago show visible success to confirm the path taken 
then. The company’s focus remains to deliver on its 
growth strategy, to transfer the developed cutting-edge 
technologies into volume production and to accelerate 
customer diversification.

Despite the economic uncertainty brought by the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the Supervisory Board remains 
confident about the future growth prospects of LPKF. I 
look forward to exciting years ahead.

MONITORING AND COUNSELING
The Supervisory Board critically monitored the company's 
business development during the reporting period and 
performed the duties incumbent upon it according to the 
law and the Articles of Association. The Supervisory 
Board held seven meetings during the year. Due to the 
protective measures against COVID-19, all but two meet-
ings were held via video conferences. These meetings 
were attended by all acting members of the Supervisory 
Board.

In detail, the members of the Supervisory Board attended 
the meetings as follows:

ATTENDANCE OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 
MEMBERS AT THE MEETINGS IN 2020

Name Sessions

Meeting 
atten-
dance in %

Dr. Markus Peters 
(Chairman until 
13 November 2020) 5 5 100

Jean-Michel Richard 
(Chairman from 
01 December 2020) 2 2 100

Dr. Dirk Michael 
Rothweiler 
(Deputy Chairman) 7 7 100

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger 
Overmeyer 7 7 100

Average 
participation rate 100

At the beginning of each Supervisory Board meeting, 
the Supervisory Board meets without the Management 
Board.

The supervisory board regularly monitored the manage-
ment of the Management Board during the financial year 
and advised the Management Board in various areas of 
corporate management. The Management Board in-
formed the Supervisory Board in a timely manner about 
issues of strategy, planning, business development, the 
risk situation, risk management and compliance. The 
Supervisory Board was involved at an early stage in sig-
nificant decisions for the Group, closely monitoring the 
performance of the company through regular business 
updates and discussions with the Management Board. 
The Management Board reports to the Supervisory 
Board in writing on a monthly basis about the earnings 
and liquidity situation, together with an overview of the 
business and risk situation.

The members of the Supervisory Board were able to 
critically examine the submitted documents and draft 
resolutions and make their own suggestions. For this 
purpose, the Supervisory Board had numerous discus-
sions with the Management Board in addition to the 

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT
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official committee meetings. In addition, the Supervisory 
Board regularly exchanged information with the Manage-
ment Board. Measures requiring approval were submitted 
to the members of the Supervisory Board for approval 
in accordance with the Articles of Association and the 
Rules of Procedure. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board 
regularly satisfied itself of the legality, regularity and 
expediency of the Management Board's actions. Where 
necessary, the Supervisory Board was given access to 
the relevant information and business records.

FOCAL POINTS OF COUNSELING
The focal points of the consultations in the past financial 
year were the current business development, the 
challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the sale 
of the shares by Mr. Bantleon, as well as continuing 
LPKF’s investment in the development of innovative 
technologies and solutions. The Management Board 
kept the Supervisory Board well informed about the 
business development and the monitoring of agreed key 
performance metrics, in particular order backlog, incom-
ing orders, working capital, liquidity as well as profitability 
through tight cost control. When appropriate, the Super-
visory Board recommended improvements or further 
measures within the scope of its mandate. Furthermore, 
the Supervisory Board discussed in detail growth options 
as well as the market launch of the developed technolo-
gies and progress on customer diversification.

During this reporting period, a strategy meeting was 
again held with the Management Board and the division 
heads. The Supervisory Board was able to review and 
discuss the corporate strategy in detail. The strategy 
meeting serves as a basis for corporate planning.

Internal audit measures are an integral part of the 
corresponding Supervisory Board meetings. Internal 
auditing at LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is outsourced 
to BDO. The external auditor examines selected areas 
of the company based on a fixed schedule and pre-
determined audit plan. The scope of work includes walk-
throughs to test the efficiency of our controls but also 
training and development for continuous improvements. 
BDO prepares a report which is presented to the Super-
visory Board. Recommendations were discussed in 
detail, reviewed with the Management Board and 
subsequently approved.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND 
DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY
The Supervisory Board continued to focus intensively 
on the implementation of Corporate Governance stan-
dards in 2020. LPKF Laser & Electronics AG's Corporate 
Governance is presented in detail in the Corporate 
Governance report and the declaration on Corporate 
Governance. On 9 February 2021, the Management 
Board and the Supervisory Board issued the annual 
declaration of compliance pursuant to Section 161 of the 
German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), which reports on 
any deviations from the recommendations. The 
declaration of conformity refers to both the version of 
the German Corporate Governance Code (GCGC) of 
7 February 2017 and the new version of 16 December 
2019. The declaration of conformity is also publicly avail-
able on the internet at www.lpkf.com/en/investor-
relations/corporate-governance.

No conflicts of interest arose in the year under review.

The members of the Supervisory Board are responsible 
for completing the training and educational measures 
necessary for performing their roles independently. 
That would include matters such as changes in the 
legal framework or accounting rules, emerging tools 
and technologies, supported by the Management 
Board when appropriate. If necessary, internal infor-
mation events are also offered for targeted further 
training. New members of the Supervisory Board are 
encouraged to meet the members of the Management 
Board or the other members of the Supervisory Board 
outside of formal meetings to gain further insights into 
the company’s strategy and business conditions and 
share views.

SUSTAINABILITY
The issue of sustainability remains an important part of 
the Group's strategy and will be given an even stronger 
focus in the future. The Supervisory Board is constructively 
supporting the activities presented in the sustainability 
report relating to LPKF Laser & Electronics AG's corporate, 
social and ecological responsibility. The LPKF Laser & Elec-
tronics AG sustainability report will be available at https://
www.lpkf.com/en/company/lpkf-group/ sustainability 
by the end of April 2021 at the latest.

https://www.lpkf.com/de/investor-relations/corporate-governance
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In 2021, we will work closely with the Management 
Board to establish a clear sustainability strategy, as I 
am convinced that the success of LPKF depends on 
much more than just financial performance. In today’s 
competitive environment, it is essential that we embrace 
a business model that addresses the environment, the 
needs of our employees and the communities in which 
we operate and builds on solid corporate governance.

The Supervisory Board is also keen to embrace gender 
diversity and will seek to significantly accelerate current 
initiatives.

AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Management Board prepared the annual financial 
statements for the 2020 financial year in accordance 
with the provisions of the German Commercial Code 
(HGB) and the consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of IFRS as adopted by 
the EU and the additional requirements of German com-
mercial law pursuant to § 315e HGB, as well as the 
combined management and group management report.

In accordance with the resolution of the Annual General 
Meeting, the Supervisory Board commissioned KPMG AG 
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft Hannover (KPMG) with 
the audit of the annual and consolidated financial 

statements for 2020 and, in doing so, determined the 
focus of the audit in its meeting on 7 December 2020 
(continued on 10 December 2020). Following the audit 
of the annual financial statements and the consolidated 
financial statements, the auditor issued an unqualified 
audit opinion on the financial statements, including the 
combined management report and Group management 
report. The auditor attended the Supervisory Board 
meeting on 16 March 2021 (continued on 19 March 2021), 
where he reported on the audit of the 2020 annual and 
consolidated financial statements. At this Supervisory 
Board meeting, he explained the net assets, financial po-
sition and results of operations of the company and the 
Group and was available to answer questions from the 
members of the Supervisory Board. In addition, after ex-
amining the early risk detection system, KPMG confirmed 
that the Management Board had taken the measures 
required of it under the German Stock Corporation Act 
(AktG) to identify any risks that might jeopardize the com-
pany's existence.

The documents relating to the annual financial state-
ments of the AG and the consolidated financial state-
ments as well as the reports by KPMG and the Manage-
ment Board's proposal for the appropriation of profits 
were made available to the members of the Supervisory 
Board in good time for inspection and examination. 
There were no circumstances that would give rise to 
fears of bias on the part of the auditor. The auditor 
reported to the Supervisory Board on the other engage-
ment in addition to the audit services as agreed.

The Supervisory Board intensively discussed the financial 
statements including the combined management and 
group management report and the reports of KPMG with 
the auditor and examined the Management Board's sub-
missions taking into account the audit reports. The Super-
visory Board also examined the Management Board's 
proposal for the appropriation of the balance sheet profit.

Based on its own examination, the supervisory board 
came to the conclusion that the reports in particular meet 
the legal requirements of §§ 317, 323 HGB. The Super
visory Board concurred with the results of the audit by the 
auditor and approved the annual financial statements of 
the AG and the consolidated financial statements pre-
pared by the Board of Managing Directors at the meeting 
on 19 March 2021. The annual financial statements of 
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG are thus adopted.

SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT

Jean-Michel 
Richard
Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board 
since December 
2020
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The Supervisory Board concurred with the Management 
Board's proposal for the appropriation of the balance 
sheet profit. Due to the business development in the 
reporting year and the positive outlook for 2022, the 
Management Board and the Supervisory Board will 
propose to the Annual General Meeting on 20 May 2021 
to distribute a dividend of EUR 0.10 per share and to 
carry forward the remaining balance sheet profit of 
EUR 17,755,097.10

REVIEW OF THE REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT 
BOARD ON RELATIONSHIPS WITH AFFILIATED 
COMPANIES
The Management Board submitted to the Supervisory 
Board the report it had prepared on relationships with 
affiliated companies in the 2020 financial year (depen-
dency report). The auditor has audited the dependency 
report and issued the following audit opinion: „Following 
our audit and assessment in accordance with profes-
sional standards, we confirm that

1. the actual information in the report is correct,

2. �in the legal transactions listed in the report, the com-
pany's performance was not unreasonably high.“

The dependency report of the Management Board and 
the auditor's report on this were sent to all members of 
the Supervisory Board in good time. The Supervisory 
Board discussed and reviewed the reports at the meet-
ing on 19 March 2021. The Supervisory Board approved 
the dependency report after its own review and also 
concurred with the result of the auditor's review of the 
report. As a result of its review, the Supervisory Board 
determined that there were no objections to the decla-
ration of the Management Board on relationships with 
affiliated companies.

PERSONNEL
The Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Dr. Markus Pe-
ters, resigned from his office as member and Chairman 
of the Supervisory Board with immediate effect on 13 No-
vember 2020. On 25 November 2020, the Hanover 
Registration Court appointed Jean-Michel Richard as the 
new Supervisory Board member. In its constituent meet-
ing on 1 December 2020, the Supervisory Board elected 
Jean-Michel Richard as Chairman and Dr. Dirk Rothweiler 
as Deputy Chairman. Prof. Dr. Ludger Overmeyer is a 
further member of the Supervisory Board.

THANKS
The Supervisory Board and I wish to pay tribute to the 
LPKF’s management in overcoming what proved to be an 
extremely challenging year while preparing the company 
to achieve its long-term, sustainable and profitable growth 
objectives. We would like to thank the Executive Team and 
all of LPKF’s employees for their continued commitment 
to the business.

CEO Goetz Bendele will leave the company when his 
contract expires on 30 April 2021. We would like to 
thank Mr. Bendele for his commitment and contributions 
to LPKF's successful development in recent years and 
wish him all the best, both personally and professional-
ly. The Supervisory Board has immediately begun the 
search for a successor.

Furthermore, we would like to thank our customers who 
continued to demand our products and solutions even 
in this difficult period. Our thanks extend to the entire 
supply chain.

The interests of the employees were constructively 
represented by the works council, which always paid 
due attention to the overall situation of the company. 
For this, we would like to express our special thanks to 
the members of the works council.

We would also like to thank Dr. Markus Peters who 
stepped down as Chairman of the Supervisory Board 
last November. Under his stewardship, LPKF made sig-
nificant progress in establishing itself as key global 
player in the technology industry.

And finally, we thank you, our shareholders, for your 
continuous support and the trust you have placed in us.

Garbsen, March 2021

For the Supervisory Board

JEAN-MICHEL RICHARD
Chairman
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ELECTRONICS

The Electronics segment encompasses a number 
of our technologies. All machine types in this 
segment relate to cutting, drilling, separating or 
removing material. They are all used for large-scale 
production of elec-
tronic components 
and meet the three 
core requirements of 
the electronics indus-
try: precision, speed 
and flexibility.

LPKF MicroLine laser 
systems cut and drill 
both flexible and more complex PCB materials with the 
highest speed and precision. LPKF CleanCut technology 
enables extremely clean cuts and great freedom of design.

Our StencilLasers cut high-precision stencils for solder 
paste printing. To date, we have secured our position as 
global market leader in this highly specialized area 

30 %
MATERIAL SAVING

Our laser systems 
for cutting allow 
more design 
freedom and 
flexibility, for 
example in 
headphones.

through consistent further development. Innovative vari-
ants of the high-end LPKF StencilLaser G 6080 laser 
system set new standards in two dimensions. Extremely 
small openings allow new applications in stencil cutting 

and micro cutting parts 
can be produced from 
metal sheets up to 4 mil-
limeters thick.

The Electronics seg-
ment also includes LDS 
technology for manufac-
turing three-dimension-
al circuit carriers. This 

allows mechanical and electronic functions to be inte-
grated into injection molded parts. With Active Mold 
Packaging (AMP), we have developed a process based 
on this technology that provides 2.5D packages with an 
electrical circuit on the surface, thus making IC packages 
even more compact and powerful.
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LIDE

LPKF’s many years of experience in laser technology 
and its strong investment in innovation have led to 
the development of a new revolutionary glass 
micro-processing technology: Laser Induced Deep 
Etching (LIDE®). This patented technology makes it 
possible to machine highly precise micro-holes or 
cuts through the entire thickness of the glass or down 
to a specific depth – by use of a single laser pulse.

LIDE not only enables the creation of essentially any type 
of defect-free features in glass with unmatched precision, 
but it also does so with very high throughput and unri-
valed cost-effectiveness. This LPKF technology is truly 
unique, and it can be used for applications in any area 
that does or would benefit from using thin glass.

Glass is arguably one of the most interesting materials 
used in products and processes in various industries due 
to its high chemical inertness, thermal stability, electrical 
resistivity, excellent radio-frequency properties and well-
known optical properties.

While the amazing characteristics of glass are not new, 
its processability issues using traditional technologies 
have – until now – significantly limited its use. Thin glass 
and its machining have often involved complex and 
expensive technologies that typically create micro-cracks 
and internal stresses which are known to result in the 
loss of certain properties, quality, production yield and 
reliability during use.

Thanks to LPKF’s LIDE technology, glass can now be 
regarded as a potential material in essentially any 
industry, from semiconductors to life sciences. Some 
of the applications of LIDE-processed glass include: 
Glass interposers, wafer-level heterogeneous integration 
wafers, glass spacer wafers, display cover glass, foldable 
display backplane glass, microfluidics, high-density 
microwell plates, high-yield glass dicing.

The capabilities of LIDE are offered by LPKF as a foundry 
service under the brand name Vitrion. Vitrion’s commit-
ment is to provide specialized glass machining solutions 
to clients in any industry.

High-precision 
components 

made of glass 
are manufactured 

in the LIDE 
factory.
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WELDING

In the Welding segment, LPKF has been developing 
and producing highly efficient laser systems for 
welding plastics for 20 years. Our laser systems 
produce a reliable and visually appealing weld seam 
that meets the most demanding quality require-
ments without the use of chemicals. The advantages 
of plastic as a material — malleability, low weight, 
stability — can be fully exploited for countless 
applications.

In laser transmission welding, two component parts are 
joined together. One of the components is transparent to 
the laser wavelength used, while the other absorbs the 
laser energy. The locally generated heat is transferred to 
the transparent component by slight mechanical pres-
sure, causing both to melt at the weld seam and creating 
a secure join. Many different plastics with a wide range 
of geometries can be welded together in this way.

Our range of solutions for joining plastic components is 
primarily targeted at automotive suppliers and manufac-
turers of consumer electronics and medical technology. 
Laser welding can be used to replace traditional material 

joining methods such as adhesive bonding. Our customers 
attach great importance to the easy operation of laser 
welding machines. We calibrate the systems to produce 
perfect weld seams quickly and at the touch of a button.

Today, more than 1,200 LPKF systems for laser plastic 
welding are in use across all continents; more than 
3,000 different processes are carried out with our 
systems. Thanks to the automation interfaces, the Inline 
systems can be easily and quickly integrated into 
production lines.

3D
GEOMETRIES

Perfect contour 
welding ensures 
seating comfort 
with this 
component.
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LPKF has been developing laser systems to manu-
facture thin film solar panels for over ten years. The 
active layers on these panels are deposited homo-
geneously and then structured.

Our laser systems etch the coated panels with the highest 
precision and speed. This process step contributes 
significantly to increasing the conversion efficiency and 
thus to the market value of the solar modules produced 
by our customers. In this way, we provide our customers 
with a unique competitive advantage and contribute to 
the production of solar energy without subsidies.

The production of thin film solar panels requires a 
significant degree of technology compared with silicon-
based solar cells. At the same time, it requires fewer raw 
materials and has the best CO2 footprint in the industry. 
Additional advantages of thin film solar panels include 
good low-light performance, a better temperature 
coefficient and a greater insensitivity to the sun’s angle 

SOLAR

of incidence. This results in good market prospects for 
thin film technology — and growth potential for our solar 
business.

Having been a leading supplier of systems for etching 
cadmium telluride (CdTe) thin film solar modules for over 
a decade, in 2020 we received our first order to provide 
equipment for a factory that will produce CIGS (copper 
indium gallium diselenide) solar modules. Both techno
logies have gained acceptance in the manufacture of thin 
film solar modules and are currently the most widely used.

In the Solar segment, we are developing a new techno
logy for printing functional pastes and colors: Laser 
Transfer Printing (LTP). This digital printing process is a 
flexible and efficient alternative to the widely used screen 
printing process. We envisage LTP having applications in 
the automotive industry in particular, as well as in the 
manufacture of printed glass and in other sectors.

Transparent 
Conductive

Oxide (TCO)

Semicon-
ductor

Glass

„Dead“
Zone*

Metal

**approximately 140 μm, smaller than the width of a hair (approximately 50 μm)

With our solar systems,  
we help to increase the 
efficiency of solar modules 
and improve the economic 
benefits of renewable 
energies.
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DEVELOPMENT

Electronics developers in companies or in research 
institutions need at least one printed circuit board 
for every prototype. Forty-five years ago, there was 
only one way to obtain a PCB prototype. This 
involved giving the layout to a professional PCB 
manufacturer and in return receiving a prototype 
including an invoice after a few days. Every time the 
layout was changed, the process started all over 
again. This cost time and money, and meant that 
strictly confidential data had to be taken off-site, a 
risk that should not be underestimated when it 
comes to developing innovations.

Forty-five years ago, LPKF developed an alternative that 
revolutionized the production of PCB prototypes. With 
the LeiterPlattenKopierFräse (PCB copy milling cutter), 
developers could produce circuit boards in their own 
laboratories faster, cheaper, and without the use of 
chemicals.

The current generation of ProtoMats and ProtoLasers 
operates automatically and with high precision. 

Different laser technologies enable prototypes to be 
made out of standard materials from the electronics 
segment using a space-saving desktop device. Labora-
tory systems with ultra short pulse laser technology are 
used for special applications on high-frequency or 
biocompatible materials.

The Development segment caters to a global market 
with many individual customers. Our customers include 
the R&D departments of industrial companies, univer-
sities, research institutes, schools, electronic design 
houses and government institutions.

In the 2020 financial year, we developed a completely 
new analytical instrument for medical applications 
based on our ProtoMats. Our ARRALYZE systems enable 
high-precision analysis of biological materials in the 
nanoliter range. The systems work with glass arrays 
produced using LIDE technology. There is potential here 
to gain new customers in the life science sector.

Our ProtoMats 
enable the rapid 
production of 
PCB prototypes 
in our own 
research 
laboratory.
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AFTER SALES AND SERVICE

Our customers manufacture products in over 70 countries 
and can rely on our competent service network worldwide. 
Highly qualified LPKF service technicians provide on-
demand support on site, over the telephone, by e-mail or 
remotely 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Thanks to 
our regional service centers and warehouses, we can 
promptly supply our customers with original spare parts 
and install them, thus guaranteeing the constant avail-
ability of machinery.

70
COUNTRIES

Basic 
Service

THE ENTRY LEVEL

• �Fast response time for 
minimizing downtime of 
your machine

• �Qualified support via e-mail 
and phone

• �Remote support 
free of charge

Classic 
Service

THE NEXT STEP

• �Probability of failure 
decreases significantly

• �Preventive maintenance 
secures your investment

• �Easy planning with 
scheduled maintenance

• �Basic package included

Premium 
Service

THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PACKAGE
• �Full service and complete 

cost control
• �Highest uptime of your 

machine
• �Warranty up to 10 years 

possible
• �Basic and Classic package 

included 

Our service 
technicians are 

available to 
answer 

questions 
around the 

clock. The various 
service packages 

offer our
customers exactly 
the level of service 

they need.
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LPKF IS ADMITTED TO  
SDAX AND TecDAX

THE 2020 STOCK MARKET YEAR
For investors who remained loyal to the stock markets, 
2020 was not a lost year, contrary to all expectations. 
Despite the pandemic, the DAX rose by 3.6% and reached 
an all-time high of 13,903.11 points on 29 December. 
LPKF is now looking back on a successful 2020 stock 
market year. LPKF shares were included in no less than 
two indices of the German Stock Exchange thanks to the 
positive development in trading volume and market cap-
italization. In February, LPKF was admitted to the SDAX, 
followed by its promotion to the TecDAX technology index 
in August.

REVIEW OF THE 2020 STOCK MARKET YEAR
COVID-19 dominated the 2020 stock market year. The 
stock markets were largely unaffected by issues such 
as Brexit, the US presidential elections or the Wirecard 
scandal.

At the beginning of the year, the DAX celebrated a record 
high of 13,795.24 points. One month later, on 19 March, 
it became clear that a fundamental global economic 
crisis had broken out due to the coronavirus. As a result, 
the DAX fell by up to 40.15%, followed by a surprisingly 
quick and strong recovery. Overall, the DAX closed the 
year with a gain of 3.55%.

The MSCI World Index ended the 2020 stock market 
year up 14.06%. This was only surpassed by the SDAX, 

which closed at 14,674.89 points with a plus of 18.01%. 
The MDAX reached 30,796.26 points at the end of the 
year, up 8.77%. The DAX and TecDAX also ended the 
2020 stock market year with increases of 3.55% and 
6.56% respectively.

LPKF SHARES INCREASED BY 77% IN 2020
In the spring, LPKF shares were unable to escape the 
sharp drop in prices on the trading platforms. The share 
price was EUR 15.60 at the beginning of the year, before 
reaching a low of EUR 10.20 on 19 March. LPKF shares 
peaked at EUR 30.85 on 29 December. They closed the 
year at EUR 29.45, up 76.62% on the start of the year.

The share price performance also reflected the demand 
for LPKF shares. The average trading volume on Xetra 
was EUR 4.17 million per day, an increase of 710.5% 
year-on-year and even 2,903% compared with 2018. The 
high liquidity of the share compared with its market 
capitalization has made LPKF significantly more attrac-
tive to institutional investors.

CHANGES IN THE SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
The subscribed capital of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is 
EUR 24,496,546.00. The corresponding number of ordi-
nary shares were approved for the regulated market of the 
Frankfurt am Main Stock Exchange (Prime Standard).
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Since 27 May 2020, 100% of LPKF shares have been in 
free float as defined by Deutsche Börse AG.

SUCCESSFUL PLACEMENT OF THE BANTLEON 
SHARE PACKAGE
The share package (28.95% of the shares) of the Bantleon 
Group was successfully placed on 27 May. Approximately 
seven million shares were sold by Hauck & Aufhäuser as 
Sole Global Coordinator and Sole Bookrunner in a private 

placement to international institutional investors. The 
placement was significantly oversubscribed and was 
closed after only two hours. The placement attracted a 
number of new shareholders for LPKF. These include 
SMALLCAP World Fund Inc. from the USA and SPSW Cap-
ital GmbH through its funds at Universal Investment Ge-
sellschaft mbH from Germany, which are still among the 
company’s largest investors today.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND DIVIDENDS
Due to the unusual circumstances of the COVID 19 pan-
demic, the Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2020 was 
conducted as a virtual Annual General Meeting without 
the physical presence of shareholders or their proxies. 
A password-protected Internet service was available for 
shareholders to exercise their voting rights.

The shareholders listened to the report given by the Chair-
man of the Management Board, Dr. Goetz Bendele and 
CFO Christian Witt via livestream. A total of 30.37% of 
the company’s share capital was represented by proxy 
and postal votes (prior year: 53.72%). All of the manage-
ment recommendations were approved by the share-
holders with an overwhelming majority. Detailed voting 
results can be viewed on our IR website.

In general, the company is planning to propose to the 
Annual General Meeting that 30% to 50% of the free cash 
flow be distributed as a dividend. The current corporate 
situation, economic developments and potential invest-
ments, acquisitions or disposal of assets could all lead 
to a deviation from this policy.

LPKF did not generate a positive free cash flow in the 
2020 financial year as a result of the difficult economic 
conditions imposed by the pandemic. Due to the overall 
profitable business performance, the solid financing and 
the positive outlook, the Management Board and the 
Supervisory Board will nevertheless propose to the 
Annual General Meeting on 20 May 2021 to distribute 
a dividend of EUR 0.10 per share and to carry forward 
the remaining retained profit of EUR 17,755,097.10 to 
new account. In the previous year, with strong free cash 
flow, despite the uncertainties surrounding the corona-
virus, LPKF also paid a dividend of EUR 0.10 per share 
to shareholders.

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES
The goal of our investor relations work is to achieve an 
appropriate valuation of LPKF shares on the capital 
market. In addition, we aim to sustainably strengthen 
shareholder confidence through transparent communi-
cation and to continually improve the tradability of the 
share through high liquidity.

We achieve this through ongoing, open dialog with all 
capital market participants. With regard to professional 
market participants, the focus is on fund managers and 
analysts of investment funds as well as banks / brokers 
and their sales and research teams. In addition, we 
maintain contact with our private shareholders, who also 
include our employees.

To keep our target groups comprehensively informed, we 
use financial reports, analysts’ meetings, roadshows, 
conferences and our Capital Markets Day. Our IR website, 
where we provide all target groups with the same infor-
mation at the same time, is particularly important in this 
respect. In the past financial year, we pushed ahead 
strongly with digital communications and thus reached 
even more international dialog partners. These activities 
are rounded off by active press relations. LPKF offers the 
financial and business press individual interviews with the 
Management Board on the publication of quarterly figures 
to provide shareholders with an independent, comprehen-
sive picture.

In 2020, Dr. Goetz Bendele, CEO, and Christian Witt, 
CFO, spoke with institutional investors and analysts at 
a total of 21 investor conferences, gave presentations 
at two analyst and investor conferences, and held a to-
tal of 300 investor meetings. As a result, the average 
trading volume of LPKF shares on Xetra increased al-
most fivefold from 44,394 in the previous year to 
203,068 in 2020.

LPKF AG’s second Capital Markets Day was held as a 
virtual event on 17 September. Around 100 institutional 
investors and analysts accepted the invitation to hear 
about the Management Board’s ambitious growth and 
return targets. In a series of specialist presentations, the 
company’s business unit managers reported on the latest 
trends in the various markets and the innovations that 
LPKF is developing for its customers. The presentations 
were rounded off by videos in which LPKF employees 
presented the technologies used at the production sites.

https://www.lpkf.com/en/investor-relations/annual-general-meeting
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In the future, we want to inform our shareholders more 
comprehensively about our activities in the area of 
sustainability. As a technology company, LPKF can and 
will make valuable and future-oriented contributions 
here and report on them.

LPKF shares are covered and rated by the following 
institutions:

•	 Hauck & Aufhäuser
•	 Warburg Research
•	 Stifel Europe Bank AG
•	 HSBC
•	 Quirin Privatbank
•	 EQUI.TS

LPKF KEY SHARE FIGURES

2020 2019 2018

Number of shares on 31.12. 24,496,546 24,496,546 24,496,546

Highest price (XETRA) 30.85 EUR 18.30 EUR 10.48 EUR

Lowest price (XETRA) 10.20 EUR 5.34 EUR 5.10 EUR

Closing price at year end (XETRA) 29.45 EUR 15.80 EUR 5.52 EUR

Market capitalization at year end 721.42 Mio. EUR 387.05 Mio. EUR 135.24 Mio. EUR

Share turnover in shares per day (average) 203,068 EUR 44,394 EUR 17,344 EUR

Earnings per share, diluted 0.22 EUR 0.54 EUR 0.33 EUR

Dividend per share* 0.10 EUR 0.10 EUR 0.00 EUR

*	 2020: Annual General Meeting recommendation

LPKF SHARES KEY DATA

ISIN DE0006450000

Ticker symbol LPK

Trading segment SDAX since 18 February 2020

Market places
Frankfurt, Berlin, Bremen, Düsseldorf, Hamburg, Hanover,

Munich, Stuttgart

Trading advisor Oddo Seydler Bank AG

Underwriting syndicate
Bankgesellschaft Berlin AG, Commerzbank AG,

DG Bank AG (currently DZ Bank AG), M.M. Warburg & Co. KGaA

First trading day (new market) 30 November 1998

Face value EUR 1

LPKF WILL BE HAPPY TO ASSIST YOU PERSONALLY

Bettina Schäfer 
Head of Investor Relations
+49 5131 7095-1382
bettina.schaefer@lpkf.com

Katja Rust 
Manager Investor Relations
+49 5131 7095-1387
katja.rust@lpkf.com

THE LPKF SHARE
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The principles of responsible and good corporate 
governance guide the actions of the LPKF Group's man-
agement and supervisory bodies. The statements apply 
to LPKF AG and its Group companies unless otherwise 
stated below. The chapter contains the corporate gov-
ernance statement pursuant to Sections §§ 289f, 315d 
HGB. The corporate governance statement for the com-
pany and the Group is part of the combined management 
and Group management report. The Management Board 
and the Supervisory Board also report on corporate 
governance at LPKF in this chapter. The remuneration 
report can be found in the combined management and 
group management report in this Annual Report.

DECLARATION ON CORPORATE 
MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY OF LPKF 
LASER & ELECTRONICS AG IN THE 2021 FINANCIAL 
YEAR WITH THE GERMAN CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE CODE PURSUANT TO SECTION 161 
OF THE GERMAN STOCK CORPORATION ACT (AKTG)
The Management Board and the Supervisory Board de-
clare that since the most recent declaration of compli-
ance, LPKF Laser & Electronics AG has complied with the 
recommendations of the German Corporate Governance 
Code in the version dated 7 February 2017 with the fol-
lowing exception:

•	�No stipulation of a severance payment cap when con-
cluding Management Board contracts in the event of 
premature termination of Management Board activi-
ties (Code section 4.2.3, paragraph 4 and 5)

The Management Board contracts do not contain a 
severance payment cap due to their maximum term of 
three years. In the event of premature termination of 
the Management Board contract without good cause, 
no more than the remaining term of the contract will be 
paid. Therefore, the Supervisory Board did not see the 
need to agree on a severance payment cap of two years' 
compensation when the contracts were concluded.

The Management Board and the Supervisory Board 
further declare that LPKF currently complies or will 
comply in future with the recommendations of the 
German Corporate Governance Code in the version 
dated 16 December 2019 with the following exception.

•	�New recommendations on the remuneration of the 
Management Board (Code Sections G.1 to G.16)

The existing remuneration system for the Management 
Board and the current Management Board contracts do 
not currently comply with all recommendations of the 
Code in sections G.1 to G.16. According to the justification 
of the Code, amendments to the Code also do not have 
to be taken into account in current Management Board 
contracts, but – insofar as they are to be followed – only 
when current Management Board contracts are extended 
after the new version of the Code comes into force. The 
Supervisory Board is currently reviewing the remunera-
tion system for the Management Board and intends to 
adopt a new remuneration system in accordance with 
section 87a of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) 
and submit it for approval at the Annual General Meeting 
in 2021. The Supervisory Board will only decide in the 
course of adopting the remuneration system pursuant to 
§ 87a AktG to what extent the recommendations relating 
to Management Board remuneration in sections G.1 to 
G.16 of the Code will be complied with in the future.

Garbsen, 9 February 2021

JEAN-MICHEL RICHARD
For the Supervisory Board

DR. GOETZ M. BENDELE
For the Management Board

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
LONG-TERM VALUE CREATION AND EFFICIENT 
COOPERATION
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INFORMATION ON RELEVANT CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Management Board of LPKF AG has set up a Group-
wide reporting and control system to record, assess and 
manage risks. The system is continuously developed, 
adapted to changing conditions and reviewed by the 
auditors. The Management Board regularly informs the 
Supervisory Board about existing risks and their 
development. Details on risk management in the 
LPKF Group are presented in the risk report as part of 
the Group management report. This contains the report 
on the accounting-related internal control and risk 
management system.

COMPLIANCE – FUNDAMENTALS OF 
ENTREPRENEURIAL ACTION AND MANAGEMENT
Sustainable economic, ecological and social action that 
complies with applicable law is an indispensable element 
of LPKF's corporate culture. This also includes trust, 
respect and integrity in our dealings with each other. 
This is expressed in exemplary conduct towards 
employees, business partners, shareholders and the 
public. LPKF defines compliance as adherence to the 
law, the Articles of Association and internal regulations 
as well as voluntary commitments.

LPKF AG attaches particular importance to raising aware-
ness of compliance among all employees in the Group. 
Compliance is anchored in internal processes and a 
Group-wide compliance structure has been established. 
Employee training is provided on the Group-wide Com-
pliance Code and on general compliance topics www.
lpkf.com/en/company/lpkf-group/compliance-
management. In this way, compliance violations can be 
prevented for the benefit of the entire Group.

The Compliance Office holds regular meetings in which 
current topics are discussed, if necessary also with the 
specialist officers.

Reliable reporting channels for internal and external 
stakeholders help to ensure that possible irregularities 
can be reported confidentially. The internal audit depart-
ment is also used for this purpose. In order to become 
aware of any compliance violations, LPKF provides 
internal and external whistleblower communication 
channels for contacting the company, which are listed on 
the homepage (https://www.lpkf.com/en/company/
lpkf-group/compliance-management). Both the Compli-
ance Officer and an independent lawyer can be reached 
through these channels in total confidence and confi-
dentiality if this is required. Other contact points for 
employees can be found in the Compliance Code, on the 
intranet and on notice boards in the company.

Internal auditing, which is carried out by a reputable and 
internationally recognised auditing company as an exter-
nal service provider, also plays an important role for the 
compliance organisation. The corresponding audits are 
also used with regard to the further development of the 
internal control system. This is an area that the Supervi-
sory Board wishes to strengthen further in 2021.

WORKING METHODS AND COMPOSITION OF THE 
MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD
LPKF AG is a stock corporation under German law and 
has a dual management system with a Management 
Board and a Supervisory Board. The Management Board 
and the Supervisory Board of LPKF AG work closely 
together in managing and monitoring the company.

CORPROATE GOVERNANCE

https://www.lpkf.com/en/company/lpkf-group/compliance-management
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The Management Board of LPKF AG consists of two mem-
bers with one acting as Chairman. As the management 
body, it is their responsibility to manage the company's 
business with the aim of creating long-term sustainable 
value and in the company's best interests. The Manage-
ment Board performs its management duties as a colle-
gial body. Notwithstanding the overall responsibility, the 
individual Management Board members manage the 
departments assigned to them on their own responsibility 
within the framework of the Management Board resolu-
tions. The allocation of responsibilities between the 
Management Board members is set out in the business 
distribution plan. Information on areas of responsibility 
as well as curricula vitae of the Management Board mem-
bers are available on the company's website at www.lpkf.
com/en/company/lpkf-group/sustainability. The Ma
nagement Board meets regularly for joint meetings.

The Supervisory Board advises and monitors the Ma
nagement Board in the management of the company. It 
is involved in strategy and planning as well as in all 
issues of fundamental importance to the company. The 
rules of procedure require the Management Board to 
obtain the approval of the Supervisory Board for major 
business transactions. The chairman of the Supervisory 
Board coordinates the work of the Supervisory Board, 
chairs its meetings and represents the interests of the 
board externally.

The Management Board informs the Supervisory Board 
promptly and comprehensively in writing as well as in the 
regular meetings about the planning, the business 
development and the situation of the Group including risk 
management as well as compliance. In the event of 
significant events and if required, an extraordinary meet-
ing of the Supervisory Board is convened. The Supervi-
sory Board has established rules of procedure for its own 
work, available on the company's website (www.lpkf.
com/en/investor-relations/corporate-governance).

As a matter of principle, the Supervisory Board reviews 
how effectively it performs its duties on an annual basis. 
The last self-assessment took place by means of a ques-
tionnaire analysis in February 2020. The results of the 
review were presented and discussed in the Supervisory 
Board and confirmed professional, constructive coop-
eration within the Supervisory Board and with the Man-
agement Board. The results also confirmed efficient 
organization and conduct of meetings and appropriate 
provision of information. No fundamental need for 
change emerged. Due to the personnel changes on the 
Supervisory Board, the next self-assessment will take 
place later in the current financial year.

Jean-Michel Richard
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Member of the Supervisory Board since 25 November 2020, 
appointed by the court until the end of the Annual General 

Meeting 2021, 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 1 December 2020

Dr. Dirk Rothweiler
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Member of the Supervisory Board since 14 June 2017, 
elected until the end of the Annual General Meeting 2022, 

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 6 June 2019 

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger Overmeyer
Member of the Supervisory Board since 6 June 2019, 

elected until the end of the Annual General Meeting 2024

Dr. Markus Peters

Member of the Supervisory Board  
from 13 July 2017 to 13 November 2020, 

Chairman of the Supervisory Board  
from 16 October 2017 to 13 November 2020

COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

https://www.lpkf.com/en/company/lpkf-group/sustainability
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LPKF AG has taken out directors' and officers' liability 
insurance (D&O insurance) for all members of the Ma
nagement Board and Supervisory Board with a deduc
tible amounting to 10% of the damage or a maximum of 
one and a half times the fixed annual remuneration.

The Supervisory Board of LPKF AG in the 2020 financial 
year comprised the members listed below, who, with the 
exception of Jean-Michel Richard, were elected by the 
Annual General Meeting by way of individual election. CVs 
of the Supervisory Board members are available on the 
company's website at www.lpkf.com/en/company/ 
lpkf-group/management.

When proposing candidates for election to the Supervi-
sory Board, attention shall be paid to the knowledge, skills 
and professional experience required to perform the 
duties, as well as to diversity in composition. For its pro-
posals for the election of new Supervisory Board mem-
bers to the Annual General Meeting, the Supervisory 
Board shall ascertain from the respective candidate that 
he / she is able to devote the expected amount of time.

The specific composition of the Management Board and 
the Supervisory Board in the 2020 financial year as well 
as the disclosures pursuant to § 285 No. 10 HGB can 
be found in the combined management and group ma
nagement report in this Annual Report. Committees of 
the Supervisory Board, the formation of which the Code 
recommends only depending on the specific circum-
stances of the company and the number of members of 
the Supervisory Board, do not currently exist against 
the background of the three-member Supervisory Board. 
Instead, the Supervisory Board performs the tasks itself 
in its entirety that would be assigned to an audit, nomi
nation, compensation or sustainability committee in 
larger Supervisory Boards. However the Supervisory will 
continue to review this point in the context of the 
potential nomination of a fourth member in 2021 / 2022.

SETTING TARGETS FOR THE PROPORTION OF 
FEMALE MEMBERS ON THE SUPERVISORY 
BOARD, THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND THE 
TWO MANAGEMENT LEVELS BELOW THE 
MANAGEMENT BOARD
As a listed company not subject to the German Co-
Determination Act, LPKF AG is legally obliged to set 
targets for the proportion of women on the Supervisory 
Board, the Management Board and the two management 
levels below the Management Board.

The Supervisory Board currently has set a target of 1 / 3 
(=33.33%) for the proportion of women on the Super
visory Board. The Supervisory Board has currently set 
a target of 0% for the proportion of women on the Ma
nagement Board.

Due to the composition of the Management Board with 
only two members the Supervisory Board does not con-
sider it appropriate to set a higher target for the Ma
nagement Board at this time. The deadline for achieving 
both targets is 26 February 2024. However the Super-
visory Board will continue to assess the situation.

The Management Board has set targets for the propor-
tion of women in the two management levels below the 
Management Board. They amount to 17% in the first 
management level below the Management Board and 
23% in the second management level below the Ma
nagement Board. The deadline for achieving all of the 
above targets is 30 June 2022.

LONG-TERM SUCCESSION PLANNING FOR THE 
MANAGEMENT BOARD, DIVERSITY CONCEPT
In principle, the Supervisory Board ensures long-term 
succession planning for the Management Board together 
with the Management Board. In addition to the require-
ments of the German Stock Corporation Act and the 
Code, the succession planning takes into account the 
criteria according to the diversity concept adopted by the 
Supervisory Board for the composition of the Manage-
ment Board. Taking into account the specific qualification 
requirements and the aforementioned criteria, the Super-
visory Board develops an ideal profile and draws up a 
shortlist of available candidates on this basis. Structured 
interviews are conducted with these candidates. If 
necessary, the Supervisory Board is supported by exter-
nal consultants in the development of the requirement 
profiles and the selection of candidates.

CORPROATE GOVERNANCE
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With regard to the composition of the Management 
Board, the Supervisory Board pursues a diversity con-
cept essentially related to the following aspects:

•	�The members of the Board of Directors shall, as a 
whole, possess the knowledge, skills and professional 
experience necessary for the proper performance of 
their duties.

•	�The members of the Management Board must be 
familiar with the relevant industrial environment. At 
least individual members of the Management Board 
should also have knowledge in the Laser Technology 
Business Field and in the area of capital markets and 
financing. At least the member of the Management 
Board responsible for finance must have expertise in 
the fields of accounting or auditing and individual 
members of the Management Board should have 
experience in managing a medium-sized company.

•	�Diversity shall also be considered in the search for 
qualified personalities for the board. The extent to 
which different, mutually complementary professional 
profiles, professional and life experiences as well as 
an appropriate representation of both genders bene-
fit the work of the board should also be appreciated.

•	�As a rule, only those who have not yet reached the 
age of 65 shall be members of the Management 
Board. The age of the Management Board members 
shall therefore also be taken into account in the 
appointment.

•	�For the proportion of women on the Management 
Board, the Supervisory Board has set the target 
described above and the deadline for achieving it.

The diversity concept is intended to benefit the work of 
the board as a whole. The Supervisory Board decides 
with which personality a specific Management Board 
position should be filled in the best interest of the 
company and under consideration of all circumstances 
of the individual case.

In the reporting period the Management Board of LPKF AG 
has two members with professional and personal qualifi
cations in different areas. In the opinion of the Supervisory 
Board, the diversity concept for the Management Board was 
complied with during the reporting period. The diversity 
concept for the Management Board will also be taken into 
account in the search initiated by the Supervisory Board for 
a successor to the Chairman of the Management Board, 
who is leaving at the end of April 2021.

OBJECTIVES FOR THE COMPOSITION OF THE 
SUPERVISORY BOARD, COMPETENCE PROFILE, 
DIVERSITY CONCEPT
The Supervisory Board has set targets regarding its 
composition, a competence profile that is taken into 
account when proposing new candidates for the Super-
visory Board, and a diversity concept.

The Supervisory Board as a whole shall have the know
ledge, skills and professional experience necessary to 
perform its duties. The members of the Supervisory 
Board as a whole shall be familiar with the sector in 
which the company operates.

It shall be ensured that at least the following knowledge 
or experience is present in members of the Supervisory 
Board: (i) familiarity with the company's sector, (ii) 
knowledge in other defined areas, (iii) expertise in the 
fields of accounting or auditing for at least one Super-
visory Board member, (iv) international experience. 
Individual qualifications of the individual members may 
complement each other to achieve this goal.

a)	� Consideration of the international activity of the 
company

LPKF AG's international activities are taken into account 
in election proposals to the Annual General Meeting. In 
addition to knowledge of the English language, the yard-
stick here is professional experience gained in other 
internationally active German or foreign companies, 
whether in management or in supervisory bodies, as 
well as an understanding of global economic contexts. 
The criterion of internationality does not necessarily 
require a foreign nationality, but German nationals can 
also contribute the desired level of experience.
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b)	� Independence and avoidance of potential con-
flicts of interest

The Supervisory Board shall include an appropriate num-
ber of independent members on the shareholder side 
within the meaning of Recommendation C.6 of the 
German Corporate Governance Code of 16 December 
2019 (GCGC 19). A member of the Supervisory Board 
shall be considered independent within the meaning of 
this recommendation if he or she is independent of the 
company and its Management Board and independent 
of a (possible) controlling shareholder.

More than half of the shareholder representatives shall 
be independent of the company and the management 
board. According to the definition of recommendation 
C.7 DCGK 2019, a Supervisory Board member is inde-
pendent of the company and its Management Board if 
he or she has no personal or business relationship with 
the company or its Management Board that could 
constitute a material and not merely temporary conflict 
of interest. In assessing independence, the Supervisory 
Board takes into account the indicators listed in recom-
mendation C.7 DCGK 2019.

At least one shareholder representative shall be indepen-
dent of a (possible) controlling shareholder. According to 
recommendation C.9 DCGK 2019, a Supervisory Board 
member is independent of the controlling shareholder if 
he or she or a close family member is neither a controlling 
shareholder nor a member of the controlling shareholder's 
executive body or has a personal or business relationship 
with the controlling shareholder that may give rise to a 
material and not merely temporary conflict of interest.

No member shall be a member of the Supervisory Board 
who exercises an executive or advisory function at a 
significant third-party competitor of the company or the 
Group or who has a personal relationship with a signif-
icant third-party competitor.

The Supervisory Board shall not include more than one 
former member of the Management Board.

c)	 Setting an age limit
The age limit for the members of the Supervisory Board 
was set in the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory 
Board, updated in 2020, at younger than 72 years at the 
time of election.

d)	� Determination of a standard limit for the length 
of membership in the Supervisory Board

In order to ensure a balanced mix of experience and 
renewal on the Supervisory Board, the Supervisory 
Board has set a standard limit for the average length of 
service on the Supervisory Board of 10 years in relation 
to the date of an election.

e)	 Consideration of diversity
In the search for qualified personalities for the Super
visory Board, attention shall also be paid to diversity. 
The extent to which different, mutually complementary 
professional profiles, professional and life experience 
as well as an appropriate representation of both genders 
on the Supervisory Board benefit the work of the Super-
visory Board shall also be acknowledged. For the pro-
portion of women on the Supervisory Board, the Super-
visory Board has set the target described above and the 
deadline for achieving it.

The above objectives and the diversity concept are in-
tended to benefit the work of the Supervisory Board as 
a whole.

With the exception of the target for the proportion of 
women on the Supervisory Board by 26 February 2024, 
the Supervisory Board is of the opinion that the current 
composition of the Supervisory Board meets the set 
targets and fulfills the diversity concept and the com-
petence profile. The Supervisory Board aims to propose 
a female candidate for election to the Supervisory Board 
at the latest at the Annual General Meeting in 2022.

The members of the Supervisory Board as a whole are 
familiar with the sector relevant to the company's activi
ties, with several members also having expertise in the 

CORPROATE GOVERNANCE
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fields of accounting or auditing and bringing international 
experience. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board, 
Jean-Michel Richard, also has expertise in ESG and will 
be responsible for this topic on the Supervisory Board. 
The Supervisory Board also includes the number of 
members independent of a controlling shareholder, as 
determined by the Supervisory Board to be at least a 
majority.

The Supervisory Board considers its current members 
Jean-Michel Richard, Dr. Dirk Michael Rothweiler and 
Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger Overmeyer to be independent of 
the Management Board and the company. There is cur-
rently no controlling shareholder on which the Super
visory Board members could be dependent.

SHAREHOLDERS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The shareholders of LPKF AG exercise their co-determi-
nation and control rights at the Annual General Meeting, 
which is held at least once a year. This resolves on all 
matters determined by law. Each share entitles the 
holder to one vote.

Every shareholder who registers in good time is entitled 
to attend the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders who 
are unable to attend in person have the option of having 
their voting rights exercised by a bank, a shareholders' 
association, the proxies appointed by LPKF AG who are 
bound by instructions, or another proxy of their choice. 
The company makes it possible to follow the Annual 
General Meeting or parts thereof via the internet. The 
Management Board may provide for shareholders to cast 
their votes in writing or by way of electronic communica-
tion (postal vote) and for shareholders to participate in 
the Annual General Meeting without being present on site 
and to exercise all or some of their rights in whole or in 
part by way of electronic communication.

The invitation to the Annual General Meeting and the 
reports, documents and information required by law for 
the Annual General Meeting are published in accordance 
with the provisions of the German Stock Corporation 
Act and made available on LPKF AG's website in German 
and English.

The AGM on 4 June 2020 was held as a virtual AGM 
without the physical presence of shareholders or their 
proxies due to the special circumstances of the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

TRANSPARENCY
LPKF regularly informs capital market participants and 
the interested public about the Group's economic situa
tion and new facts. The annual report, the half-yearly 
financial report and the quarterly financial reports are 
published within the prescribed deadlines. Press releases 
and, if necessary, ad hoc announcements provide infor-
mation on current events and new developments. All in-
formation is published via suitable electronic media such 
as e-mail and the Internet. The website www.lpkf.com 
also provides extensive information on the LPKF Group 
and LPKF shares.

The planned dates of the main recurring events and 
publications – such as the Annual General Meeting, 
annual report, quarterly financial reports, financial press 
conferences and analysts' conferences – are compiled 
in a financial calendar. The calendar is published suffi-
ciently in advance and made available on LPKF AG's 
website.
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SHARE TRANSACTIONS OF THE MEMBERS OF 
THE GOVERNING BODIES
Information on directors' dealings is published by 
LPKF AG on the internet and reported to the relevant 
supervisory authorities. There were no reportable direc-
tors' dealings in the 2020 financial year.

ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING
LPKF AG prepares its consolidated financial statements 
and the interim consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as applicable in the European Union. 
The annual financial statements of LPKF AG are prepared 
in accordance with the German Commercial Code 
(HGB). The annual and consolidated financial state-
ments are prepared by the Management Board and 
audited by the auditor and the Supervisory Board. The 
interim reports and the half-year financial report are 
discussed by the Supervisory Board with the Manage-
ment Board prior to publication. The consolidated finan-
cial statements and the annual financial statements of 
LPKF AG were audited by KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprü-
fungsgesellschaft, Hanover, the auditors elected by the 
2020 Annual General Meeting. The audit reports were 
signed by auditor Björn Kniese (since the 2020 annual 
financial statements) and auditor Sebastian Geisler (since 
the 2020 annual financial statements).

The audits were conducted in accordance with German 
auditing regulations and the generally accepted stan-
dards for the audit of financial statements promulgated 
by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (Institute of Public 
Auditors in Germany). They also covered risk manage-
ment and compliance with corporate governance report-
ing requirements pursuant to section 161 of the German 
Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

It was also contractually agreed with the auditors that 
they would inform the Supervisory Board immediately 
of any possible grounds for disqualification or partiality 
as well as of any significant findings and occurrences 
during the audit. There was no reason for this during the 
audits for the 2020 financial year.

Garbsen, 16 March 2021

JEAN-MICHEL RICHARD
the Supervisory Board

DR. GOETZ M. BENDELE
the Management Board

CORPROATE GOVERNANCE
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glass substrates.



BASIC INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

G R O U P  S T R U C T U R E  A N D  B U S I N E S S 
M O D E L
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG (LPKF) is a global technol-
ogy company with an export share of 90% and custom-
ers in over 60 countries. The company primarily devel-
ops laser-based solutions for dynamic markets such as 
the electronics industry, the automotive supply industry, 
the solar industry, the semiconductor industry, medical 
technology, research institutions and universities.

LPKF was established in 1976 and has 45 years of ex-
perience as a developer and supplier of innovative 
capital goods for industrial companies and research 
institutions. Since 2019, the company has also been 
manufacturing micro-structured components made of 
glass for the semiconductor industry.

­LPKF Laser & Electronics AG
Garbsen / Germany

Production subsidiaries Sales and service companies

­LPKF WeldingQuipment GmbH­
Fürth / Germany (100%)

­LPKF Distribution Inc.
Tualatin (Portland) / US (100%)

­LPKF SolarQuipment GmbH­
Suhl / Germany (100%)

­LPKF Laser & Electronics Trading (Shanghai) Co., 
Ltd. Shanghai / China (100%)

­LPKF Laser & Electronics d.o.o.
Naklo / Slovenia (100%)

­LPKF (Tianjin) Co. Ltd.­
Shanghai, Tianjin, Suzhou, Shenzhen / China (100%)

­LPKF Laser & Electronics K.K.­
Tokyo / Japan (100%)

­LPKF Laser & Electronics Korea Ltd.
Seoul / Korea (100%)

­LPKF Laser & Electronics (Hong Kong) Ltd.
Hong Kong / China (100%)

Research and development is of paramount importance 
for LPKF. Many of its innovations and further develop-
ments are created in close partnership with customers. 
To maintain its ability to innovate, every year the com-
pany invests around 10% of its revenue in in-house R&D 
activities. Development and production activities are 
based in Europe.

The LPKF Group has four business segments and main-
tains a broad-based product portfolio. The company’s 
mission is to give its customers a competitive advantage 
through the use of innovative technology. With this in 
mind, LPKF is spearheading the transition from tradi-
tional to laser-based production methods in specific 
markets, and is enabling the development of innovative 
end products in a number of areas.

LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is headquartered in Garbsen 
near Hanover, Germany. The company has a broad global 
presence, with a workforce of 689 people based at loca-
tions in Europe, Asia and North America. LPKF’s shares 
are listed in the TecDAX and SDAX of the German Stock 
Exchange.

L E G A L  S T R U C T U R E  O F  T H E  G R O U P
As of 31 December 2020, LPKF had nine subsidiaries, which, together with the parent company, form the group of 
consolidated companies.
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Operating segments
The management and control of the LPKF Group is in-
dependent of the Group’s legal structure. Top-level 
Group functions include strategic business develop-
ment, innovation management and core activities in the 
areas of controlling, investor relations, HR, accounting, 
legal, internal audit, risk management, compliance, mar-
keting, procurement and management systems.

Sales, service, production and development activities 
are handled by separate business units in each segment. 
In LPKF’s most important markets outside Germany, 
sales and service functions are also provided through 
regional sales companies in close collaboration with 
business unit management.

In the 2020 financial year, LPKF operated in the follow-
ing segments:

 D E V E L O P M E N T W E L D I N G

Systems for printed circuit board development 
and research

Systems for plastics welding

 E L E C T R O N I C S  S O L A R

Systems for electronics production 
and the manufacture of glass components

Systems for the production of solar cells 
and for Laser Transfer Printing

Development
In the Development segment, LPKF supplies practically 
all the electronic equipment that developers require to 
rapidly manufacture and assemble printed circuit board 
prototypes in-house and largely without the use of chem-
icals. In addition to the development departments of 
industrial companies, the company primarily supplies 
public organizations such as research institutes, univer-
sities and schools.

Electron ics
LPKF’s Electronics segment manufactures systems that 
are primarily used in production in the electronics indus-
try. These include laser systems for cutting print stencils 
(StencilLasers) and laser systems for cutting and drilling 
rigid and flexible printed circuit boards. The Electronics 
segment also includes LIDE technology (Laser Induced 
Deep Etching) developed by LPKF. The LIDE business 
encompasses both the development and sale of laser 
systems for high-precision structuring of very thin glass 
and the production of glass components using the com-
pany’s own LIDE systems.

The Electronics segment also covers LDS technology 
(Laser Direct Structuring) for manufacturing three-
dimensional circuit carriers. This allows mechanical and 

electronic functions to be integrated into injection molded 
parts. With Active Mold Packaging (AMP), LPKF has de-
veloped a process based on this technology that makes 
IC packages even more compact and powerful.

Weld ing
The Welding segment comprises laser systems for weld-
ing plastic components. These systems are primarily 
used in the automotive supply industry, in medical tech-
nology and in the production of consumer electronics.

Solar
In the Solar segment, LPKF develops and produces laser 
systems (LaserScribers) that are used for structuring thin-
film solar cells for various thin-film technologies. The 
customer base of this segment includes international 
solar cell manufacturers. This segment also includes laser 
systems for the digital printing of functional pastes and 
inks (Laser Transfer Printing, LTP).

LPKF competes with a different set of competitors in each 
segment and in each product group. These competitors 
range from multinational corporations to smaller, regional 
providers who often operate in just one market.
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Production and procurement
Production takes place exclusively at the German loca-
tions and in Slovenia. Rapid prototyping equipment and 
other equipment for the Development segment, as well 
as some of the laser sources used within the Group, are 
produced by the subsidiary LPKF Laser & Electronics 
d.o.o. in Naklo (Slovenia). Systems for the Electronics 
segment are manufactured in Garbsen, Germany. Weld-
ing segment production takes place in Fürth, Germany. 
Solar and LTP systems are produced in Suhl, Germany. 
At LPKF, production is generally limited to pre-assembly 
and final assembly of machinery and equipment.

With a few exceptions in the mechanical production of 
minimal quantities, all components including complex 
assemblies for machinery are purchased from external 
suppliers. From the first quarter of 2021, LPKF now also 

Country City Function Focus area

Germany

Garbsen

Group headquarters, 
production, procurement,
development, sales and 
services

Electronics segment
•	 Cutting and drilling systems, 

LIDE, LDS, AMP, production services
Development segment
•	 Prototyping systems

Fürth
Production, development, 
sales and services

Welding segment
•	 Plastic welding systems

Suhl
Development, sales, 
pro-duction and services

Solar segment
•	 Systems for structuring large 

surfaces
•	 Systems for digital printing of 

functional pastes

Slovenia Naklo
Production, development 
and services

Development segment
•	 Prototyping systems
•	 Laser sources

P R O D U C T I O N  C O M P A N I E S

procures complete systems from third parties for the 
Development segment. Group procurement is organized 
through a central strategic purchasing unit in Garbsen, 
with operational purchasing activities integrated in the 
organizational structure on a mainly local basis at the 
production sites. Whenever it purchases external com-
ponents, the Group strives to avoid becoming dependent 
on individual suppliers where possible to guarantee 
availability and competitiveness.

Sales
Global cross-segment sales are handled by subsidiaries, 
especially in important regions such as China, Japan, 
North America and South Korea. Overall, the Group is 
represented by subsidiaries and more than 35 distribu-
tors in over 60 countries, which acquire and serve cus-
tomers all over the world.
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M A N A G E M E N T  A N D  C O N T R O L
Organizat ion of  management  and contro l
The Management Board represents the company and is 
responsible for running it. The members of LPKF AG’s 
Management Board are appointed by the Supervisory 
Board. The Supervisory Board may withdraw appoint-
ments for good cause.

The Supervisory Board has determined that certain 
transactions require its approval.

The Annual General Meeting may make decisions on 
management issues only if requested to do so by the 
Management Board. Any amendment to the Articles of 
Incorporation requires a resolution by the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting to be passed by a majority of the share 
capital represented at the adoption of the resolution. 
Article 25 (1) of the company’s Articles of Incorporation 
stipulates that, in cases where the law requires a reso-
lution to be passed by a majority of the share capital 
represented, a simple majority of the share capital rep-
resented will suffice, unless the law mandates a larger 
majority.

The following persons were members of the Manage-
ment Board of LPKF AG in the 2020 financial year:

•	 Dr. Goetz Matthias Bendele (CEO)
•	 Christian Witt (CFO)

In the 2020 financial year, the Supervisory Board con-
sisted of the following members:

•	 Dr. Markus Peters (Chairman) up to 13 November 
2020

•	 Dr. Dirk Rothweiler (Deputy Chairman)
•	 Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger Overmeyer
•	 Jean-Michel Richard since 25 November 2020 

(Chairman since 1 December 2020)

Relevant  lega l  factors
The company and each of its segments are subject to 
the general legal requirements applicable to listed com-
panies. Beyond this, no special legal provisions apply.

S T R A T E G Y

Strategic framework
Megatrends
The following megatrends are playing a decisive role in 
the transition from traditional to laser-based production 
methods:

•	 Miniaturization: Miniaturization is continuing 
apace. Electronic devices are becoming 
increasingly smaller, more powerful and more 
efficient. The precision of the laser means that 
materials can be processed on a micrometer scale.

•	 Digitalization: As electronic and non-electronic 
devices become more powerful and more 
multifunctional, this increases the number of 
electronic components – including antennas, 
sensors and microsystems (MEMS) – they require. 

•	 Efficiency: Efficient production is of paramount 
importance to customers. LPKF technologies aim 
to reduce process costs and material costs.

•	 Freedom of design: Product design is increasingly 
becoming a primary differentiator of electronic 
devices. Laser flexibility maximizes freedom of 
design when developing new products.

•	 Sustainability: Customers are having to meet ever 
more stringent quality requirements in production. 
Consumers are placing increasing importance on a 
clean environment. Laser technology aims to make 
production processes cleaner and more efficient 
and to increase the durability of end products.
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V is ion
The LPKF Group is driven by the vision that innovative 
technology is going to sustainably change the world of 
electronics production. At the same time, the design 
and manufacture of electronic devices are becoming 
increasingly centered around people.

LPKF has derived three central functions from this vision 
for the Group:

1.	� Pioneer: LPKF is spearheading the transformation 
from traditional production methods to laser tech-
nology, thereby opening up new opportunities in 
product design and production.

2.	� Solution provider: LPKF delivers high-precision, 
laser-based solutions for manufacturing.

3.	� Production service provider: LPKF manufactures 
micro-structured components according to customer 
requests.

Success factors
The Management Board believes that the company’s 
success is based on a deep understanding of customer 
requirements that has been cultivated from years of 
experience and on in-house process expertise that has 
been developed over time. Expertise in engineering, 
software, physics, chemistry and Group-wide machine 
software platforms are equally important contributing 
factors to the company’s success. Added to this are its 
high capacity for innovation and its understanding of 
the laser microprocessing of different materials.

Another key success factor is LPKF’s focus on the follow-
ing core competencies and the interplay between them:

Core competencies
•	 Laser technology and optics
•	 Precision drive technology
•	 Control technology and software
•	 Materials technology

Corporate respons ib i l i ty
For the LPKF Group, sustainability means acting respon-
sibly, achieving business success as well as ecological 
and social progress, and working to secure the future 
of the company. LPKF takes responsibility for the health 
and quality of life of its employees, customers and con-
sumers, and for protecting the environment. LPKF sys-
tems help customers become more resource efficient, 
reduce hazardous materials and waste, and save energy.

Independence of  ind iv idua l  markets  as  a 
resu l t  o f  broad pos i t ion ing
By addressing a range of markets, LPKF reduces its de-
pendence on the cycles of individual industries. This 
makes it much easier to compensate for economic 
fluctuations.

Miss ion statement
All activities of the LPKF Group are geared toward the 
success of its customers. All major activities and deci-
sions are aimed at improving the competitiveness of the 
Group’s customer base through technological advance-
ment and efficiency gains. Strengthening LPKF in the 
long term serves the interests of all customers, business 
partners, employees and shareholders. For this reason, 
strong emphasis is placed on strengthening the Group’s 
innovation resources and ensuring profitability.

LPKF is a technology group. The company aspires to 
shape technological progress and gain leading market 
positions by focusing its energies on its core competen-
cies. A sense of professional partnership and fair treat-
ment characterizes relationships with customers, sup-
pliers and representatives as well as the working 
relationships among employees within the LPKF Group. 
As an international group, LPKF strives for understand-
ing of other cultures and philosophies.

Product quality is one of the keys to customer satisfac-
tion. LPKF encourages employee training as a way of 
sustaining the high quality of its products and ensures 
that its employees recognize their direct and indirect 
responsibility for customer satisfaction.

LPKF makes an active contribution to reducing waste 
by using largely laser-based production methods. LPKF 
designs its products and internal processes to be as 
environmentally friendly as possible. Health and well-be-
ing are the foundations for a successful business. LPKF 
places significant emphasis on promoting the health of 
its employees and on occupational safety at the com-
pany. Its ambition to be a technology leader means that 
LPKF always strives to optimize its products and product 
development processes. It goes without saying that this 
requires a corporate culture that is open and encourag-
es learning and constructive criticism. LPKF’s responsi-
bility extends to its customers, employees, business 
partners, shareholders and the public. The company’s 
sense of corporate responsibility also includes the fact 
that LPKF employees are required to obey applicable 
laws whenever and wherever appropriate, respect eth-
ical principles and pursue sustainability. The LPKF Com-
pliance Code supports the company’s employees in this 
endeavor.
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Corporate objective
LPKF’s objective is to achieve long-term business suc-
cess through sustainable, profitable growth. This suc-
cess is underpinned by a long-term business orientation 
and near-term business management. The Group’s busi-
ness activities place just as much emphasis on the long-
term development of the Group as they do on short-term 
monitoring of key figures so that it can act quickly in the 
event of any undesirable developments.

A key factor for LPKF is permanently strengthening its 
ability to innovate so that it can carry on developing and 
commercializing ever more new and innovative solutions 
for its customers. The organization is systematically 
aligned toward serving its customers. In addition to op-
erational strength and speed, research and development 
work and alignment to commercial use and application 
are of primary importance.

Strategic alignment of the operating business
Strateg ic  a l ignment  of  the company
The megatrends of miniaturization and digitalization 
require lasers as highly precise tools for the production 
of electronic components. LPKF supplies important key 
technologies for many growth industries. The company’s 
broad portfolio of products and services contributes to 
boosting efficiency and conserving resources. Alongside 
the traditional solutions business, LPKF also supplies 
production services through its foundry. The company 
uses its own systems to produce high-precision compo-
nents made of glass for customers in the semiconductor 
and electronics industries. LPKF is a strategic partner 
for international customers, with whom it works closely 
to design advanced solutions.

LPKF is positioned as a global laser specialist. This po-
sitioning gives LPKF many advantages over competitors 
who often operate in just one market or as regional sup-
pliers. By addressing a range of markets, LPKF reduces 
its dependence on the cycles of individual industries. 
This makes it much easier to compensate for economic 
fluctuations. This approach requires the integration of 
all business processes with potential synergies.

In the LPKF Group, central group functions are provided 
and shared across all the segments in areas such as 
procurement and innovation management or in admin-
istrative departments such as HR and accounting. In its 
core regional markets, LPKF provides sales and service 
support to all the segments via its own subsidiaries. 
Shared use of infrastructure also simplifies market entry 
while helping to ensure optimization of the cost base by 
exploiting synergy effects.

Strateg ic  a l ignment  of  the segments
The Development segment offers its customers the en-
tire value chain for the manufacture of printed circuit 
board prototypes. Its activities are centered around 
mechanical and increasingly laser-based systems that 
undergo continuous development. In the Development 
segment, LPKF addresses a global market with many 
individual customers from the industrial sector and uni-
versities. Many customers invest on the basis of an R&D 
budget. The Development segment can draw on a global 
network of distributors, who in many cases are long-time 
partners of the company and able to secure outstanding 
options for market entry. Despite already having a high 
market share, the Management Board is seeing solid 
growth rates in this segment due to new products and 
applications. As one example, for a number of years 
LPKF has been offering micromachining systems for 
research applications outside of PCB prototyping. This 
gives it the opportunity to tap into new markets beyond 
pure electronics development. With its new ARRALYZE 
systems, LPKF is addressing the market for high-preci-
sion analysis of biological materials in the nanoliter 
range. The systems work with glass arrays produced 
using LIDE technology. There is potential here to gain 
new customers in the life science sector.

The Electronics segment caters to markets that are as-
sociated with the production and processing of elec-
tronic components as well as the semiconductor indus-
try. The Electronics segment offers its customers 
systems for cutting, structuring and drilling a wide vari-
ety of materials with a high level of precision and speed. 
The Electronics segment operates in highly dynamic 
markets where there are opportunities for short-term 
major orders from individual customers. Since 2019, it 
has also offered LIDE technology as a production service 
(foundry) in addition to selling equipment. In all import-
ant key markets for this segment, LPKF has a presence 
with its own subsidiaries and partners.

In the Welding segment, LPKF develops, produces and 
markets laser systems for welding plastics. This seg-
ment primarily targets the automotive supply industry, 
the medical technology sector and manufacturers of 
consumer electronics. Laser welding can be used to 
replace traditional material joining methods in various 
sectors, generating a lot of market potential. Qualities 
that set LPKF apart include its broad range of products, 
its superior product quality, its wealth of process exper-
tise and its global service network.
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The Solar segment includes all activities in connection 
with the high-precision laser machining of large surfaces. 
This is where LPKF develops, manufactures and markets 
systems for structuring thin-film solar modules. Thanks 
to the longstanding collaboration with one particular 
major customer, LPKF believes it has gained a leading 
position in the surface treatment of thin-film solar mod-
ules and is helping this customer to achieve a compet-
itive advantage. The precision and speed of the Allegro 
systems set LPKF apart as a specialist on the solar 
market. In 2020, LPKF continued to broaden both its 
customer base and its technology base for solar sys-
tems. On top of this, in the Solar segment LPKF also 
wants to continue to drive the development of new 
markets outside the solar industry. LPKF is targeting the 
market for digital printing of functional pastes with its 
LTP technology. One of the aims here is to replace the 
predominant screen printing method in some areas.

LPKF’s strategy for growth also includes the continuous 
development and optimization of its product portfolio. 
To this end the company is not only guided by input from 
customers and markets, but also explores its own ideas 
for innovations that present relevant benefits for cus-
tomers. All existing products are reviewed at least once 
a year to see if their continuation makes sense from a 
commercial point of view.

Service is a core component of the corporate strategy 
and of what the company offers its customers and, as 
such, is supplied and reported within each segment. 
LPKF offers its customers a broad spectrum of services 
via its global service network. The service business was 
strengthened and expanded further in 2020, despite the 
impact of the coronavirus pandemic.

Corporate management
LPKF Group key f igures
LPKF manages its business performance using key fig-
ures and ratios at various reporting levels. The following 
section outlines the most important key figures that 
LPKF uses:

•	 Revenue
•	 EBIT (earnings before interest and taxes)  

and EBIT margin
•	 Net working capital and net working capital ratio
•	 Free cash flow (FCF)
•	 ROCE (return on capital employed)
•	 Error rate

EBIT: The Group’s goal of profitable growth can be re-
viewed by analyzing revenue in conjunction with EBIT. 
The EBIT margin is given as a ratio for the Group’s goal 
and is calculated using the following formula: EBIT 
margin = EBIT / revenue x 100.

Net working capital: It is calculated from inventories 
plus trade receivables less trade payables and advances 
received. It reflects the net capital tied up in the report-
ed items.

Net working capital ratio: This key figure gives net 
working capital as a proportion of revenue, as in a 
changing business scenario the net capital tied up gen-
erally changes as well.

Free cash flow: FCF is an indicator of a company’s 
self-financing capability and its ability to pay a dividend 
from the cash flow for the period. Free cash flow is the 
sum of cash flow from operating activities and cash flow 
from investing activities.

ROCE (return on capital employed): EBIT / (intangible 
assets + property, plant and equipment + net working 
capital).

Error rate: This is the ratio of error costs to revenue. 
Error costs comprise expenditure associated with the 
fulfillment of warranty obligations and quality assurance. 
The target achievement is calculated by means of linear 
interpolation between the initial value and the minimum 
value of the error rate.

Aside from the error rate, no other significant non-finan-
cial key performance indicator was used for managing 
the Group in the 2020 financial year.
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The following table shows the changes in the Group’s 
key financial figures over the past five years and the 
original target figures:

Target / actual comparison of planning 
and implementation
In its original report on expected developments, due to 
the increasing economic uncertainty surrounding the 
growing pandemic, the Management Board made only 
qualitative statements on the development of key per-
formance indicators. The company issued its first quan-
titative forecast for 2020 as a whole on 29 October 
2020. At that time, consolidated revenue was expected 
to be between EUR 96 million and EUR 102 million and 
the EBIT margin between 8% and 12%.

With revenue of EUR 96.2 million, the Group achieved 
the lower end of the issued forecast. The EBIT margin 
of 7.8% is outside the range of the most recent guidance. 
ROCE is in line with the earnings performance at 9.0%.

2020 target 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Revenue EUR million 96−102 96.2 140.0 120.0 102.1 91.1

EBIT EUR million 7.7–12.2 7.5 19.2 6.8 4.0 −6.8

EBIT margin in % 8–12 7.8 13.7 5.7 3.9 −7.4

ROCE in %

Same as 
EBIT and 

capital 
employed 9.0 25.5 7.0 4.1 −6.8

Net working 
capital EUR million < 17.1 20.5 17.1 37.9 33.3 35.2

Net working 
capital ratio in % < 17.8 21.3 12.2 31.6 32.6 38.7

Free cash 
flow EUR million

Slightly 
below EBIT −5.5 42.2 5.8 N.A. N.A.

Error rate in % 48 34 48 70 78 73

The net working capital target was missed at the end of 
the year. At EUR 20.5 million or 21.3% of revenue, the 
Group fell short of the target range specified.

Free cash flow at EUR −5.5 million was below the pro-
jected range. Weaker earnings and the increase in net 
working capital both impacted this figure.

The quality costs target was achieved as the error rate 
had improved considerably year-on-year.
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N O N - F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T
LPKF AG’s separate non-financial consolidated report 
will be published on the company’s website under the 
Company / LPKF Group/Sustainability (https://www.
LPKF.com/en/company/LPKF-group/sustainability) 
within the legally stipulated period by no later than 
30 April 2021.

R E S E A R C H  A N D  D E V E L O P M E N T

Focus of R&D activities
Research and development (R&D) is of particular impor-
tance for LPKF as a technology company. Innovations 
decisively influence future product performance and 
hence the business success of the LPKF Group.

The primary strategic aim of R&D activities is to estab-
lish, maintain and develop the company’s position as 
an innovation leader within the relevant sectors. New 
products are designed to exhibit differentiators, which 
are then secured via patents. The benchmark for devel-
opment activities is always strengthening the custom-
ers’ profitability.

In the 2020 financial year, several new products were 
manufactured and technologies developed that, in turn, 
are expected to lead to new competitive products in 
the short and medium term. To support this process, 
the development process is continuously improved 
through the use of ever more agile project management 
approaches.

Pre-competitive collaboration with research institutions 
and industry partners, organized as consortium proj-
ects, continues to underpin technological development 
at the LPKF Group.

R&D expenses, investments and key figures
Continuous investment in near-to-market developments 
is crucial to a technology-oriented group such as LPKF.

In 2020, development expenses amounted to EUR 11.0 
million (previous year: EUR 12.5 million), which is equiv-
alent to 11.4% (previous year: 8.9%) of revenue.

LPKF capitalized EUR 4.7 million development expenses 
as intangible assets in the reporting year (previous year: 
EUR 4.0 million), which equates to a capitalization ratio 
of 30% (previous year: 24%). Amortization of capitalized 
development expenses amounted to EUR 3.0 million in 
2020 (previous year: EUR 2.9 million).

The following multi-period overview of R&D shows the 
development of essential key figures over time:

EUR million 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

R&D expenses* 11.0 12.5 11.7 11.1 11.4

As % of revenue 11.4 8.9 9.7 10.9 12.5

R&D employees 148 143 141 155 159

*	 Current R&D expenses include amortization of capitalized development expenses of EUR 3.0 million.
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R&D results
New product developments were successfully complet-
ed for various markets in the Electronics segment in 
2020. The Vitrion family was expanded with the first 
prototype of the Vitrion CG5000 for manufacturing 
cover glass for displays. The LIDE production hall for 
micro-structured glass components was finished. The 
first machine for the innovative Active Mold Packaging 
(AMP) process was sold in the chip packaging area. The 
depaneling product portfolio was revamped with the 
CuttingMaster 2000 and 3000 series.

The Development segment brought to market a new 
machine in the form of the ProtoLaser R4, which features 
an ultrashort-pulse laser developed by LPKF. The ma-
chine addresses flexible laser applications in the R&D 
sector. Development of a versatile system control unit 
was completed with the SMCU V, which expands the 
functionalities of old and new systems and elevates sys-
tem performance to the latest state of the art. It is being 
used in the implementation of a new ProtoLaser ST to 
add drilling and cutting functions. Laser source devel-
opment is currently focusing on enhancing the perfor-
mance of LPKF’s own UV laser.

Development activities involving the machining of CIGS 
solar modules were brought to a successful close in 
the Solar segment. Development is currently ongoing 
on a new generation of machinery that enables brand 
new processing workflows with a significantly higher 
throughput. The new generation of machinery is opening 
up the possibility of creating any number of two-dimen-
sional structures on large surfaces.

In the LTP area, the business unit head estimates that 
the Callisto system will be made available to customers 
for sampling since the start of 2021.

The Welding segment completed its activities to finalize 
new systems for welding radially symmetric compo-
nents. Work continued on a feasibility study looking into 
combining plastic welding with LDS technology. Devel-
opment of process controls for pyrometry and thermog-
raphy was also successfully continued. Additional fea-
tures for machining 3D components were added to the 
new software architecture.

In 2020, the company also embarked on an especially 
comprehensive range of developments for the new 
ARRALYZE brand. Core technologies were developed in 
areas such as microscopy and handling living cells in 
order to implement the first machines.
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REPORT ON ECONOMIC POSITION

O V E R V I E W  O F  T H E  C O U R S E  O F 
B U S I N E S S

Macroeconomic environment
In 2020, the global economy was shaped by the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Calculations by the Kiel Institute 
for the World Economy (IfW) indicate that gross domes-
tic product (GDP) contracted by 3.8%. After suffering a 
significant slump in economic output in spring 2020 
brought on by the outbreak of the pandemic, the global 
economy recovered as the year progressed.

Advanced economies were more severely impacted by 
the pandemic. The decline was particularly steep in the 
eurozone (7.2%) and in the UK (11.3%). By contrast, the 
decline in GDP was smaller in the US (3.6%) and in Japan 
(5.2%). In 2020, Germany’s Federal Statistical Office 
reported a decline of 5.0% in economic output and 9.3% 
in exports.

The IfW’s figures suggest that the impact of the pan-
demic was relatively mild in emerging economies in 
2020, with economic output contracting by 2.9% overall. 
However, there were some regional differences. While 
India and Latin America reported significant declines of 
7.9% and 7.6% respectively, the Chinese economy was 
the only major economy in the world to achieve growth 
(by 2.3% according to official figures from the National 
Bureau of Statistics of China).

Sectorspecific environment
In addition to the macroeconomic environment, the 
business performance of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG 
is influenced by the development of individual sectors. 
These include the electronics industry and consumer 
electronics in particular, the automotive industry, the 
solar industry and the plastics sector. Developments 
across these sectors in 2020 are outlined below.

According to calculations by Gartner, the pandemic 
caused smartphone sales in the electronics industry 
to fall by 10.5% in 2020. After reporting a slump of 
20.2% in the first quarter of 2020, sales recovered over 
the course of the year and by the fourth quarter far 
outstripped the previous year. According to the IDC, 
an overall figure of 1.29 billion smartphones were sold 
in 2020.

According to figures from the German Automobile In-
dustry Association (VDA), global sales of passenger cars 
suffered a decline of 15% in 2020. While sales volumes 
were down by some 24% in Europe, they declined by 
around 15% in the US and just 6% in China.

According to figures from IHS Markit, the output of 
global PV systems rose by 14% – or 142 gigawatts in 
absolute figures – in 2020. This also reflects the higher 
demand for generating electricity from renewable 
sources. According to Bloomberg, for the first time Eu-
rope was the continent to generate the most electricity 
from renewable energies. The solar industry was one 
of the very few sectors not to be affected by the pan-
demic in 2020. The German Mechanical Engineering 
Industry Association (VDMA) noted a significant rise in 
business activity among German PV system manufac-
turers during the year, which it puts down to their high 
innovative prowess including in thin-film technology. 
Asia is still the most important market for the German 
mechanical engineering sector.
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The German plastics sector was hit hard by the effects 
of the pandemic at the start of 2020. According to the 
VDMA, a period of recovery then set in, bringing the 
decline in revenue to around 10% for the year as a whole.

In the German mechanical and plant engineering sector, 
a decline in production of 14% is calculated for the year 
as a whole, which is lower than had been expected over 
the course of the year.

Effects on the ­LPKF Group
The global macroeconomic environment deteriorated 
significantly last year in the wake of the pandemic. In 
2020, all LPKF AG’s key sectors – apart from the solar 
industry – reported a significant decline in performance 
in some areas as a result of the pandemic.

Despite the positive development of the solar market, 
the pandemic meant that LPKF experienced consider-
able delays in projects with some customers in the Solar 
segment. The company did not receive key orders – 
primarily from customers in China – until the second 
half of the year. These project delays also resulted in 
considerably lower advance payments received in con-
tract liabilities and in the 44% decline in revenue in this 
segment as of the reporting date. On top of this, there 
were also significant project postponements with a 
major customer in the Electronics and Welding 
segments. Business also stagnated beyond the afore-
mentioned aspects and was not stepped up as planned 
due to the pandemic.

The direct effects of the pandemic were felt by all the 
company’s locations and by its customers and partners. 
LPKF responded to the pandemic early and with a firm 
hand, introducing a raft of measures to protect the health 
of employees and their families and that of wider society. 
Employees have largely been working from home since 
mid-March. Employees in production and development 
are having to work under new protective measures, such 
as significant social distancing and compulsory mask 
wearing. The company locations were divided into sec-
tions without physical interaction, and precautionary 
hygiene measures were implemented systematically. 
These measures have meant that LPKF was able to – and 
is continuing to – run its business operations uninter-
rupted, including production at all locations.

Nobody at the company – neither internal nor external – 
was infected with COVID-19 in the workplace at any of 
LPKF’s locations in the reporting period. The Manage-
ment Board made a personal commitment to do every-
thing in its power – across the whole company – to pro-
tect employees, minimize the economic impact and serve 
its customers as effectively as possible. These efforts 
have been continued into the current financial year.

The company’s supply chains were not disrupted. Cus-
tomer deliveries and services continued as usual – with 
a few delays in some cases. According to Group informa-
tion, only one order with a volume of EUR 175 thousand 
was canceled in the Group in the reporting period.

Many industries have been affected much worse than 
the technology industry and the capital goods industry 
by the repercussions of the pandemic. LPKF benefited 
from the fact that many companies continued to press 
ahead with product development despite the economic 
crisis. This technological advancement was – and con-
tinues to be – a vital driver of demand for LPKF Group 
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products. The Management Board sees the fact that 
the LPKF Group achieved profitable business develop-
ment despite a decline in revenue as proof that the 
company is well positioned overall and financially sta-
ble. In the Management Board’s view, LPKF has ade-
quate cash reserves comprising cash and cash equiv-
alents and the credit facility of EUR 25.0 million, which 
is available in full.

The rise of the euro against other key currencies such 
as the US dollar was not conducive to LPKF AG’s export 
activities in 2020.

N E T  A S S E T S ,  F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N  A N D 
R E S U LT S  O F  O P E R AT I O N S  O F  T H E  G R O U P

Results of operations
Development  of  revenue
In the 2020 financial year, the LPKF Group generated 
revenue of EUR 96.2 million, which was down 31.3% 
year-on-year (EUR 140.0 million).

In 2020, the Solar segment supplied laser systems for 
etching solar modules within the scope of a major order. 
However, this was not enough to match the excellent 
revenue figure from the previous year. Revenue in this 
segment declined by 44.8%. With the order received in 
December for a further EUR 10 million, total incoming 
orders of EUR 28.8 million in the Solar segment in the 
2020 financial year are above the previous year’s level of 
EUR 27.3 million. Orders on hand of EUR 23.7 million as 
of 31 December 2020 were 23% higher than in the previ-
ous year. Revenue from a framework agreement is ex-
pected to be recognized from the second quarter of 2021 
and continuing into 2022.

The revenue generated in the Electronics segment 
totaled EUR 31.7 million and, due to the lack of major 
orders in printed circuit board processing, was 27.6% 
lower than the previous year’s figure. Business was ex-
panded significantly in areas other than major orders in 
spite of the pandemic.

The Welding segment likewise ended the year with 
revenue that was 36.2% lower than in the previous year 
(EUR 27.7 million), with the vast majority of the decline 
also attributable to a customer postponing a major 
project.

With revenue of EUR 22.6 million, the Development 
­segment almost matched the previous year’s level of 
EUR 24.5 million.

The following table shows the revenue by region:

The Group’s export rate fell slightly year-on-year and is 
now 91.0% (2019: 93.1%). As was the case last year, the 
regional distribution is slightly misleading in that a pro-
portion of the machines for international customers are 
installed at their production locations, which are often 
based in other regions. In this respect, Asia remains the 
most important market for LPKF by a clear margin.

in % 2020 Prior year

Asia 57.7 43.4

Germany 9.0 6.9

Europe excl. Germany 12.6 20.9

North America 19.8 26.8

Other 0.9 2.0

Total 100.0 100.0
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Segment  per formance
The following table provides an overview of the operat-
ing segments’ performance:

Development  of  orders
At EUR 102.2 million, incoming orders during the report-
ing period were 10.3% lower than in the previous year. 
Nevertheless, a book-to-bill-ratio of >1 was achieved 
again, which means that the total incoming orders for 
the year is greater than total revenue. Orders on hand 
of EUR 38.3 million at the end of the year were EUR 6.0 
million higher than in the previous year.

Development of  main income statement i tems
In own work capitalized, EUR 4.7 million was recognized 
for the development costs of products and software. At 
EUR 3.7 million, other income was at a similarly high 
level to the previous year (EUR 4.0 million), with the 
figure in both 2019 and 2020 including income from the 
settlement of legal disputes in the LPKF Group’s favor. 
In 2020, other income also included reimbursement 
amounts applied for from the Federal Employment Agen-
cy for social security contributions in connection with 
short-time working at the German locations (EUR 455 
thousand) and waived / granted social security contri-
butions totaling EUR 351 thousand in China and Slovenia 
as a result of the pandemic.

The material cost ratio relative to revenue and changes 
in inventory declined year-on-year from 38.9% to 33.2%. 
This can largely be explained by significantly lower rev-
enue from trade goods and lower revenue from major 
customers.

EUR million Electronics Development Welding Solar Total

External
revenue

2020 31.7 22.5 17.7 24.3 96.2

2019 43.7 24.5 27.7 44.1 140.0

EBIT

2020 3.4 2.9 −2.8 4.0 7.5

2019 7.4 2.9 1.1 7.8 19.2

At EUR 41.5 million, staff costs were lower than the pre-
vious year’s figure of EUR 44.7 million despite an in-
crease in the employee headcount. The German loca-
tions were flexible in their use of the option of short-time 
working. This reduced staff costs by EUR 1.5 million. The 
staff costs ratio – being staff costs in relation to reve-
nue – has gone up, despite the lower staff costs, from 
32.0% in the previous year to 43.1% in the current year 
due to the comparatively bigger decline in revenue.

Depreciation decreased to EUR 7.3 million in 2020 (pre-
vious year: EUR 7.7 million). Of this amount, EUR 3.0 
million was attributable to depreciation and amortization 
from own work capitalized.

At EUR 17.1 million, other expenses were 21.0% lower than 
in the previous year. This change is mainly due to the 
reduction in travel and meals / entertainment expenses 
(EUR −1.9 million), the decrease in third-party work 
(EUR −1.0 million) and the reduction in legal and consult-
ing expenses (EUR −0.4 million).

Despite the decrease in revenue, improvements to the 
cost structure enabled the Group to achieve EBIT (earn-
ings before interest and taxes) of EUR 7.5 million (previ-
ous year: EUR 19.2 million). The EBIT margin was 7.8% 
compared with a margin of 13.7% in 2019.
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Multi-period overview of results of operations

Financial position
Pr inc ip les  and goa ls  of  f inancia l 
management
External funding sources available to LPKF AG include 
the issue of shares and the raising of short- and long-
term loans. The Group mainly uses its profits and the 
retention of proceeds generated by depreciation /  
amortization as sources for internal financing.

Within the LPKF Group, the parent company LPKF AG is 
responsible for hedging foreign currency and other risks. 
Derivatives are used only to hedge foreign exchange 
rates and interest rates. The European companies opti-
mize their liquidity by way of cash pooling. All other 
companies carry out their ongoing cash management 
locally. LPKF is continually reviewing whether to expand 
cash pooling to other international companies. LPKF 
Group financing is performed centrally.

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Revenue EUR million 96.2 140.0 120.0 102.1 91.1

EBIT EUR million 7.5 19.2 6.8 4.0 −6.8

Material cost ratio in % 33.1 38.9 39.7 33.4 34.9

Staff cost ratio in % 43.1 32.0 36.9 41.0 48.2

Tax ratio in % 26.9 29.9 −33.2 61.8 −16.4

EBIT / employee EUR thousand 10.9 28.3 10.2 5.3 −9.0

Statement  of  cash f lows
The following statement of cash flows shows the origin 
and use of financial resources:

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased from 
EUR 31.3 million at the end of the previous year to 
EUR 20.1 million. This was due predominantly to high 
investing activities, with EUR 3.3 million alone spent on 
construction of the LIDE clean room production facility 
at the Garbsen location, combined with a low cash flow 

EUR million 2020 Prior year

Cash flow from operating 
activities 4.0 48.0

Cash flow from investing 
activities −9.5 −5.8

Cash flow from financing 
activities −5.4 −14.5

Change in cash and cash 
equivalents due to 
changes in foreign 
exchange rates −0.3 −0.1

Change in cash and cash 
equivalents −10.9 27.7

Cash and cash equivalents 
on 1 Jan. 31.3 3.7

Cash and cash equivalents 
on 31 Dec. 20.1 31.3

Composition of cash and 
cash equivalents:

Cash on hand, 
bank balances 20.1 31.1

Overdrafts 0.0 0.2

Cash and cash 
equivalents on 31 Dec. 20.1 31.3

Page 78

See Statement of 
cash flows at 

Consolidated and 
annual financial  

statements 
on page 78.
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The Group has committed credit facilities of up to 
EUR 25 million for operating equipment, which were 
available in full and had not been drawn on the reporting 
date.

At the end of the financial year, the financial position 
can be considered as solid, allowing the Group to realize 
even a large portion of its investing activities using its 
own resources.

developments have a corresponding impact on net 
working capital, which went up from EUR 17.1 million 
in the previous year to EUR 20.5 million. Lower revenue 
drove the net working capital ratio up from 12.2% to 
21.3%.

Non-current liabilities declined by EUR 2.0 million, 
primarily due to the scheduled repayment of loans 
(EUR −1.8 million). The decrease in current liabilities 
can be explained primarily by a EUR 5.2 million reduc-
tion in advance payments received in contract liabilities 
and a EUR 2.9 million reduction in current provisions.

from operating activities. At EUR 4.0 million, cash flow 
from operating activities was significantly below the 
previous year’s level of EUR 48.0 million due to the 
EUR 43.8 million decrease in revenue and the associat-
ed deterioration in the period result, accompanied by 
an increase in net working capital.

Long-term financing is used for non-current assets. 
Long-term fixed interest periods are generally agreed.

Mult i -per iod over v iew of  f inancia l  pos i t ion

EUR million 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Free cash flow −5.5 42.2 5.8 3.3 −1.8

Net debt to banks −15.2 −24.5 16.3 37.7 39.9

(-) Credit  (+) Debit

Net assets
Analys is  of  net  assets  and capi ta l  s t ructure
The company’s net assets and capital structure devel-
oped as follows year-on-year:

Compared with 31 December 2019, non-current assets 
increased by EUR 2.1 million to EUR 66.2 million. The 
change is due to an increase in capitalized development 
costs of EUR 1.7 million and an increase in property, 
plant and equipment of EUR 1.3 million.

The decrease in current assets from EUR 63.9 million 
in the previous year to EUR  55.4 million as of 
31 December 2020 is mainly due to the EUR 11.3 mil-
lion decrease in cash and cash equivalents. By contrast, 
due to a high-revenue month in December, since 
31 December 2019 trade receivables have increased 
by EUR 1.9 million to EUR 13.2 million and inventories 
went up by EUR 0.7 million to EUR 19.8 million and 
other current non-financial assets by EUR 0.9 million 
to EUR  2.4 million as of the reporting date. These 

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

EUR million in % EUR million in %

Non-current assets 66.2 54.4 64.1 50.1

Current assets 55.4 45.6 63.9 49.9

Assets 121.6 100.0 128.0 100.0

Equity 92.9 76.4 90.8 70.9

Non-current liabilities 6.9 5.7 8.9 6.9

Current liabilities 21.8 17.9 28.3 22.2

Equity and liabilities 121.6 100.0 128.0 100.0

Page 76

See the 
consolidated 
balance sheet in the 
consolidated 
financial statements 
on page 76.
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The equity ratio went up from 71.0% in 2019 to 76.4% 
as of 31 December 2020.

Beyond this, the structure of the statement of financial 
position has not changed significantly.

Mult i -per iod over v iew of  net  assets

Days sales outstanding (DSO) are determined based on 
the average amount of outstanding receivables between 
reporting dates.

Capi ta l  expendi ture
In the 2020 financial year, the Group continued to make 
targeted investments in future growth. In addition to the 
LIDE clean room production facility for the Electronics 
segment at the Garbsen location (EUR 3.3 million), 
which was completed and approved in the fourth quar-
ter, an additional EUR 4.7 million in development costs 
was capitalized. Additional investments were made to 
replace property, plant and equipment. Total capital 
expenditure on intangible assets and property, plant and 
equipment came to EUR 10.2 million (previous year: 
EUR 6.7 million).

Employees
Highly qualified and motivated staff is the key to success 
for a technology group like LPKF. Therefore, the LPKF 
Group’s philosophy is to acquire motivated and well-
trained employees and retain them on a long-term basis. 
To further consolidate and expand the Group’s develop-
ment areas, additional targeted recruitment took place 
again in 2020. The Group continued its personnel 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

ROCE in % 9.0 25.5 7.0 4.1 −6.8

Net working capital EUR million 20.5 17.1 37.9 33.3 35.2

Net working capital ratio in % 21.3 12.2 31.6 32.6 38.7

Days sales outstanding days 55 44 78 67 63

EUR million Electronics Development Welding Solar Total

Development 
services

2020 2.0 1.2 0.3 1.2 4.7

2019 1.4 0.8 0.4 1.2 3.8

Other assets

2020 4.0 0.5 0.1 0.9 5.5

2019 1.2 0.6 0.5 0.6 2.9

2020 6.0 1.7 0.4 2.1 10.2

Total 2019 2.6 1.4 0.9 1.8 6.7

development activities so as to be prepared for future 
requirements. To ensure that it acquires properly quali-
fied junior staff, LPKF trains electronics engineers for 
devices and systems, electronics engineers for automa-
tion technology, IT specialists for system integration, IT 
specialists for application development, industrial busi-
ness assistants, office management assistants, 
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mechatronics technicians, microtechnologists and tech-
nical product designers. The Group employed 40 train-
ees at the reporting date (2019: 43).

Levels of sick leave and employee turnover are import-
ant indicators of employee motivation and employee 
retention. At 3.7%, the sick leave percentage in the LPKF 
Group was below the average for the metal working and 

Age st ructure ana lys is  in  years , 
LPKF Group (exc lud ing t ra inees)
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An analysis of the length of service of LPKF Group em-
ployees shows an average of 8.8 years (previous year: 
8.5 years). LPKF has a healthy mix of experienced and 
new employees.

electronics industry in Germany (2019: 5.7%) and lower 
than the previous year’s figure of 4.4%. The Group’s 
employee turnover level went down from 10.1% last year 
to 6.4% in 2020.

The average age of the workforce at the LPKF Group 
was 40.9 (previous year: 40.7).
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Distr ibut ion of  length of  ser v ice in  years , 
LPKF Group (exc lud ing t ra inees)
Based on the current age structure and a balanced mix 
of years of service, LPKF is well positioned to face the 
challenges posed by demographic trends.
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N E T  A S S E T S ,  F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N 
A N D  R E S U L T S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S  O F 
L P K F  A G  ( S I N G L E  E N T I T Y )
The annual financial statements of LPKF AG are pre-
pared in accordance with the provisions of the German 
Commercial Code (HGB) and are published in the Fed-
eral Gazette. The single entity is managed based on the 
same principles as the Group, on the basis of the IFRSs. 
By contrast, the disclosures in the net assets, financial 
position and results of operations are based on the HGB 
figures stated in the financial statements. On account 
of the single entity’s large share of the value creation in 
the Group, LPKF refers to the statements in the “Cor-
porate management” section and in the report on ex-
pected developments, which can also be extrapolated 
for the parent company.

Results of operations
In the 2020 financial year, LPKF AG generated revenue 
of EUR 46.2 million (previous year: EUR 60.0 million). 
The decline in revenue is predominantly due to the lack 
of major orders in printed circuit board processing in 
the Electronics segment (EUR −13.7 million). The Devel-
opment segment generated revenue of EUR 16.6 million 
in 2020 (previous year: EUR 17.5 million). The percent-
age of revenue generated internationally was 82.0% 
(previous year: 85.8%).

Other operating income fell year-on-year, from EUR 4.3 
million to EUR 2.3 million. The previous year’s figure 
included a merger gain from LaserMicronics GmbH of 
EUR 1.0 million and a payment from a legal dispute.

The material cost ratio went down from 42% to 40% 
year-on-year.

Personnel expenses decreased to EUR 17.6 million in 
the current financial year (previous year: EUR 18.6 mil-
lion). The number of employees went up. There were an 
average number of 237 employees working at LPKF AG 
in 2019 and an average of 264 in 2020. The decrease 
is mainly due to EUR 0.8 million lower additions to bonus 
provisions compared with the previous year. LPKF AG 
made flexible use of short-time working. This reduced 
staff costs by a further EUR 0.5 million. The personnel 
expenses ratio rose from 31% in the previous year to 
38% due to lower revenue.

There was a slight decrease in depreciation of fixed as-
sets year-on-year to EUR 2.3 million (previous year: 
EUR 2.8 million). Other operating expenses decreased 
from EUR 16.3 million in the previous year to EUR 12.4 
million. The main items that decreased were sales com-
missions (EUR −1.0 million), travel and meals / enter-
tainment expenses (EUR −0.7 million), and legal and 
consulting expenses (EUR −0.4 million).
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The negative revenue performance meant that LPKF AG 
achieved a negative EBIT figure of EUR 2.5 million in 2020 
(2019: EUR 1.2 million). The financial result includes dis-
tributions from LPKF China totaling EUR 4.9 million (2019: 
EUR 4.7 million). Due to profit and loss transfer agree-
ments with LPKF SolarQuipment GmbH and LPKF Weld-
ingQuipment GmbH, LPKF AG received a positive contri-
bution to earnings of EUR 1.9 million (previous year: 
EUR 10.5 million). This figure includes a positive contri-
bution to earnings of EUR 4.5 million from SolarQuipment 
GmbH and a loss absorption of EUR 2.6 million from 
WeldingQuipment GmbH.

After taxes, this constitutes a net profit of EUR 3.8 mil-
lion (previous year: EUR 12.7 million).

LPKF AG income statement

EUR million 2020 2019

Revenue 46.2 60.0

Changes in inventory −0.9 −0.2

Other own work capitalized 0.1 0.1

Other operating income 2.3 4.4

Cost of materials 17.8 25.4

Personnel expenses 17.6 18.6

Depreciation, amortization 
and write-downs 2.3 2.8

Other operating expenses 12.5 16.3

Operating result −2.5 1.2

Financial result 6.3 14.9

Income taxes −0.1 3.4

Earnings after taxes 3.9 12.7

Other taxes 0.1 0.0

Net profit 3.8 12.7

Accumulated losses 
brought forward from the 
previous year 16.4 6.2

Net retained profits 20.2 18.9

Net assets and financial position
On 31 December 2020, LPKF AG’s total assets were 
EUR 94.0 million, EUR 2.8 million lower than in the pre-
vious year (EUR 96.9 million). A total of EUR 4.0 million 
was invested in tangible and intangible assets in 2020 
(previous year: EUR 1.1 million). A large portion of the 
additions (EUR 3.3 million) relate to the completion of 
the production hall for LIDE products for the Electronics 
segment at the Garbsen location, on which construction 
commenced in 2019.

Inventories and receivables both increased year-on-year. 
Inventories went up by EUR 1.5 million and receivables 
from affiliated companies increased by EUR 6.8 million. 
They mainly comprise financial receivables that are pri-
marily attributable to profit transfers and loans granted 
to subsidiaries. After a high-revenue month in Decem-
ber, trade receivables went up by EUR 0.3 million year-
on-year to EUR 3.6 million as of the reporting date.

Lower revenue and the resulting poorer earnings si
tuation brought cash and cash equivalents down by 
EUR 13.8 million to EUR 13.4 million on the balance 
sheet date.

As of 31 December 2020, equity amounted to EUR 72.1 
million, which is higher than in the previous year, and 
the equity ratio reached 76.7% (previous year: 73.0%). 
The scheduled repayment of the two mortgage-backed 
loans with a combined total of EUR 1.7 million that ex-
isted on the balance sheet date led to a further reduction 
in debt. Liabilities to banks amounted to EUR 1.5 million 
as of the balance sheet date compared with EUR 3.2 
million in the previous year. Other liabilities primarily 
include liabilities to affiliated companies resulting from 
both supply and service agreements and financing. Total 
liabilities now amount to EUR 18.4 million compared 
with EUR 20.6 million in the previous year.
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The company’s net assets and capital structure developed 
as follows year-on-year:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

EUR million in % EUR million in %

Long-term assets 37.9 40.3 36.3 37.5

Short-term assets 56.1 59.7 60.6 62.5

Assets 94.0 100.0 96.9 100.0

Equity 72.1 76.7 70.8 73.0

Current liabilities 21.9 23.3 26.1 21.8

Equity and liabilities 94.0 100.0 96.9 100.0

The net assets and financial position of LPKF AG can be 
described as extremely solid due to the high equity ratio 
and unutilized credit facilities.

Capi ta l  expendi ture
In addition to the LIDE clean room production facility 
for the Electronics segment at the Garbsen location 
(EUR 3.3 million), which was completed and approved 
in the fourth quarter, investments were made to re-
place property, plant and equipment. In total, invest-
ments in fixed assets amounted to EUR 4.0 million. 
LPKF AG’s research and development expenses 
amounted to EUR 7.4 million in 2020 (previous year: 
EUR 7.9 million).

Employees
LPKF AG had 271 employees as of the balance sheet 
date, 18 more than in the previous year.

Div idend
LPKF AG’s dividend policy sets down that 30% to 50% 
of free cash flow should be distributed as a dividend, 
taking into account that the current corporate situation, 
economic developments and potential investments, ac-
quisitions or disposal of assets may all lead to a devia-
tion from this policy.

LPKF did not generate a positive free cash flow in the 
2020 financial year as a result of the difficult economic 
conditions imposed by the pandemic. Due to the overall 
profitable business performance, the solid financing and 
the positive outlook, the Management Board and the 
Supervisory Board will nevertheless propose to the An-
nual General Meeting on 20 May 2021 to distribute a 
dividend of EUR 0.10 per share (previous year: EUR 0.10 
per share) and to carry forward the remaining retained 
profit of EUR 17,755,097.10 to new account.

Risk repor t
The business performance of LPKF AG is essentially 
exposed to the same risks as that of the LPKF Group. 
These risks are explained in the risk report (section 5) 
of the combined management report.
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O V E R A L L  A S S E S S M E N T  O F  T H E 
G R O U P ’ S  E C O N O M I C  S I T U A T I O N
The 2020 financial year for LPKF was largely dominated 
by one external factor: COVID-19. At the start of the 
year, LPKF viewed itself as on course to profitable 
growth. In February 2020, the Management Board had 
anticipated revenue and earnings growth. The global 
spread of COVID-19 triggered the biggest public health 
crisis and an accompanying recession and also affected 
LPKF’s customer industries. The company recognized 
the challenge early on and responded with targeted 
measures, with the health and safety of employees and 
business partners designated as a top priority. Further-
more, LPKF took responsible steps to ensure business 
continuity and protect the company’s strong financial 
position as effectively as possible. From the Manage-
ment Board’s point of view, even during the pandemic, 
the company successfully pressed ahead with crucial 
areas for long-term growth such as LIDE and AMP, but 
also with expansion of the customer and technology 
base in the Solar segment. The pandemic also advanced 
the pace of digitalization of the economy and placed 
emphasis on the importance of continued development 
in this area. Digitalization is one of the megatrends for 
the use of laser technology in electronics manufacturing 
and will generate opportunities for the LPKF Group.

After an expected weak first quarter, the company 
generated growth again in certain areas over the subse-
quent three quarters and continued to bring costs down, 
while also investing in new technologies and applications, 
including LIDE, and building up the capacities required 
for this. This has improved LPKF’s gross margin and cost 
structure. Profitability at the respective revenue volume, 
has improved compared with the past five years. At the 
same time, there has been more investment in new tech-
nologies and future growth than previously.

Orders on hand at the end of 2020 were above prior-year 
levels. The Management Board is monitoring the current 
order situation and the performance of the individual 
market segments very carefully, especially considering 
the unclear macroeconomic outlook, the economic 
repercussions of the coronavirus outbreak and the 
opportunities arising from the changing market environ-
ment. On the whole, there is still a strong interest in 
LPKF’s solutions. The Management Board has introduced 
measures to boost sales further and actively drive forward 
the commercialization of new products.

In light of the macroeconomic situation and partial 
underutilization, LPKF applied for short-time working 
with the Federal Employment Agency at all locations 
in Germany back in April 2020 and has made flexible 
use of this option. The Management Board also wants 
to ensure efficiency, reduce fixed costs and prepare 
the company both for a recession scenario and for a 
rapid recovery scenario of either the global economy 
or individual market segments and the opportunities 
this would entail.

The LPKF Group counters any liquidity risks with a prof-
itable business performance, a reduction in working cap-
ital, moderate debt, a diversified maturity profile and 
adequate liquidity reserves. The essential core of liquidity 
management is planning working capital and cash. As of 
31 December 2020, there are commitments for credit 
facilities totaling EUR 25.0 million that can be utilized in 
the event of additional liquidity requirements. The Man-
agement Board is maintaining its expectation that the 
Group has sufficient resources to continue its operating 
activities for at least another twelve months and that the 
going concern assumption remains appropriate as a basis 
of accounting.
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT

D I S C L O S U R E S  O N  P A R T I C U L A R L Y 
S I G N I F I C A N T  E V E N T S
Please see the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments for reportable events after the end of the report-
ing period.

REPORT ON OPPORTUNITIES

O P P O R T U N I T Y  M A N A G E M E N T
As a technology company, LPKF does business in a dy-
namic market environment. New opportunities con-
stantly arise from a changing technology landscape and 
new market requirements. Systematically identifying 
and leveraging these opportunities is a major factor for 
the sustainable growth of the LPKF Group. Opportunity 
management involves closely monitoring new markets 
and applications, evaluating market analyses and regu-
larly reviewing the focus of the product portfolio.

The business units and specialist product and innova-
tion managers (Group Development) systematically 
seek out new technologies and applications. The re-
sponsibility for identifying opportunities in the product 
groups and markets lies with the product managers and 
international subsidiaries. Results are regularly report-
ed to the company’s management.

Opportunities also arise from improved market penetra-
tion, service and further operating improvements. These 
opportunities are systematically collected, analyzed and 
addressed by customer relationship management.

If it is likely that opportunities will materialize, they are 
included in the planning and outlook for the coming 
years. The opportunities listed below focus on future 
trends or events that could result in a positive deviation 
for LPKF from the outlook given in the report on expected 
developments. Taking into account the existing estima-
tion uncertainty, the opportunities presented below can 
make a substantially positive contribution to earnings.

O P P O R T U N I T I E S

Further development of the existing­
product portfolio
LPKF updates its product portfolio on an ongoing basis, 
aligning this activity with signals from customers, tech-
nological progress outside the company and changing 
markets. At the same time, it also pursues its own ideas 
and innovations. The company thus aims to always be 
prepared to meet future customer needs, while at the 
same time actively creating new market demand through 
its own innovative and efficient processes. LPKF ensures 
its ability to innovate for the future by closely networking 
its development departments with product managers, 
sales and service, as well as providing a suitable R&D 
budget of approximately 10% of revenue per annum. The 
continuous development of the product portfolio can 
lead to changes in the product mix. These changes pres-
ent risks as well as opportunities.

New technology breakthroughs / expansion 
into new markets
In addition to its established markets, LPKF also focus-
es on attractive new markets that offer promising 
growth and income opportunities. Moreover, LPKF aims 
to open up new markets and further cement its pres-
ence in existing markets by developing new products. The 
purpose of continuous market and technology monitoring 
is to identify market opportunities at an early stage. Based 
on this monitoring, technology studies are conducted, 
which provide an opportunity to register industrial 
property rights on novel solutions, among others.

Takeover of external companies with strategically 
relevant expertise
In the Management Board’s opinion, LPKF has a broad 
product portfolio and many ideas for further developing 
products and uncovering new market opportunities. This 
is why organic growth is at the forefront of its corporate 
strategy. Nonetheless, the company also pursues op-
portunities for external growth that could come from 
acquiring patents, companies or personnel with strate-
gically relevant expertise.
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Impact of the megatrends of miniaturization­
and digitalization
The production methods developed by LPKF enable the 
miniaturization of components and often have commer-
cial and quality advantages compared with conventional 
production techniques. Aboveaverage growth is possi-
ble if customers decide to abandon traditional methods 
in favor of LPKF’s equipment. Especially in a rapidly 
changing market environment, many of LPKF’s custom-
ers see the need to make larger investments in their 
in-house development and to launch new products. This 
benefits sales of LPKF products to development labo-
ratories. Both the increasing digitalization of production 
and LPKF’s intensive development activities are making 
laser-based machinery ever more attractive to custom-
ers than established technologies, including for mass 
production.

Independence of individual markets as a result 
of broad positioning
LPKF’s strategy to build on its core competencies and 
expand into different markets has a potentially stabilizing 
effect against the backdrop of cyclical markets. The var-
ious markets served by LPKF often have asynchronous 
and different industry cycles. This strategy also offers 
low sensitivity to the technological cycles of LPKF’s own 
products.

Improving market penetration
LPKF works to continuously improve its market pene-
tration in different regions and sectors, and for potential 
applications and customer groups. Experience and cus-
tomer relationships are exploited to find additional areas 
of application and sales potential. Going forward, LPKF 
intends to further expand and generally professionalize 
this systematic, often comprehensive market develop-
ment approach in order to achieve more profitable 
growth with both new and successfully established prod-
ucts. This includes the sale of machinery, services and – 
increasingly – production services as well.

Operating improvements
Potential for improvements in costs and use of the com-
pany’s capital is continuously monitored and actively 
pursued. This includes improving working capital and 
cash flow over the long term. The level of overall cost 
discipline throughout the company viewed as high by 
the Management Board is being maintained. Programs 
aimed at reducing inventories and trade receivables are 
continuing. These measures make a significant contri-
bution to maintaining and enhancing the company’s 
competitiveness and profitability.

Business organization
The consistent alignment of the corporate structure to 
the corporate strategy has created one of the key con-
ditions for exploiting opportunities for further growth. 
The Group’s organization and internal processes are 
continually future-proofed, made leaner and faster, and 
focused on market proximity and profitable growth. Go-
ing forward, LPKF intends to use economies of scale 
more intensively and, at the same time, make company 
administration leaner and more efficient.

Utilizing opportunities arising from COVID-19 
challenges
The pandemic is intensifying activity in the digital econ-
omy and underlining the importance of digitalization and 
development of the industrial Internet of Things. This is 
reinforcing one of the megatrends for the use of laser 
technologies. As electronic and non-electronic devices 
become more powerful and more multifunctional, this 
increases the number of electronic components – in-
cluding antennas, sensors and MEMS – they require. 
This has the potential to increase demand for LPKF’s 
production solutions. Furthermore, the reinforcement 
of the medical industry may well give rise to new oppor-
tunities for the use of LPKF technologies in medical 
applications. There has been an acceleration in virtual 
working with our customers for the launch of new tech-
nologies, and in the long term this has the potential to 
bring innovations to market more quickly. Additional 
potential could also arise from more flexible working 
arrangements for the company’s workforce.
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RISK REPORT

D E S C R I P T I O N  O F  T H E  I N T E R N A L 
C O N T R O L  S Y S T E M

Overview
The internal control system (ICS for short) comprises 
the principles, procedures and measures introduced by 
LPKF management that focus on the organizational im-
plementation of management decisions and legal re-
quirements with the aim of safeguarding the company’s 
assets and boosting its operating efficiency.

The ongoing development of the ICS involves analyzing 
the company’s functional areas on an ongoing basis, for 
example through audits, workshops and internal audits, 
and assessing the probability of losses occurring in 
these areas and the extent of potential losses.

The Management Board organizes the structure of the 
individual units and constantly adjusts workflows based 
on the findings gathered from the ICS. Essential princi-
ples that apply include separation of functions, the prin-
ciple of dual control and restricted access to IT systems. 
Examples of these can be seen in signature regulations, 
process workflows, approval requirements for signifi-
cant transactions and IT access authorizations.

The results of internal audits are presented to the Su-
pervisory Board and the findings are processed in a 
timely manner. Follow-up audits ensure that the agreed 
implementation of the findings is monitored and docu-
mented regularly. Implementation is the responsibility 
of the Management Board.

The risk and opportunity management system is an in-
tegral part of the ICS.

Risk management system
Risk management is pursued actively at LPKF, as is op-
portunity management, which is treated separately. The 
company employs a number of reporting tools for this.

Risk management at LPKF involves the formulation and 
implementation of measures that are suitable to identify 
existing risks, hedge them, reduce their probability of 
occurring, mitigate them or consciously accept them to 
a reasonable extent. This ensures that risks are identi-
fied and controlled proactively. The risk management 
system is interlinked with compliance management.

An international firm of public auditors performs inter-
nal auditing tasks for the entire LPKF Group. These 
audits are based on a multi-year audit plan. Four sched-
uled audits were conducted in the Group in the 2020 
financial year.

The risk early warning system in particular is always a 
fundamental element in the planning and implementa-
tion of LPKF’s business strategy. Strategic planning 
and the associated reporting system are particularly 
important.

The Management Board of LPKF AG is responsible for 
risk policy and the internal control and risk management 
system. The second- and third-level local management 
staff implement these control functions in each of the 
Group’s organizational units. In this way, the responsible 
employees can use suitable and effective means to iden-
tify new risks quickly and directly where they arise and 
then report them to the risk manager. A central data-
base is used for reporting.

A risk report is submitted to the Management Board and 
the Supervisory Board on a monthly basis. In addition 
to regular reporting on identified risks, ad hoc reports 
must be prepared as needed on all risks that occur un-
expectedly. The risk manager reports directly to the 
Management Board. The risk management system is 
subject to scheduled inspections via internal auditing.

As in previous years, in the 2020 financial year existing 
and potential risks were reassessed and the reporting 
system was reviewed to ascertain its efficiency in man-
aging risks. A database-supported reporting system has 
been installed.
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Description of the main features of the internal 
control and risk management system relevant to 
the accounting process (Section 289 (5) German 
Commercial Code)
The internal control and risk management system 
relevant for the accounting process is designed to en-
sure proper accounting and the associated financial 
reporting.

The workflows in the Group are structured around pro-
cesses and are set up identically for the most part 
thanks to use of the same ERP system in key units of 
the Group. Automatic process controls are integrated 
in this system and protected from unintentional changes 
through an IT-based authorization concept.

The LPKF Group fundamentally applies the dual control 
principle on the basis that the general division of admin-
istration, execution, accounting and approval functions 
and the sharing of these functions across different em-
ployees and / or departments reduces the possibility of 
fraud. As a manual control it also underlies the process 
descriptions, signature regulations, guidelines and work 
instructions.

Since 2019, the local finance functions have been re-
porting directly to the central head of financing at the 
headquarters.

Key corporate governance functions, Group accounting 
and internal auditing for LPKF AG are based at the Group 
headquarters. Explanatory notes on the risk manage-
ment system can be found in section 5.1.2.

The entries recorded at LPKF AG and the subsidiaries 
provide the data used to prepare the consolidated finan-
cial statements. LPKF secures the quality of this data 
by selecting suitable staff, regularly training employees 
and enlisting the help of specialists. Before being includ-
ed in the consolidated financial statements, the data is 

subject to automatic and manual controls. The consol-
idated financial statements are prepared in a system 
that is separate from the ERP system to which only a 
limited group of authorized persons has access. In fur-
ther developing the systems, the focus is on automating 
standard procedures to the greatest extent possible. 
The annual financial statements of the parent company 
and the consolidated financial statements are subject 
to a statutory audit, one component of which is to check 
whether the Management Board has met the require-
ments of Section 91 (2) of the German Stock Corpora-
tion Act on setting up an appropriately structured risk 
early warning system, and whether the risk early warning 
system is suitable for identifying developments that 
would endanger the company’s status as a going con-
cern at an early stage.

Based on the organizational, control and monitoring 
structures defined by the Management Board, the inter-
nal control system supports the goal of a complete re-
cording and proper presentation of transactions in the 
company’s accounts.

However, despite these measures, personal judgments, 
defective controls and criminal acts in particular cannot 
be fully excluded. This could limit the effectiveness of 
the internal control system, which means that even the 
strict application of regulations provides no absolute 
guarantee for the correct, complete and punctual re-
cording of all the facts in the accounts.
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S P E C I F I C  R I S K S
The risk management process currently involves dealing 
in detail with the specific risks listed in the table below, 
which could have a significant impact on the LPKF 
Group’s business, as well as its net assets, financial 
position and results of operations. There have been 
some positive changes to the risks since the previous 
year.

The following risks in particular are given with high pri-
ority and are shown in the table according to risk-mini-
mizing measures (unweighted net presentation)*:

The risk of “technological developments” that was listed 
in the previous year was reduced substantially in 2019. 
The probability of occurrence was reduced further 
during the reporting year, which means that the risk is 
now no longer considered a high priority and so is no 
longer reported on here.

The acute risk of “recession due to COVID-19” is being 
monitored more actively than provided for by the risk 
management system. The company is reviewing its po-
tential impact on all business segments. LPKF took very 
early action to set up an internal task force. Its job is to 
provide advice on a continuous basis on the current 
situation and steps taken to protect employees and the 
company, and to implement any measures announced. 
This move allowed LPKF to respond to the pandemic 
early and with a firm hand, introducing a raft of mea-
sures to protect the health of employees and their fam-
ilies. Employees have largely been working from home 
since mid-March 2020. The company locations are di-
vided into sections without physical interaction, and 
precautionary hygiene measures are being adapted on 

Specific risk
(segment) Qualitative probability of occurrence Possible financial effects

Category In % Category Loss amount

Financial consequences of 
dependence on individual 
customers
(Electronics. Welding. Solar) POSSIBLE

over 25% and up 
to 50%

MODERATE
(significant)

up to  
EUR 5 million

(over EUR 5 million)

Market acceptance of new 
technologies
(Electronics. Welding. Solar) POSSIBLE

over 25% and up 
to 50%

MODERATE
(significant)

up to  
EUR 5 million

(over EUR 5 million)

Personnel risks relating 
to key functions
(Electronics) LESS LIKELY up to 25% SIGNIFICANT over EUR 5 million

Recession due to COVID-19
(all segments) Reviewed and assessed regularly outside the control system schematic

*	 Previous year’s figures are shown in parentheses if they have changed

a situation-specific basis and implemented systemati-
cally. These measures have meant that LPKF was able 
to – and is continuing to – run its business operations 
uninterrupted, including production at all locations.

As part of its risk management strategy, LPKF is contin-
uously monitoring the supply chain to identify any po-
tential risks. Suitable measures are defined and intro-
duced on the basis of a risk assessment. The catalog of 
measures relating specifically to the COVID-19 risk in-
clude monitoring and identifying at-risk suppliers, in-
creased communication within the affected supply 
chain, short-notice stock flow adjustments and the use 
of alternative components.

Order and sales risks are currently discussed weekly by 
the Management Board individually with all business unit 
managers and appropriate measures are being derived.

Credit risk management to assess potential customer 
default risks is being performed even more actively than 
before.
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LPKF is protected against material payment defaults by 
a broad-based trade credit insurance policy. Further 
safeguards have been put in place through a combina-
tion of credit checks, agreement of specific payment 
terms and a policy requiring customers to make advance 
payments before delivery.

With the planned cost measures, the Management 
Board has taken into account the level of flexibility that 
LPKF requires to respond very quickly to the anticipated 
uptick in demand – whenever it occurs – and conse-
quently further enhance its competitiveness. The com-
pany does not consider there to be any risks that jeop-
ardize its continued existence at present, and no such 
risks for the future can currently be identified.

General business risks are monitored regularly along 
with all other risks and reassessed where necessary. 
To provide an overview of the possible general business 
risks, they are set out below alongside the high priority 
risks.

Other risks that are currently unknown or that are cur-
rently (still) considered negligible could also have a neg-
ative impact on business.

Dependence on individual customers
Cause
In the Solar segment, larger-scale projects are often 
completed with a small number of customers. In the 
Electronics and Welding segments, too, there is gener-
ally a certain dependence on decisions made on the 
part of a few major customers for laser-based technol-
ogies who provide their suppliers with corresponding 
instructions. These instructions can have an impact on 
LPKF’s business with these suppliers. Significant cus-
tomer projects were postponed in 2020 on account of 
the pandemic.

If the company were to fail to land individual major proj-
ects, this could significantly affect the financial success 
of these business segments.

Measures
LPKF is continuing to work on making the organization 
more flexible to ensure that it can anticipate larger proj-
ect-related fluctuations in the business, and made sig-
nificant progress on this in 2020. In the solar business 
in particular, the agreed payment terms and other con-
tractual conditions provide a certain level of protection 
against losses in connection with cancellations and 
payment defaults.

Ef fects  on economic s i tuat ion
Possible order cancellations can have a negative impact 
on the Group’s revenue and earnings if, for example, 
capacities cannot be wound down fast enough or uti-
lized by other business units. Taking into account the 
overall circumstances, the occurrence of this risk is 
considered possible. Due to the current order situation, 
any possible loss is categorized as moderate (see table 
on specific risks).

Market acceptance
Cause
As a technology company, LPKF primarily supplies man-
ufacturing solutions for current technical issues. There 
is a risk that the demand for LPKF’s manufacturing tech-
nologies will be adversely affected by changes in end 
customer markets or that markets will not accept the 
new technologies developed by LPKF at all or only to a 
limited degree. In the markets, some of which can be 
quite cyclical, there is an additional risk when the ca-
pacity and willingness to invest in new technology di-
minishes temporarily in response to the state of the 
economy. The emergence of competing techniques can 
lead to declining revenue and income, particularly if 
these techniques prove to be technologically and / or 
economically advantageous.

The competitive situation and rapidly changing techno-
logical requirements are associated with risks that apply 
to all the segments. LPKF’s success depends significant-
ly on the speed and quality with which new products 
can be developed to market readiness and customers 
can be convinced of the developed technologies.

Measures
Permanent follow-up by the Management Board is an 
integral part of the risk management system to review 
the sustainable value of new developments and inte-
grate these findings in the product strategy. This fol-
low-up also involves the business unit heads and tech-
nology management. The development of high-quality 
products in a structured, expeditious flow of develop-
ment projects is underpinned by a structured idea gen-
eration and development process. In addition to fre-
quently achieving cost benefits by investing in LPKF’s 
technology, the company’s customers can also receive 
competitive benefits and harness the associated market 
opportunities. This requires continuous engagement 
with the market and close contact with end customers. 
This approach has made it possible to repeatedly re-
place established technologies with laser-based pro-
cesses. New applications are developed and promoted 
for existing technologies. The technologies are also 
protected by patents.
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Ef fects  on economic s i tuat ion
On the whole, innovation is critically important for the 
LPKF Group. The competitive situation and rapidly 
changing technological requirements call for a flexible 
and dynamic development process. The probability of 
occurrence of market acceptance risks is currently 
viewed as possible, and the financial effects are consid-
ered moderate (see table on specific risks).

Personnel risks
Cause
Demand for qualified technical personnel in the me-
chanical engineering and the manufacturing industry 
in general – especially for high-tech companies – is 
extremely high. The situation with regard to finding 
suitable candidates to fill positions has become more 
demanding in recent years as a result of the growing 
skills shortage, particularly in technical departments, 
even though, from the Management Board’s point of 
view, LPKF’s reputation and technology still make it an 
attractive employer – particularly for engineers and 
software developers.

Due to the fact that LPKF’s staff are highly qualified, all 
segments are exposed to the risk of losing key employ-
ees with important expertise as a result of head hunting 
and not being able to fill vacancies in a timely manner.

Measures
An attractive working environment and development 
opportunities within the LPKF Group are offered to em-
ployees to retain top performers at the company. Par-
ticular emphasis is placed on individual flexibility, re-
muneration that reflects performance and a good 
working environment. Executives have an important 
role to play in maintaining employee satisfaction and 
retaining staff. Leadership issues have been the focal 
point of many discussions and meetings, including at 
management events. Against the backdrop of events 
in the reporting year, LPKF offered its employees and 
prospective job candidates a safe working environment 
and highlighted development prospects for the compa-
ny. In the reporting period, LPKF also responded very 
quickly under the circumstances with health protection 
measures during the pandemic, extensive home work-
ing arrangements and management leadership training. 
LPKF topped up the short-time working allowance to 
100% of an employee’s net salary and, on the basis of 
the existing works agreement, paid a share of profits 
to employees in Germany in 2020 as well. This boosted 
employee retention even more, and this is also being 
reflected in the high participation rate in the employee 
participation program. HR marketing was continued 
over the reporting period under the unique circum-
stances to enhance LPKF’s profile on the labor market 

as an attractive employer among small and medium-
sized high-tech mechanical engineering firms.

Ef fects  on economic s i tuat ion
Thanks to its attractive working environment, contacts 
with universities and the company’s growing profile in 
the laser sector, only in a few cases to date has LPKF 
had difficulties attracting adequately trained staff. 
Strong demand for internships and traineeships and the 
number of unsolicited applications received are evi-
dence of this. However, there continues to be a risk in 
all segments associated with the loss of key employees 
with important expertise as a result of head hunting. 
The probability of this risk occurring is currently esti-
mated as less likely. The financial effects can be de-
scribed as significant (see table on specific risks).

General business risks
Cause
LPKF operates internationally in a fast-paced and ev-
er-changing environment. The company’s customers are 
exposed to considerable cost and competitive pressures 
as well as curtailed investment budgets. Business in 
LPKF’s target markets is cyclical and project-driven, with 
particularly strong fluctuations in the electronics indus-
try as well as the automotive and solar industries.

Economic fluctuations have a strong impact on invest-
ment in production equipment. Customers’ risk appetite 
and willingness to expand capacities or introduce new 
technologies is limited, especially in markets outside 
Asia. New investments are often only made when future 
utilization of such equipment appears assured by tangi-
ble orders from customers.

LPKF is also exposed to risks associated with a rapidly 
changing technological environment. The availability of 
high-quality components enables new players to bring 
to market cost-efficient competitive products or alter-
native techniques.

The systematic development of new technologies and 
business segments is generally associated with the risk 
that the planned business model may fail to meet its 
targets. There is also the risk that new technologies may 
not be accepted by the market overall or may be accept-
ed only after a considerable time lag.

Product liability risks in connection with patents and 
warranty of title arise to different degrees in all seg-
ments. There is also the risk that recall costs may be 
incurred.

Increasingly long lead times and occasional bottle-
necks in the supply chain also need to be factored into 
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purchasing. This can lead to delays in delivery and, in 
the worst cases, to contractual penalties.

Last but not least, risks may also arise from possible 
changes in laws, e.g. with respect to the import of cap-
ital goods to China or to other important markets such 
as the US.

Measures
In order to continue expanding the various business 
areas, it is important to have a robust innovation and 
product management system with state-of-the-art tech-
nology and to be in close contact with customers in 
close proximity to the market. Overall, around 10% of 
revenue will also be invested in the new and further 
development of products for the future.

In order to compensate for fluctuations in the utilization 
of capacities, LPKF is focusing on flexible structures in 
production and on collaboration between the LPKF pro-
duction locations. In addition, peak capacity utilization 
levels are covered by way of external production service 
providers and recourse to temporary workers. In the 
case of lower capacity utilization levels, the depth of 
production can be increased.

Capacity utilization in the Solar segment dropped con-
siderably over the course of the year due to project 
postponements for reasons associated with COVID-19. 
Thanks to a newly negotiated framework agreement in 
September and incoming orders associated with this, 
the capacity utilization at the relevant location in Suhl 
will be ramped back up in the foreseeable future. A new 
technology, the LTP process, was also developed for 
the digital printing of functional pastes. Due to signifi-
cant reluctance to invest in the first major target mar-
ket, the first revenue contributions from this are not 
expected until 2021 onwards. LTP is expected to reduce 
the Solar segment’s dependence on the solar industry 
in the long term.

Existing product liability risks are covered by insurance 
policies where possible. The same applies to potential 
product recalls.

Ef fects  on economic s i tuat ion
On account of the measures already in place and in the 
pipeline, occurrence of the risks described above is 
classed as very low, such that these general business 
risks are not considered a high priority.

Other risks
In addition to the significant risks described above, the 
Group is also exposed to the following risks, among 
others:

Exchange rate  f luctuat ions
Cause
LPKF is exposed to foreign currency risks on account of 
its strong export focus and its international customer 
base. The exchange rates between foreign currencies 
and the euro can undergo major fluctuations. For LPKF, 
the main fluctuations are those with regard to the US 
dollar (USD) and the Chinese renminbi (CNY). This risk 
also includes obligations from hedging relationships 
entered into that arise from delays in the underlying 
transaction (e.g. late receipt of a foreign currency pay-
ment). As a rule, the LPKF Group endeavors to conclude 
contracts in euros, but some businesses transactions 
with international customers are also billed in foreign 
currencies. If business transactions are invoiced in eu-
ros, exchange rate volatility can have an indirect impact 
on LPKF’s competitiveness because most of its compet-
itors are not from the eurozone and material costs at 
LPKF are incurred in euros.

Measures
Foreign currency risks in the operating and financial 
areas of the company are identified, monitored and re-
ported on continuously. To protect itself against ex-
change rate risks from foreign currency transactions, 
where possible LPKF creates natural hedges through 
corresponding sourcing in these currencies. To cover 
any residual material foreign currency exposure, LPKF 
also engages in hedging in the form of forward exchange 
transactions. This part of risk management is handled 
centrally by the parent company in Garbsen, Germany, 
and where required also on behalf of subsidiaries. Most 
of the foreign currency cash flow is used either for pro-
curing materials in the same currency or hedged by 
engaging in forward exchange transactions.

Effects on economic situation
Fluctuations in exchange rates can have a moderately 
positive or negative effect on earnings and on compet-
itiveness. Counter measures are permanently reviewed 
and implemented as far as possible.

Explanations on risks from the use of financial instru-
ments can also be found in the notes to the consolidated 
statements in the “Other disclosures” section.
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IT  r isks
Cause
In terms of its information, its international activities 
and the IT systems used for processing, the Group is 
potentially exposed to the risk of industrial espionage 
or disruptions by internal or external perpetrators, just 
as much as other innovative companies.

Measures
By implementing redundant IT infrastructures, LPKF 
protects itself against risks that may occur in the event 
of a systems failure or natural disaster. Security is also 
ensured by means of a restrictive policy for granting 
access authorizations to systems and information as 
well as by maintaining distributed backups of busi-
ness-critical data. The company uses various IT security 
technologies to mitigate the risk of unauthorized access 
to company data. In addition to technical measures, 
LPKF also provides training to all employees. IT security 
measures are evaluated by way of audits conducted by 
both internal staff and external consultants. In this con-
text, LPKF adheres to national and international stan-
dards. The results are structured for management re-
porting and serve as a planning and decision-making 
tool for future risk management. There is a separate 
budget planning for IT security at LPKF. In the past fi-
nancial year, the main focus was on making sure all the 
relevant technical bases were covered to ensure that 
employees could work from home during the pandemic. 
IT security technology was aligned more heavily to re-
mote working and all the required services were provid-
ed to employees remotely.

Effects on economic situation
The performance of so many security measures is some-
times costly, but results in LPKF being able to classify the 
probability of occurrence of such a risk and possible loss 
as moderate. LPKF’s insurance policy covers it against 
cyber risks. A small risk that cannot be fully excluded still 
exists with regard to general IT security due to the rapid 
pace of continuing technical developments.

M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  A S S E S S M E N T  
O F  T H E  G R O U P ’ S  R I S K  S I T U A T I O N
The sectors relevant to the company exhibited different 
trends during the financial year just ended. Although 
2021 will continue to be shaped by the repercussions 
of the global pandemic, economic research institutes 
are forecasting a slight upturn in global economic 
growth year-on-year. On the whole, current events are 
making planning reliability and the foreseeability of busi-
ness trends a lot tougher in most business segments. 
Despite a more than 30% decline in revenue, the com-
pany’s solid financial and earnings position lends sta-
bility to the financial situation and is allowing LPKF to 
continue to pursue all its planned investments. The 
various individual risks have only a limited influence on 
the overall risk situation of the Group.

A review of the overall risk situation of the LPKF Group 
concluded that there are currently no concrete risks 
jeopardizing the Group’s existence as a going concern.

LPKF AG’s auditor also reviewed the risk early warning 
system with regard to potential risks to the Company’s 
continued existence in accordance with the Section 
317 (4) in conjunction with Section 91 (2) of the German 
Stock Corporation Act.
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REPORT ON EXPECTED 
DEVELOPMENTS

O V E R A L L  A S S E S S M E N T  O F  T H E 
G R O U P ’ S  E X P E C T E D  D E V E L O P M E N T

Economic environment
After the historic slump last year, economic experts 
believe that the global economy will recover and again 
generate growth rates. Nevertheless, 2021 and 2022 
will continue to be shaped by the impact of the pande
mic. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) is expecting 
the global economy to grow by 5.6% in 2021 and 4.2% 
in 2022. However, these rates of growth would be lower 
in the event of a possible third wave of infections and 
the associated economic impact of this.

Based on a forecast by the Kiel Institute for the World 
Economy (IfW), advanced economies will increase their 
economic output by 4.4% in 2021 and 3.6% in 2022. 
Growth rates of 3.7% for 2021 and 3.5% for 2022 are 
expected for the US, after a lesser decline in the previ-
ous year. After a significant decline in 2020, the euro-
zone will recover at a stronger pace with growth of 4.9% 
in 2021 and 4.0% in 2022.

The German economy is recovering at a similar rate to 
the eurozone as a whole. The IfW is projecting growth 
of 3.1% for 2021 and 4.6% for 2022. At the end of Janu-
ary 2021, the German government lowered its economic 
forecast for the current year from 4.4% to just 3.0% due 
to the impact of the pandemic, and is assuming that the 
German economy will not return to its pre-pandemic 
level until mid-2022.

The IfW believes that regional differences in economic 
performance among emerging economies will continue 
into 2021 and 2022. On the whole, a strong recovery of 
8.0% is expected for 2021 and a high figure of 5.5% still 
in 2022. But China and India will be the main drivers of 
this growth. After economic activity in China already 
started to pick up over the course of 2020, the IMF is 
anticipating GDP growth of 9.2% in 2021 and around 
5.9% in 2022. India’s economy suffered a significant 
decline of 7.9% last year. The IfW is forecasting a strong 
economic upturn this year with GDP growth of 11.6% in 
2021 and 8.8% in 2022.

According to an IfW assessment, the impact of the pan-
demic on future economic development will lead to 
lower levels of investment in the long term as a result 
of loss of income, lower sales forecasts and a reduction 
in equity. An improvement in general conditions for in-
ternational trade is anticipated with the change of ad-
ministration in the US, and the EU and UK managed to 
agree a Brexit trade deal at the eleventh hour.

The business performance of LPKF AG is influenced not 
only by general economic conditions, but also by devel-
opments in the electronics industry and consumer elec-
tronics in particular, the automotive industry, the solar 
industry and the plastics industry.

In the electronics industry, after declining substantially 
in the previous year smartphone sales will pick up by 
11.4% in 2021. Gartner puts this down to pent-up de-
mand and the dissemination of 5G technology.

The German Automobile Industry Association (VDA) is 
anticipating a significant global recovery on the auto-
motive markets in 2021. The global sales volume is ex-
pected to rise by 9% to 73.8 million units, but this would 
still put the figure much lower than the pre-pandemic 
level. A study by the Prognos Institut indicates that the 
German automotive industry will be a strong contributor 
with growth of around 15%, but this will still compensate 
for only half of the downturn in 2020.

Significant global growth in installed output is also ex-
pected in the solar industry in 2021. IHS Markit is pro-
jecting growth of 30%. Electricity generation from PV 
systems is therefore following the general global trend 
toward renewable energies. IHS Markit is initially antic-
ipating higher prices for solar modules in 2021. They are 
then expected to drop back down in the second half of 
the year and drive investment in PV systems.

The German Mechanical Engineering Industry Associa-
tion (VDMA) is forecasting revenue growth in the Ger-
man plastics sector of around 5% for 2021 and 10% for 
2022, before figures return to their pre-pandemic level 
in 2023. IHS Markit is expecting global plastic consump-
tion to continue to rise. Factors contributing to this in-
clude demand for new lightweight materials in automo-
tive manufacturing and new applications in medical 
technology and electrical engineering.

The VDMA is projecting an increase in production in the 
German engineering industry of 4% in 2021 to around 
EUR 202 billion. It does not expect the level of around 
EUR 226 billion seen before the pandemic in 2019 to be 
achieved again until early 2023.
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Group performance
Looking to the future, LPKF does not expect COVID-19 
to have a lasting impact on the global economy. As early 
as in the second half of 2020, in regions where the 
pandemic was successfully suppressed (e.g. China) 
LPKF already started to see a recovery in economic ac-
tivity and resurgence in demand. However, it is possible 
that more infectious viral mutations of SARS-CoV-2 will 
continue to have a profoundly negative effect on eco-
nomic performance, at least in the first half of the year. 
On the whole, the Management Board anticipates mod-
erate overall economic growth in global GDP in the cur-
rent year. The company is expecting key customer in-
dustries to continue to face challenges in connection 
with COVID-19 and sector-specific structural changes. 
Nevertheless, LPKF does expect conditions to improve 
in the 2021 financial year. This applies in particular to 
business areas that are benefiting from the advancing 
digitalization of the economy and industry, which is help-
ing customers to make their production operations more 
resource efficient and energy efficient.

General political conditions have also improved with the 
recent presidential election in the US and the trade deal 
between the EU and the UK.

The strategic focus of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is on 
the development of innovative technologies that have 
the potential to sustainably change products, compo-
nents and production in the electronics and semicon-
ductor industries and beyond.

Thanks to the strategic and operational measures that 
the Management Board has successfully implemented 
over the past three years, the company today is finan-
cially stable and is demonstrating sustained profitability. 
LPKF is able to expand its operating activities further 
through a stronger focus on customer needs and oper-
ational improvements. Investments in the development 
of new technologies and applications are being fully 
implemented despite the coronavirus crisis. The Group’s 
significantly increased diversification in recent years has 
considerably reduced its dependence on individual mar-
ket segments and customers.

The Management Board still sees significant potential to 
increase the company’s revenue and earnings. This po-
tential arises from the technologies that LPKF has mas-
tered, its ability to integrate them in high-performance 
solutions, the extraordinary expertise of its employees 
and the resulting value contribution for its customers.

The Management Board anticipates the following devel-
opments for the future:

•	 Megatrends such as miniaturization, digitalization 
and clean production methods will help to 
establish the laser as a dominant tool. This trend 
has the potential to be reinforced further by the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

•	 Demand among customers for efficient, 
laser-based solutions for the production of 
components and products will remain high. The 
number of applications will grow. New product 
developments and sales channels will become 
established.

•	 LIDE technology will be used for the first time for 
volume manufacturing, e.g. in the semicon-ductor, 
display and other industries and will be established 
permanently as a key technology

•	 Green energy will continue to gain in importance 
and increase the demand for efficient solar 
modules.

LPKF assumes that the company’s technologies will 
continue to be required to produce innovative and sus-
tainable products in the electronics, semiconductor and 
solar industries. A large proportion of the company’s 
revenue is dependent on customers who want to intro-
duce new products or production technologies and re-
quire LPKF’s laser technology to do so. This business is 
expected to take place as planned or with delays in the 
worst-case scenario. Pure customer capacity expan-
sions, on the other hand, are dependent on short- and 
medium-term demand from end customers.

The Management Board will continue to drive forward 
the company’s growth through targeted measures, even 
during the coronavirus pandemic:

•	 LPKF will continue to invest in technological 
development in order to extend its leading position 
in laser-based micromaterial processing. In doing 
so, the company will address the specific 
parameters that drive economic success for its 
customers, thereby creating a tangible competitive 
advantage for them.

•	 LPKF will specifically drive the development of 
technologies that help customers to conserve 
resources and make their production operations 
more energy efficient.

•	 LIDE technology will be expanded further and its 
establishment in various application areas will be 
ramped up.

•	 The company will ramp up its sales activities and 
continue to build up market penetration in the 
individual segments.
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•	 After-sales service will be further expanded as an 
additional growth platform.

•	 The Management Board will also target potential 
growth through M&A activities, but only where the 
value enhancement generated by these activities is 
clearly identifiable.

LPKF as a company will retain its agility and flexibility so 
that it is able to respond quickly to a range of macroeco-
nomic developments. Overall, LPKF expects further prof-
itable growth in the medium term, even in a volatile 
economic environment. The company is – and will re-
main – well positioned financially, and has the necessary 
funds for investments and further growth.

Development of significant indicators and outlook
2020 f inancia l  year
Revenue reached EUR 96.2 million in the 2020 financial 
year, falling short of the previous year’s figure by 31.3%. 
Despite the decline in revenue, continued cost discipline 
meant that the company achieved EBIT of EUR 7.5 mil-
lion (previous year: EUR 19.2 million). The EBIT margin 
shrank from 13.7% to 7.8%.

ROCE reached 9.0%, which was below the target 
figure.

There was a deterioration in capital tied up in working 
capital over the past year. It reached a figure of EUR 20.5 
million by the end of the reporting period. Lower and 
delayed advance payments in the Solar segment was an 
important contributing factor here. The lower revenue 
drove the net working capital ratio up from 12.2% to 
21.3%.

At EUR 102.2 million, incoming orders during the report-
ing period were 10.3% lower than in the previous year 
(EUR 114.0 million). Orders on hand of EUR 38.3 million 
at the end of the year were EUR 6.0 million higher than 
in the previous year. This increase is primarily attribut-
able to a major order in the Solar segment.

2021 f inancia l  year
LPKF does not expect COVID-19 to have a lasting im-
pact on the global economy. However, it is likely that 
more infectious viral mutations will continue to have a 
negative effect on economic performance over the cur-
rent financial year as well. On the whole, the Manage-
ment Board anticipates moderate overall economic 
growth in 2021.

Provided that the global economy remains stable, LPKF 
is expecting an increase in revenue and earnings in all 
segments in the current financial year. In addition, there 
will be increased growth impetus from LIDE technology. 
The level of uncertainty surrounding the pandemic 
means that a quantitative forecast is only possible with 
limited reliability at present.

The company is expecting a reduction in working capital 
and stable development of the error rate compared with 
2020. ROCE is generally expected to follow the earnings 
trend, and free cash flow is expected to increase.

Regarding the performance indicators, the expectation 
is that LPKF AG will essentially develop in line with the 
Group’s forecast.

Subsequent  years  up to  2024
For subsequent years, the company continues to ex-
pect sustainable, profitable growth in all segments. 
Taking into account stronger revenue and earnings 
contributions from LIDE, LPKF continues to expect 
consolidated revenue of more than EUR 360 million 
and an EBIT margin of at least 25% for 2024, with fur-
ther growth after that.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
DECL ARATION
The corporate governance declaration pursuant to Sec-
tions 289f and 315d of the German Commercial Code 
is part of the combined management report. The decla-
ration is available for the public on LPKF AG’s website 
and included in the corporate governance report.

TAKEOVER-REL ATED DISCLOSURES
The takeover-related disclosures required under Section 
289a and Section 315a of the German Commercial Code 
are shown below. The subsequent explanation of these 
disclosures also meets the requirements of an explan-
atory report as defined in Section 176 (1) sentence 1 of 
the German Stock Corporation Act.

C O M P O S I T I O N  O F  S U B S C R I B E D 
C A P I T A L
On 31 December 2020, LPKF AG’s subscribed capital 
was EUR 24,496,546.00. The share capital is made up 
of 24,496,546 no-par value ordinary bearer shares (no-
par shares). No preferred shares have been issued. One 
no-par share represents a pro-rata interest of EUR 1.00 
in the share capital and (with the exception of own 
shares) one vote at the Annual General Meeting. The 
rights and obligations of the no-par shares comply with 
the relevant requirements of the German Stock Corpo-
ration Act, specifically in Sections 12, 53a et seq., 118 
et seq. and 186. Both the exercising of voting rights and 
the transfer of shares are subject solely to legal limits.

D I R E C T  A N D  I N D I R E C T  I N T E R E S T S  I N 
T H E  S H A R E  C A P I T A L  E X C E E D I N G  1 0 % 
O F  T H E  V O T I N G  R I G H T S
To the best of LPKF’s knowledge, there are no direct or 
indirect interests in the share capital exceeding 10% of 
the voting rights as of the reporting date. In June 2020, 
Jörg Bantleon informed the company that the proportion 
of voting rights assigned to the shares that he holds 
directly and indirectly in LPKF AG had fallen to 0% on 
28 May 2020.

L E G A L  R E G U L A T I O N S  A N D 
P R O V I S I O N S  O F  T H E  A R T I C L E S  O F 
I N C O R P O R A T I O N  O N  A P P O I N T I N G  
A N D  D I S M I S S I N G  M E M B E R S  O F  
T H E  M A N A G E M E N T  B O A R D  A N D  
O N  A M E N D I N G  T H E  A R T I C L E S  O F 
I N C O R P O R A T I O N
The provisions on appointing and dismissing members 
of the Management Board and on amending the Articles 
of Incorporation comply with the respective require-
ments of both the German Stock Corporation Act and 
the Articles of Incorporation. Complementing Sections 
84 and 85 of the German Stock Corporation Act, Article 
7 of the company’s Articles of Incorporation governs the 
Management Board’s composition as follows: The Man-
agement Board shall comprise at least two members. 
Deputy members of the Management Board may be 
appointed. They have the same rights as the regular 
members of the Management Board when representing 
the company vis-à-vis third parties. The Supervisory 
Board shall determine the number of both regular and 
deputy members of the Management Board and appoint 
them, enter into director’s contracts with them as well 
as dismiss them. Likewise, the Supervisory Board may 
also appoint a member of the Management Board to 
serve as its chairperson or speaker and appoint addi-
tional Management Board members to serve as deputy 
chairpersons or speakers.

Under Sections 133 and 179 of the German Stock Cor-
poration Act, in conjunction with Article 25 (1) of the 
company’s Articles of Incorporation, the latter may only 
be amended by resolution of the Annual General Meet-
ing, which must be adopted by the simple majority of 
the share capital represented at the meeting unless 
larger majorities are required by law. The Supervisory 
Board is authorized under Article 12 (2) of the Articles 
of Incorporation to make amendments that affect solely 
the given wording.
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M A N A G E M E N T  B O A R D  A U T H O R I Z A T I O N S 
T O  I S S U E  A N D  B U Y  B A C K  S H A R E S
The Management Board is authorized by resolution of 
the scheduled Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2020, 
subject to the Supervisory Board’s prior approval, to 
buy back own shares until 3 June 2025 corresponding 
in total to up to 10% of the company’s share capital 
either on the date the resolution was adopted or on the 
date the authorization is exercised, whichever is higher. 
Together with other own shares held by the company 
or attributable to it in accordance with Sections 71d 
and 71e of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), 
the shares acquired may at no time account for more 
than 10% of the share capital. The authorization may 
not be used for the purpose of trading in own shares. 
The authorization may be exercised in whole or in part, 
on one or more occasions, in pursuit of one or more 
purposes by the company or companies dependent 
upon it or majority-owned by it, or by third parties act-
ing on their behalf or on behalf of the company. The 
Management Board is authorized, subject to the Super-
visory Board’s prior approval and in particular cases, 
to disapply shareholders’ rights to tender or subscribe 
such shares, respectively, in connection with buybacks 
and subscriptions.

In November 2020, LPKF bought back a total of 12,775 
shares via a middleman under an employee participa-
tion program pursuant to Section 71 (1) no. 2 of the 
German Stock Corporation Act. The shares were trans-
ferred to employees in line with the program terms and 
conditions.

By the resolution adopted by the Annual General Meet-
ing on 31 May 2018, the Management Board is autho-
rized to increase the share capital once or repeatedly 
until 30 May 2023 with the approval of the Supervisory 
Board by up to a total of EUR 5,567,397.00 by issuing 
up to 5,567,397 new no-par value bearer shares in return 
for contributions in cash or in kind (Authorized Capital 
2018). Shareholders shall generally be granted a 
pre-emption right. However, the Management Board was 
authorized, in certain cases and within certain capital 
limits, to disapply shareholders’ pre-emption rights. This 
authorization was partially utilized in August 2018 by 

way of a capital increase through issuing 2,226,958 new 
no-par value shares from Authorized Capital 2018 in 
exchange for contributions in cash and excluding share-
holders’ pre-emption rights; the share capital was in-
creased by EUR 2,226,958.00. Authorized Capital 2018 
is still EUR 3,340,439.00 and the capital limit on exclud-
ing shareholders’ pre-emption rights is fully used up for 
all existing authorizations. This authorization was not 
utilized in the past financial year.

The company’s share capital is contingently increased 
by up to EUR  5,567,397.00 through issuing up to 
5,567,397 new no-par value bearer shares (Contingent 
Capital 2018/I) in connection with the authorization re-
solved by the Annual General Meeting on 31 May 2018 
to issue warrant bonds and / or convertible bonds up to 
30  May 2023 with a total nominal value of up to 
EUR 80,000,000.00, with the option to disapply pre-emp-
tion rights in certain cases and within certain capital 
limits. The contingent capital increase will only be imple-
mented to the extent that the bearers or creditors of 
warrant bonds and / or convertible bonds utilize their 
warrant or conversion rights or fulfill their conversion 
obligations or the company exercises an option instead 
of paying the amount of money due for no-par value 
shares of the company. The Management Board did not 
utilize this authorization in the past financial year.

More detailed information can be found in the relevant 
enabling resolution.

C H A N G E - O F - C O N T R O L  P R O V I S I O N S
The financing agreements with the core banks of the LPKF 
Group used to contain a change-of-control clause that 
induced a right to terminate credit facilities upon the 
withdrawal or significant reduction in the shareholding of 
German Technology AG and any parties affiliated with it. 
In this context, LPKF is currently negotiating a new agree-
ment to replace the existing credit arrangements for the 
current account lines not utilized as of the reporting date 
with a new financing structure and to tailor it to LPKF’s 
medium-term growth.

The other disclosures required by Sections 289a and 
315a of the German Commercial Code relate to circum-
stances that do not exist at LPKF AG.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
The Management Board consists of a Chairman of the 
Management Board (CEO) and a Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO). Dr. Goetz M. Bendele was appointed as Chairman 
of the Management Board on 1 May 2018. Christian Witt 
was appointed as the Management Board member with 
responsibility for finance on 1 September 2018. In both 
cases, the contracts are for three years.

On 10 March 2021, Dr. Goetz M. Bendele, CEO of LPKF 
Laser & Electronics AG, informed the Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board that he does not wish to extend his 
contract, which runs until 30 April 2021. Dr. Bendele 
will leave the company at the end of April 2021. As a 
result, in accordance with the plan’s terms and condi-
tions, this Management Board member no longer has 
the right to receive payments for the 2019 and 2020 
tranches of the LTI program.

B A S I C  F E A T U R E S  O F  T H E 
R E M U N E R A T I O N  S Y S T E M
The Supervisory Board of LPKF AG adopted a resolution 
regarding the current remuneration system for Manage-
ment Board members on 20 March 2018. The remuner-
ation system aims to align the interests of the share-
holders and those of the Management Board more 
closely. This means that the Management Board’s re-
muneration is closely linked to an increase in the com-
pany’s value. In addition, the system is oriented toward 
return on investment, cash flow and long-term value 
increase. It combines profitability, liquidity and sustain-
able growth targets and is geared toward capital market 
requirements.

Criteria for the appropriateness of Management Board 
remuneration include the responsibilities of the respec-
tive Management Board members; personal perfor-
mance; the economic situation, success, future pros-
pects and sustainable development of the company; and 
the customary level of remuneration under consider-
ation of the level of executive remuneration at peer 
companies and the remuneration structure in place in 
other parts of the company. The relationship between 
the remuneration of the Management Board and that of 
senior management and the workforce overall is taken 
into account also in terms of its development over time, 
whereby the Supervisory Board determines how senior 
managers and the workforce are to be defined for the 
purposes of comparison. The remuneration of the Man-
agement Board is based on performance and calculated 
such that it is both appropriate and competitive, offering 
a strong incentive for committed and successful work.

The remuneration structure consists of fixed basic re-
muneration, two short-term variable components (with 
a clawback) and one long-term variable component, as 
well as incidental benefits (benefits in kind). As stipu-
lated in the German Stock Corporation Act and the 
Corporate Governance Code, the higher proportion of 
the remuneration is allotted to variable remuneration 
components, which have a predominantly perennial 
assessment base.

N O N - P E R F O R M A N C E - B A S E D 
C O M P O N E N T S
The fixed non-performance-based remuneration com-
prises both the basic salary, which is paid in equal 
monthly installments, and benefits. The benefits include 
a company car for both official and private use, health 
and care insurance contributions and, for Management 
Board member Christian Witt, a contractually agreed 
contribution toward trips home.

P E R F O R M A N C E - B A S E D  C O M P O N E N T S
The variable remuneration components comprise both 
long-term incentives (LTI) and short-term incentives (STI) 
with a clawback.

The remuneration component LTI Options is designed as 
a long-term incentive and the remuneration components 
STI 1 ROCE and STI 2 Cash flow are designed as relevant 
short-term incentives (STI). The variable remuneration 
components are based on different performance indica-
tors, which recognize a swift reorientation of the com-
pany and, at the same time, reward sustainable value 
creation in particular. The LTI, STI 1 and STI 2 remuner-
ation components are based on ambitious targets, the 
achievement of which is the deciding factor for the 
amount of the remuneration component in question.
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S H O R T - T E R M  I N C E N T I V E S  ( S T I )
STI 1 corresponds to the performance indicator ROCE. 
Payment for STI 1 is made in cash for the relevant finan-
cial year after approval of the consolidated financial 
statements. The amount of STI 1 is graded depending 
on target achievement; a payment is made only if a min-
imum ROCE figure of 8% (floor) is achieved. The target 
figure is ROCE of 18% and the cap is 30%.

STI 2 corresponds to the ratio of free cash flow to aver-
age total capital. Payment for this performance indicator 
is also made in cash following approval of the consoli-
dated financial statements in the following year. The 
amount of STI 2 is graded, the target figure is 13%, the 
floor is 8% and the cap is 21%.

If there is a negative ROCE or cash flow the following 
year, this loss will subsequently be taken into consider-
ation and STI 1 and STI 2 for the previous year will be 
reassessed in light of the negative ROCE and / or cash 
flow. Any overpayments will be repaid by the Manage-
ment Board members. In addition, extraordinary devel-
opments are not included in the calculation of STI 1 and 
STI 2. This earnings-based clawback clause, which 
makes the final entitlement to STI 1 and STI 2 contingent 
upon a positive ROCE or cash flow figure in the following 
year, extends the assessment period for STI 1 and STI 
2 to two years. This means that it essentially constitutes 
multi-year variable remuneration.

L O N G - T E R M  I N C E N T I V E S  ( L T I )
A long-term bonus plan has been created as LTI (Options) 
and is a value-oriented performance target. Details are 
given in the plan’s terms and conditions, which are part 
of the contractual arrangements with the Management 
Board members. Decisive factors for the amount of LTI 
are the development of the LPKF Group’s value added 
and share price performance. LTI is therefore directly 
tied to the achievement of profitable growth and to a 
long-term increase in company value.

In detail, LTI is designed as follows: Fictitious shares, 
known as phantom stocks, are granted to the Manage-
ment Board members annually in a contractually stipu-
lated amount. The number of phantom stocks corre-
sponds to the individual amount stated, divided by the 
average closing price of LPKF shares in the first quarter 
of the year in which the shares are allotted. The plan term 
is three years per tranche. Once the respective plan term 
elapses, the beneficiaries are entitled to a disbursement 
amount, the calculation of which depends on the final 
number of phantom stocks. The final number of phantom 
stocks is calculated by multiplying the number of origi-
nally allocated phantom stocks by a performance factor 
that is dependent on the average value added of the LPKF 
Group during the relevant performance period. The 
amount to be paid out is in turn calculated by multiplying 
the final number of phantom stocks by the average share 
price of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG for the first quarter 
following the end of the relevant performance period. A 
payout occurs only if the average share price on the pay-
ment date is greater than the average share price on the 
allotment date. The payout is capped at four times the 
allotment value; this is the maximum shown in the ben-
efits table. Advance payments are not available.
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B E N E F I T S  G R A N T E D  ( P L A N N E D )

B E N E F I T  A M O U N T S  I N  T H E  R E P O R T I N G  Y E A R

The benefits for the 2020 reporting year are presented 
in the table below, alongside the minimum and maxi-
mum amounts that can be reached. The allotment value 
is stated for LTI options.

Dr. Goetz M. Bendele­
CEO since 1 May 2018

Christian Witt
CFO since 1 September 2018 Total

in EUR thousand 2019 2020 (Min) (Max) 2019 2020 (Min) (Max) 2020

Fixed remuneration 240 240 240 240 200 200 200 200 440

Incidental benefits 13 13 13 13 24 20 20 20 33

Total 253 253 253 253 224 220 220 220 473

Multi-year variable 
remuneration*

STI 1 ROCE (2 years) 50 50 0 150 50 50 0 150 100

STI 2 Cash flow 
(2 years) 50 50 0 130 50 50 0 130 100

LTI Options 2019 
(3 years) 75 n / a n / a n / a 65 n / a n / a n / a

Number of phantom 
stocks (units) 11,111 n / a n / a n / a 9,630 n / a n / a n / a

LTI Options 2020 
(3 years) n / a 75 0 300 n / a 65 0 260 140

Number of phantom 
stocks (units) n / a 3,910 0 7,820 n / a 3,389 0 6,778 7,299

Other

Total 175 175 0 580 165 165 0 540 340

Cost of benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total remuneration 428 428 253 833 389 385 220 760 813

* �In the 2019 remuneration report, benefits were stated for STI 1 and STI 2 based on corporate planning figures. The contractually agreed target 
values are now stated.

As Dr. Goetz M. Bendele’s contract ends on 30 April 
2021, he no longer has the right to receive payments 
for the 2019 and 2020 tranches of the LTI program in 
accordance with the plan’s terms and conditions.
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B E N E F I T S  R E C E I V E D  F O R  
T H E  R E P O R T I N G  Y E A R
In compliance with the recommendations of the German 
Corporate Governance Code (GCGC), the benefits re-
ceived for the reporting year are stated in the tables 
below.

B E N E F I T S  R E C E I V E D  ( A C T U A L )

Dr. Goetz M. Bendele­
CEO since 1 May 2018

Christian Witt­
CFO since 1 September 2018 Total

in EUR thousand 2019 2020 2019 2020 2020

Fixed remuneration 240 240 200 200 440

Incidental benefits 13 13 24 20 33

Total 253 253 224 220 473

Multi-year variable remuneration

STI 1 ROCE 0 110 0 110 220

STI 2 Cash flow 0 130 0 130 260

LTI Options 2018 (3 years) 0 0 0 0 0

LTI Options 2019 (3 years) 0 0 0 0 0

LTI Options 2020 (3 years) 0 0 0 0 0

Other

Total 0 240 0 240 480

Cost of benefits 0 0 0 0 0

Total remuneration as per 
GCGC (benefits received) 253 493 224 460 953
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The members of the Management Board received total 
remuneration of EUR 953 thousand in the 2020 financial 
year (2019: EUR 477 thousand). EUR 473 thousand of 
this was attributed to fixed remuneration components, 
including incidental benefits that were fully paid out in 
the 2020 reporting year. A total of EUR 480 thousand 
(2019: EUR 0 thousand) is attributable to the variable 
remuneration components that accrued to the members 
of the Management Board for tax purposes in the 2020 
financial year. Having regard to the contractual clawback 
clause, the amount of STI 2 was measured in consider-
ation of the negative free cash flow for 2020. However, 
the cap of 21% was still exceeded even taking into con-
sideration the negative cash flow, which means that 
there was no obligation to return payments.

C O M M I T M E N T S  T O  M E M B E R S  O F  
T H E  M A N A G E M E N T  B O A R D  U P O N 
D E P A R T U R E
If the appointment of a member of the Management 
Board ends early on account of his death while in office, 
the fixed monthly remuneration shall still be paid to his 
heirs for a period of three months.

The company did not make any performance-based 
pension commitments to the current members of its 
Management Board in the 2020 financial year.

T O T A L  R E M U N E R A T I O N  O F  F O R M E R 
M E M B E R S  O F  T H E  M A N A G E M E N T 
B O A R D
Provisions were recognized for EUR 651 thousand (pre-
vious year: EUR 617 thousand) in pension commitments 
(pension plan, disability pension and widow’s pension) 
to former members of the Management Board and their 
survivors. A total of EUR 17 thousand (previous year: 
EUR 17 thousand) in pensions was paid to a former 
member of the Management Board in 2020.

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Each member of the Supervisory Board receives fixed 
basic remuneration for each full financial year of mem-
bership on the Supervisory Board, which is specified by 
resolution of the Annual General Meeting and is payable 
after the end of the financial year. If the appointment 
period does not correspond to a financial year, the re-
muneration is payable pro rata temporis. The Chairman 
of the Supervisory Board receives double and the Dep-
uty Chairman receives one-and-a-half times the amount 
of the fixed basic remuneration. By resolution of the 
Annual General Meeting on 2 June 2016, the fixed basic 
remuneration of each member of the Supervisory Board 
was set at EUR 32 thousand effective from 1 January 
2017. A variable remuneration component is not avail-
able for the Supervisory Board.

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board is as 
follows:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Jean-Michel Richard 
(Supervisory Board as at  
31 December 2020) 6 0

Dr. Dirk Rothweiler
(Supervisory Board as at 
31 December 2020) 48 41

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger Overmeyer 
(Supervisory Board as at  
31 December 2020) 32 18

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Erich Barke 
(former Supervisory Board 
members) 0 21

Dr. Markus Peters 
(former Supervisory Board 
members) 56 64

Total 142 144
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S U P E R V I S O R Y  B O A R D  M E M B E R S

Jean-Michel Richard­
(Member from 25 November 2020 and Chairman 
from 1 December 2020)
•	 Founder and independent senior advisor at Fisadis 

Consulting Ltd, Rushall, UK

Dr. Dirk Rothweiler­
(Deputy Chairman from 6 June 2019)
•	 Independent management consultant, Weimar, 

Germany

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger Overmeyer
•	 University professor and Head of the Institute of 

Transport and Automation Technology at Leibniz 
University Hanover, Germany

•	 Member of other statutory supervisory boards:
•	 Member of the Supervisory Board of Viscom AG, 

Hanover, Germany (listed company)

Dr. Markus Peters­
(Member and Chairman up to 13 November 2020)
•	 Former Head of Finance and Investment  

of German Technology AG, Hanover, Germany  
(up to 30 June 2020)

•	 Former member of the Board of Directors  
of LPKF Distribution Inc., Portland, US  
(up to 23 November 2020)

FINAL DECL ARATION BY THE 
MANAGEMENT BOARD CONCERN-
ING THE REPORT ON REL ATIONS 
WITH AFFILIATED COMPANIES AS 
PER SECTION 312 OF THE GERMAN 
STOCK CORPORATION ACT
We hereby declare that LPKF AG received an appropriate 
payment for each of the legal transactions listed in the 
report on its relations with affiliated companies accord-
ing to the circumstances that were known to us at the 
time the legal transactions were performed. Other mea-
sures subject to mandatory disclosure have neither been 
taken nor omitted.

Garbsen, 16 March 2021

			 

DR. GOETZ M. BENDELE	 CHRISTIAN WITT
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in EUR thousand Note 2020 2019

Revenue 1 96,235 140,034

Changes in inventory 171 −803

Other own work capitalized 2 5,272 4,336

Other income 3 3,697 4,022

Cost of materials 4 −31,997 −54,209

Staff costs 5 −41,468 −44,747

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 6 −7,306 −7,697

Impairment expenses (including reversals) on financial assets  
and contract assets 30 83 25

Other expenses 7 −17,149 −21,715

Operating result (EBIT) 8 7,538 19,246

Finance income 9 57 22

Finance costs 9 −290 −518

Earnings before taxes 7,305 18,750

Income taxes 10 −1,963 −5,601

Period result 5,342 13,149

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Revaluations of defined benefit plans −38 −55

Ttax effects 12 13

Items that should be reclassified to profit or loss:

Currency translation differences −792 −1

Other comprehensive income after taxes −818 −43

Total comprehensive income 4,524 13,106

Earnings per share (basic) 26 EUR 0.22 EUR 0.54

Earnings per share (diluted) 26 EUR 0.22 EUR 0.54

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2020

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

COMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT



76

in EUR thousand Note 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

ASSETS

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 11 17,340 15,930

Property, plant and equipment 12 45,986 44,717

Trade receivables 14 262 290

Other non-financial assets 16 32 55

Deferred tax assets 18 2,627 3,160

Non-current assets 66,247 64,152

Inventories 13 19,845 19,153

Trade receivables 14 12,937 11,035

Income tax receivables 98 260

Other financial assets 15 33 575

Other non-financial assets 16 2,421 1,494

Cash and cash equivalents 17 20,074 31,343

Current assets 55,408 63,860

Total 121,655 128,012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020

ASSETS
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in EUR thousand Note    12/31/2020 12/31/2019

EQUITY

Subscribed capital 24,497 24,497

Capital reserve 15,463 15,463

Other reserves 10,166 10,984

Net retained profits 42,786 39,893

Equity 19 92,912 90,837

LIABILITIES

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 21 358 346

Other financial liabilities 23 4,434 6,932

Deferred income 20 492 533

Contract liabilities 1 215 87

Trade payables 0 4

Other provisions 22 339 0

Deferred tax liabilities 18 1,101 1,028

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,939 8,930

Tax liabilities 0 398

Other provisions 22 2,506 5,396

Other financial liabilities 23 2,508 1,966

Trade payables 7,629 5,612

Contract liabilities 1 4,733 9,958

Other non-financial liabilities 24 4,428 4,915

Current liabilities 21,804 28,245

Liabilities 28,743 37,175

Total 121,655 128,012

EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
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in EUR thousand Note 2020 2019

Cash flow from operating activities

Period result 5,342 13,149

Adjustments:

Tax expenses 1,963 5,601

Financial expenses 290 518

Financial income −57 −22

Depreciation/amortization of non-current assets 7,306 7,697

Gains / losses on the disposal of property, plant  
and equipment 67 21

Impairment losses / reversals 905 732

Other non-cash expenses and income −296 −134

Changes:

Inventories −2,003 6,057

Trade receivables −1,468 19,190

Other assets −363 1,559

Provisions −2,539 594

Trade payables 2,013 −1,260

Other liabilities −5,625 −2,906

Other:

Income from interest 24 22

Income taxes paid / received −1,563 −2,777

Cash flow from operating activities 3,966 48,041

Cash flow from investing activities

Investments in intangible assets −4,758 −4,027

Investments in property, plant and equipment −4,767 −1,770

Revenue from the disposal of assets 13 6

Cash flow from investing activities −9,512 −5,791

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2020
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in EUR thousand Note 2020 2019

Cash flow from financing activities

Investments in intangible assets −2,449 0

Interest paid −254 −478

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets −735 −816

Payments for repaying loans −1,966 −13,235

Cash flow from financing activities −5,404 −14,529

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents −10,950 27,721

Cash and cash equivalents as of 1 January 31,341 3,707

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash  
and cash equivalents −317 −87

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 25 20,074 31,341

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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in EUR thousand Subscribed capital Capital reserve
Other

retained earnings
Revaluations of 

defined benefit plans
Share-based

payment reserve
Foreign currency

translation reserve Net retained profits
Total

equity

As of 01/01/2020 24,497 15,463 10,529 −335 490 300 39,893 90,837

Earnings after tax 5,342 5,342

Other comprehensive income after taxes −26 −792 −818

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 −26 0 −792 5,342 4,524

Transactions with shareholders

Use of authorized capital −2,449 −2,449

As of 12/31/2020 24,497 15,463 10,529 −361 490 −492 42,786 92,912

in EUR thousand Subscribed capital Capital reserve
Other

retained earnings
Revaluations of 

defined benefit plans
Share-based

payment reserve
Foreign currency

translation reserve Net retained profits
Total

equity

As of 01/01/2019 24,497 15,463 10,529 −293 490 301 26,744 77,731

Earnings after tax 13,149 13,149

Other comprehensive income after taxes −42 −1 −43

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 −42 0 −1 13,149 13,106

Transactions with shareholders

As of 12/31/2019 24,497 15,463 10,529 −335 490 300 39,893 90,837

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2020
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in EUR thousand Subscribed capital Capital reserve
Other

retained earnings
Revaluations of 

defined benefit plans
Share-based

payment reserve
Foreign currency

translation reserve Net retained profits
Total

equity

As of 01/01/2020 24,497 15,463 10,529 −335 490 300 39,893 90,837

Earnings after tax 5,342 5,342

Other comprehensive income after taxes −26 −792 −818

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 −26 0 −792 5,342 4,524

Transactions with shareholders

Use of authorized capital −2,449 −2,449

As of 12/31/2020 24,497 15,463 10,529 −361 490 −492 42,786 92,912

in EUR thousand Subscribed capital Capital reserve
Other

retained earnings
Revaluations of 

defined benefit plans
Share-based

payment reserve
Foreign currency

translation reserve Net retained profits
Total

equity

As of 01/01/2019 24,497 15,463 10,529 −293 490 301 26,744 77,731

Earnings after tax 13,149 13,149

Other comprehensive income after taxes −42 −1 −43

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 −42 0 −1 13,149 13,106

Transactions with shareholders

As of 12/31/2019 24,497 15,463 10,529 −335 490 300 39,893 90,837

Other reserves

Other reserves

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
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Ultra-precise 
structuring with 
LPKF laser systems 
makes it possible to 
significantly increase 
the efficiency of 
solar modules.
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A . BASIC INFORMATION
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG, Garbsen (the company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the LPKF Group) produce 
equipment and systems for electronics development and production. New laser-based technologies are particularly 
aimed at customers in the automotive, electronics and solar industries. LPKF Laser & Electronics AG is entered in 
the Commercial Register of the Hanover Local Court (Reg. No. 110740 B).

The company is a stock corporation that was established and is headquartered in Germany. Its registered office 
is at:

Osteriede 7
30827 Garbsen

These consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the Management Board on 16 March 
2021.

B. �BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG, Garbsen, were prepared using uniform 
accounting policies. They take into account all International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and all interpre-
tations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as applicable on the reporting 
date and in the form applicable in the EU.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared on the basis of historical cost, limited by the measurement 
of financial assets and financial liabilities, including derivatives, at fair value through profit and loss.

The Management Board is maintaining its realistic expectation that the Group has sufficient resources to continue 
its operating activities for at least another twelve months and that the going concern assumption remains appro-
priate as a basis of accounting.

For the financial year ending 31 December 2020, the Group reported consolidated net profit of EUR 5,342 thousand. 
The Group recorded net working capital of EUR 20,467 thousand as of 31 December 2020. At the time of publication 
of these financial statements, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of EUR 20.1 million. In addition, as of 
31 December 2020, there are commitments for credit facilities with the core banks of the LPKF Group totaling 
EUR 25.0 million that can be utilized in the event of additional liquidity requirements.

There is still uncertainty as to how the future development of the pandemic will affect the Group’s business ac-
tivities and customer demand for its products. The appropriateness of the going concern assumption as a basis 
of accounting is dependent on the Group’s ability to meet its loan conditions to ensure continued availability of 
capital. At the time of approval of the financial statements, the Group has sufficient headroom with regard to its 
credit facilities.

In response to a severe negative scenario, the Management Board can also take the following measures to reduce 
costs, optimize the Group’s cash flows and preserve liquidity:

•	 non-essential investments can be reduced and discretionary expenses can be postponed or canceled,

•	 hiring of employees that is not absolutely necessary can be suspended, and

•marketing expenses can be reduced.
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Based on these factors, the Management Board expects that the Group has adequate resources and sufficient 
headroom with regard to its credit facilities.

Preparing IFRS consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates. Furthermore, the application of 
Group-wide accounting policies requires assessments by management. Areas that permit greater leeway in terms 
of assessments or exhibit greater complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are of critical significance to 
the consolidated financial statements, are discussed in the notes under E “Material Accounting and Measurement 
Estimates and Assumptions.”

The financial year corresponds to the calendar year. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
euros. Unless indicated otherwise, all amounts are shown in thousands of euros (EUR thousand).

The following standards that were amended, revised or issued prior to the reporting date were applied in the 2020 
financial year. They have no material effects on the consolidated financial statements.

First-time application New or amended standards and interpretations

1 January 2020 Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

1 January 2020 Amendments to IAS 1 and the IAS 8 Definition of Material

1 January 2020 Amendments to the IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

1 January 2020 Reform of reference interest rates (amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

The following standards that were amended, revised or issued prior to the reporting date were not yet applied in 
the 2020 financial year. The Group is not currently planning to apply these standards at an early date. The effects 
of the following new or amended standards and interpretations on the LPKF Group are currently being examined.

First-time application New or amended standards and interpretations

1 June 2020 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16)

1 January 2021
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2  
(amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

1 January 2022 Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling the Contract (amendments to IAS 37)

1 January 2022 Annual improvements to the IFRS Standards 2018 –2020

1 January 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds Before Intended Use  
(Amendments to IAS 16)

1 January 2022 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

1 January 2023 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

1 January 2023 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Still open
Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its Associate or  
Joint Venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
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B A S I S  O F  C O N S O L I D A T I O N
As of 31 December 2020, LPKF Laser & Electronics AG had nine subsidiaries, which, together with the parent com-
pany, form the group of consolidated companies. In addition to the Group’s parent company, LPKF Laser & Electronics 
AG, Garbsen, the following subsidiaries have also been included in the consolidated financial statements:

Name
Full consolidation Registered office

Equity interest 
(previous year)  

in %

LPKF SolarQuipment GmbH Suhl, Germany
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF WeldingQuipment GmbH Fürth, Germany
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF Laser & Electronics d.o.o. Naklo, Slovenia
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF Distribution Inc. Tualatin (Portland), US
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF (Tianjin) Co. Ltd. Shanghai, China
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF Laser & Electronics Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. Shanghai, China
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF Laser & Electronics (Hong Kong) Ltd. Hong Kong, China
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF Laser & Electronics K.K. Tokyo, Japan
100.0 

(100.0)

LPKF Laser & Electronics Korea Ltd. Seoul, Korea
100.0 

(100.0)

The legal structure of the LPKF Group did not change in the 2020 financial year.

With the approval of the Annual General Meeting on 28 May 2015, a profit transfer agreement exists between 
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG and LPKF SolarQuipment GmbH that became effective retrospectively from the be-
ginning of the 2015 calendar year. With the authorization of the Annual General Meeting on 2 June 2016, LPKF 
WeldingQuipment GmbH signed a profit transfer agreement with LPKF Laser & Electronics AG that became effective 
retrospectively from the beginning of 2016. Both contracts were concluded for a minimum term of five years and 
are extended indefinitely without termination of the contract. Due to their inclusion in the consolidated financial 
statements, LPKF WeldingQuipment GmbH and LPKF SolarQuipment GmbH met the requirements of Section 264 
(3) of the German Commercial Code and made use of the exemption rule in the form of simplified preparation 
and disclosure.
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C. CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES
The consolidated financial statements are based on the financial statements as of 31 December 2020 of the 
companies included in the consolidated financial statements, which were prepared in accordance with uniform 
accounting policies.

Subsidiaries include all entities that are controlled by LPKF Laser & Electronics AG. LPKF Laser & Electronics AG 
controls an associate company when it has power over the associate company, risk exposure or rights to variable 
returns arise from its investment in the associate company and LPKF Laser & Electronics AG has the ability to use 
its power over the associate company such that this affects the amount of the associate company’s variable returns. 
Consolidation of an associate company begins on the day on which LPKF Laser & Electronics AG gains control over 
the entity. It ends when LPKF Laser & Electronics AG loses control over the associate company.

Subsidiaries acquired are accounted for using the purchase method. The acquisition costs correspond to the 
fair value of the assets given, the equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the acqui-
sition date.

Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities in connection with a business combination are remeasured 
upon initial consolidation, irrespective of the scope of the non-controlling interests. The excess of the cost of ac-
quisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. If the cost 
of acquisition is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized 
directly in the income statement.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses from transactions between Group companies 
are eliminated. Deferred taxes are recognized for consolidation measures affecting profit or loss.

The accounting policies used by subsidiaries were adjusted as necessary to the Group’s uniform accounting policies 
to ensure uniform accounting.

If the Group loses either its control or significant influence over an entity, its remaining equity interest is remeasured 
at fair value and the resulting difference is recognized as profit or loss. The fair value of an associate, joint venture 
or financial asset is the fair value determined upon initial recognition. In addition, all amounts recognized in other 
comprehensive income in relation to that entity are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the 
parent company had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This means that any gain or loss previously 
shown in other comprehensive income must be reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
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D. CURRENCY TRANSL ATION
Annual financial statements are prepared in the functional currency of each entity; this is defined as the currency 
of the economic environment in which the entity mainly operates. For LPKF Laser & Electronics AG’s subsidiaries, 
the functional currency is the same as the local currency in the country in which the subsidiary is domiciled.

If the annual financial statements of a subsidiary are prepared in a different functional currency to the euro, the 
assets and liabilities are translated into euros at an average exchange rate at the reporting date and equity is 
translated at the historic exchange rate. Expenses and income are translated at the average annual exchange rate. 
Translation differences are recognized directly in equity as a currency translation reserve until the subsidiary is 
disposed of. Foreign currency effects from the translation of transactions are recognized either in other operating 
expenses (exchange rate losses) or in other operating income (income from currency translation differences).

The exchange rates of the material currencies that were applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are listed below:

1 euro = currency x Closing rate Average rat

12/31/2020 12/31/2019 2020 2019

US dollar USD 1.2271 USD 1.1234 USD 1.1413 USD 1.1196

Chinese renminbi yuan CNY 8.0225 CNY 7.8205 CNY 7.8708 CNY 7.7339

Hong Kong dollar HKD 9.5142 HKD 8.7473 HKD 8.8517 HKD 8.7558

Japanese yen JPY 126.49 JPY 121.94 JPY 121.78 JPY 122.06

South Korean won KRW 1,336.00 KRW 1,296.28 KRW 1,345.11 KRW 1,304.90

E. �MATERIAL ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT ESTIMATES 
AND ASSUMPTIONS

All estimates and assessments are continuously updated and are based on historical experience and other factors 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes assessments and assumptions that concern the future. Estimates based on these assessments 
and assumptions often do not correspond to actual events in the future. The estimates and assumptions associated 
with a significant risk of triggering material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year are discussed in the following.

( a )  I N T A N G I B L E  A S S E T S  A N D  P R O P E R T Y ,  P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T
Material assumptions and estimates relate to determining the useful lives and the recoverable residual values 
of intangible assets and items of property, plant and equipment. The development costs relate to development 
projects for equipment and related software. Development costs are capitalized if the requirements of IAS 38 
are met. Research costs are recorded as expenses. The examination of the capitalization requirements under 
IAS 38 for projects under development is complex and based on a number of discretionary assumptions. These 
include, in particular, the forecast cash flows, technical feasibility, the discount rates used and the allocation of 
costs by origin. More details regarding useful lives are presented under note 11 “Intangible Assets and Property, 
Plant and Equipment” and under note 12 “Property, Plant and Equipment” in Section H “Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position.”
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( b )  P R O V I S I O N S
Accounting for provisions involves making assumptions regarding probability, maturity and risk level. Actuarial 
calculations are used to determine the obligation from defined benefit pension commitments and termination 
benefits paid to employees as well as the obligation from a long-term bonus programs launched for the first time 
in 2012. The amount of the pension obligations is largely dependent on the life expectancies on which it is based 
and the choice of discount rate, which is recalculated every year. The discount rate is based on the interest rate 
paid on high-quality corporate bonds in the currency in which the benefits are paid and the maturities of which 
correspond to the pension obligations. Key parameters in the calculation of provisions for anniversary payments 
and termination benefits are employee turnover and salary growth. Detailed information is provided in note 21 
describing pension provisions. An option pricing model is used to calculate the value of the obligation arising from 
the long-term bonus programs settled in cash due to the influence exerted by LPKF’s share price. Another material 
factor is the performance of the EBIT margin for the tranches issued in previous years and the value contribution 
for the more recent tranches. Both can be derived from the Group’s planning. Detailed information is provided in 
note 22 describing other provisions.

( c )  I N C O M E  T A X E S
The Group is subject to income tax payments in various countries. Material assumptions are therefore required to 
determine income tax provisions on a global scale.

There are numerous business transactions and calculations for which the ultimate level of taxation cannot be 
definitively determined during the course of normal business activities. The company determines the amount of 
the provisions for expected tax audits based on best estimates of whether and to what extent additional income 
taxes may become payable. If the final level of taxation of these business transactions deviates from the initial 
assumptions, this will have an impact on the actual taxes and deferred taxes in the period in which taxation is 
definitively determined.

Deferred tax assets are recognized at the amount at which it is probable that future tax benefits will be realized. 
The assessment of recoverability is based on five-year planning, expected business performance and taxable 
temporary differences. The actual extent to which earnings in future periods must be taxed, and thus the actual 
extent to which the tax benefits will be usable, may deviate from the assessment at the time the deferred tax assets 
are recognized.

( d )  FA I R  VA L U E  O F  D E R I VAT I V E  A N D  OT H E R  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S
The fair value of financial instruments not traded on an active market is determined by applying suitable valuation 
techniques selected from a large number of methods. The assumptions applied in this context are based on the 
market conditions existing on the reporting date.

( e )  �E S T I M A T E S  U S E D  F O R  D E T E R M I N I N G  I M P A I R M E N T  L O S S E S  O N 
R E C E I V A B L E S   A N D  I N V E N T O R I E S

The determination of impairment losses on receivables and inventories is based on estimates regarding the amount 
of the impairment loss or the amount and probability of future payment defaults. In addition to past experience, 
current information on markets, industries, individual customers and current market developments is used to de-
termine impairment losses.

F. SEGMENT REPORTING
In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 8 (Operating segments), selected information in the annual financial 
statements is presented by operating segment and region, with segmentation based on internal reporting to the 
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for determining the allocation of 
resources to segments and reviewing their performance. The Management Board of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG 
has been defined as the Group’s chief operating decision maker. Segment reporting aims to lend greater transpar-
ency to both the performance and potential of the Group’s individual activities.
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Primary segment reporting is based on the following segments:

•	� Development comprises products such as circuit board plotters and ProtoLasers, primarily for electronics 
developers.

•	� The Electronics segment comprises production systems for cutting print stencils, rigid and flexible circuit 
boards, ultra-thin glass and the etching of plastic circuit carriers, as well as the sale of components manu-
factured with laser systems.

•	 Welding comprises systems for laser beam welding of plastic components.

•	� The Solar segment develops and produces laser scribers for the etching of thin-film solar cells and laser 
systems for the digital printing of functional pastes and inks (laser transfer printing, LTP), which are used in 
production.

There is insignificant inter-segment revenue. The existing goodwill (EUR 74 thousand) is allocated to the Welding 
segment.

The segment information was determined as follows:

•	� The segment result (EBIT) is determined by taking into account any impairment losses on goodwill, but without 
taking into account the financial result and taxes.

•	� The investments, depreciation and amortization including impairment losses refer to property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets including goodwill.

Unless indicated otherwise, the figures reported are the figures after consolidation.

in EUR million Electronics Development Welding Solar Total

Revenue
(before consolidation)

2020 31.7 25.2 17.7 24.3 98.9

2019 43.7 27.5 27.7 44.1 143.0

External revenue

2020 31.7 22.5 17.7 24.3 96.2

2019 43.7 24.5 27.7 44.1 140.0

Operating result
(EBIT)

2020 3.4 2.9 −2.8 4.0 7.5

2019 7.4 2.9 1.1 7.8 19.2

Investments

2020 6.0 1.7 0.4 2.1 10.2

2019 2.6 1.4 0.9 1.8 6.7

Depreciation and
amortization
(non-current assets)*

2020 −1.8 −1.2 −1.7 −0.8 −5.5

2019 −1.9 −1.0 −2.0 −0.8 −5.7

Write-downs
(inventories)

2020 −0.8 −0.3 −0.1 −0.1 −1.3

2019 −0.3 −0.1 −0.1 0.0 −0.5

* only direct allocated amortization

EUR 1.8 million (previous year: EUR 2.0 million) relates to depreciation not directly attributable to the segments. 
Total depreciation of the Group’s fixed assets amounted to EUR 7.3 million (previous year: EUR 7.7 million).

Assets, liabilities and cash flows are not allocated to segments.

In the 2020 financial year, revenue of EUR 21 million was generated in the Solar segment from a single customer. 
In the previous year, revenue of EUR 41 million in the Solar segment and EUR 28 million in the Electronics and 
Welding segments was generated from two individual customers.
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Write-downs on inventories are shown under cost of materials.

G E O G R A P H I C A L  S E G M E N T S
Reporting reflects the main geographical regions in which the Group operates.

External revenue Assets
Non-current assets 

thereof

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

in EUR
million in %

in EUR
million in % in EUR million in EUR million

Germany 8.6 8.9% 9.7 6.9% 96.7 103.4 58.3 55.7

Irland 2.8 2.9% 18.1 12.9% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Rest of Europe 9.4 9.8% 11.1 7.9% 5.7 6.0 4.4 4.2

USA 18.8 19.5% 37.2 26.7% 8.6 7.5 1.8 2.1

Rest of
North America 0.2 0.2% 0.3 0.2% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

China 23.2 24.1% 25.8 18.4% 7.8 9.0 1.4 1.6

Malaysia 17.4 18.1% 7.5 5.4% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Vietnam 5.5 5.7% 13.9 9.9% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Rest of Asia 9.4 9.8% 13.6 9.7% 2.9 2.1 0.4 0.5

Other 0.9 0.9% 2.8 2.0% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other 96.2 100.0% 140.0 100.0% 121.7 128.0 66.2 64.1

G. CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1 .  R E V E N U E

Revenue breakdown
The core business of the LPKF Group is the sale of equipment and systems used by customers in production and 
development. In the sale of equipment and systems, revenue is generated at a specific time and is thus recognized 
on transfer of control.

Revenue recognized over time stems from service contracts, which mainly include maintenance contracts and 
warranty extensions.

in EUR million Electronics Development Welding Solar Total

External revenue
(total)

2020 31.7 22.5 17.7 24.3 96.2

2019 43.7 24.5 27.7 44.1 140.0

Time point of
revenue recognition

Equipment and 
systems
(at a specific time)

2020 29.8 22.0 17.7 23.8 93.3

2019 42.5 24.3 27.7 44.1 138.6

Service contracts
(over time)

2020 1.9 0.5 0.0 0.5 2.9

2019 1.2 0.2 0.0 0.1 1.5
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Contract  ba lances
The following table provides information on contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with 
customers.

in EUR million 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Contract assets 0 0

Contract liabilities (by term) 4.9 10.0

Breakdown by maturity:

Current 4.7 9.9

Non-current 0.2 0.1

Breakdown by type:

Revenue recognized over time from service contracts 1.9 2.4

Services rendered at a specific point in time (advance payments received) 3.0 7.6

Contract assets arise from claims for consideration on services rendered. There were no contract assets in the 
2020 financial year. Accordingly, there has been no impairment of contract assets.

The contract liabilities result from advance payments received under both revenue recognized over time and at a 
specific time. Once the contracted service has been performed, contract liabilities are recognized as revenue.

The amount of EUR 9.9 million included in contract liabilities as of 31 December 2019 was recognized as revenue 
in the 2020 financial year (previous year: EUR 12.6 million). In the 2020 reporting period, there was no recognized 
revenue from performance obligations that were settled or partially settled in prior periods.

During the 2020 financial year, there were no significant or substantial changes to the balances of contract assets 
and contract liabilities other than those listed in the table. The decrease of EUR 5,096 thousand in contract liabilities 
compared with the previous year is mainly due to lower advance payments received for the sale of equipment and 
systems as of the reporting date.

Per formance obl igat ions
LPKF Group performance obligations arise from the sale of equipment and systems and from service contracts 
with customers. In older contracts and individual cases where promised services or warranty extensions were sold 
to customers as a complete package with a system, the transaction prices and the amounts attributable to perfor-
mance obligations are determined based on individual calculations.

In the sale of equipment and systems, the performance obligation is generally fulfilled upon delivery at the time of 
the transfer of control to the customer.

Service contracts with customers mainly comprise maintenance contracts and warranty extensions. LPKF uses the 
output-based method to determine the progress of performance of maintenance contracts, based on the hours 
worked by employees. Warranty extensions are recognized in revenue over time.

LPKF employs the IFRS 15.121 practical expedient if the original expected duration of the contract is one year or 
less. This applies to both the sale of equipment and service contracts with a duration of one year or less. The 
transaction price of unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) performance obligations with a duration of more than one 
year amounts to EUR 215 thousand (previous year: EUR 87 thousand) and corresponds to contract liabilities with 
an identical duration. The revenue for these will be recognized between 2021 and 2023.

The payment received generally corresponds to the invoice price and does not contain significant financing com-
ponents. The terms of payment are generally between 30 and 45 days.
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2 .  O T H E R  O W N  W O R K  C A P I T A L I Z E D
Own work capitalized by the Group concerned equipment of EUR 5,272 thousand (previous year: EUR 4,336 thou-
sand). This comprised own work for technical equipment and machinery used by Group companies for production 
as well as prototype development projects capitalized during 2020, which are intended for permanent use in Group 
operations. Research costs, on the other hand, are immediately expensed when they are incurred. Costs incurred 
in the context of development projects (in connection with the design and test runs of new or improved products) 
are recognized as intangible assets if the criteria of IAS 38 are met. Other development costs that do not meet 
these criteria are expensed on an accrual basis. Development costs expensed in prior periods are not capitalized 
in subsequent reporting periods. Capitalized development costs are reported as intangible assets and amortized 
on a straight-line basis over their useful life, not exceeding three years, from the date on which they become usable. 
This is reported under depreciation and amortization on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.

3 .  O T H E R  I N C O M E

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Income from the reversal of provisions 1,263 644

Income from currency translation differences 668 816

Research and development grants 425 503

Income from the reversal of loss allowances 77 129

Reversal of deferred item income from grants 41 45

Income from insurance payments 19 31

Income from asset disposals 13 6

Other 1,191 1,848

Total 3,697 4,022

Income from the reversal of provisions consists mainly of the reversal of provisions for guarantees and warranties 
of EUR 508 thousand (previous year: EUR 307 thousand) and from the successful settlement of a legal dispute 
from previous years (EUR 508 thousand).

Research and development grants are recognized in accordance with IAS 20 and exclusively concern government 
grants – in some cases with the involvement of private project companies. Grants are granted for costs actually 
incurred in connection with a specific purpose during the financial year (expenditure grant). Payments are made 
in line with project progress. Grants received for capitalized development costs and other non-current assets that 
have been recognized as deferred income are reversed on an accrual basis in accordance with the useful life of 
the associated capitalized development costs and other assets. The same applies to government grants for building 
costs in Suhl totaling EUR 943 thousand. The periodic reversal of these government grants for building costs is 
reported in the item “Reversal of deferred item income from grants” in the amount of EUR 41 thousand (previous 
year: EUR 45 thousand).

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, many governments introduced programs to support companies whose 
business operations were affected by the pandemic. At its German locations, the LPKF Group made flexible use of 
short-time working. The reimbursement amounts requested from the Federal Employment Agency for social security 
contributions in connection with short-time working amounted to EUR 455 thousand in 2020. The Slovenian and 
Chinese subsidiaries also received a total of EUR 351 thousand as reimbursement in connection with social security 
contributions. In addition, there were further government grants in connection with the COVID-19 pandemic amount-
ing to EUR 43 thousand in China and EUR 16 thousand in Slovenia. All the aforementioned grants are included 
under total miscellaneous other operating income of EUR 1,191 thousand.
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4 .  C O S T  O F  M A T E R I A L S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Cost of (system) parts and purchased goods −28,097 −52,291

Cost of purchased services −2,589 −1,417

Write-downs on inventories −1,311 −501

Total −31,997 −54,209

5 .  S T A F F  C O S T S  A N D  E M P L O Y E E S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Wages and salaries

Expenses for wages −33,907 −36,927

Other −998 −1,255

−34,905 −38,182

Social security costs and pension costs

Employer’s contribution to social security −6,168 −6,086

Pension costs −210 −275

Employer’s liability insurance association −185 −204

−6,563 −6,565

Total −41,468 −44,747

At its German locations, the LPKF Group made flexible use of short-time working. This reduced staff costs by 
EUR 1,475 thousand. There were ongoing pension payments of EUR 17 thousand (previous year: EUR 17 thousand) 
arising from pension obligations in the 2020 financial year (also see note 21).

The workforce is distributed as follows:

in EUR thousand

As of reporting date Annual average

12/31/2020 12/31/2019 2020 2019

Production 162 171 164 167

Sales 132 124 131 126

Development 148 143 147 139

Service 98 100 99 101

Administration 149 144 147 142

Total 689 682 688 675

6 .  D E P R E C I A T I O N ,  A M O R T I Z A T I O N  A N D  W R I T E - D O W N S
The depreciation and amortization for various groups of non-current assets is shown under the reconciliations of 
the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period under notes 11 and 12. 
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7.  O T H E R  I N F O R M A T I O N

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Repairs, maintenance, operating materials −1,953 −1,862

Third-party work, temporary work costs −1,386 −2,361

Advertising and sales expenses −1,623 −1,840

Consumables, development and purchased development services −1,422 −1,281

Travel, meals/entertainment −1,375 −3,307

Rent, ancillary rental costs, leases, land and building costs −1,303 −1,172

Legal and consulting expenses −1,263 −1,675

Exchange rate losses −1,273 −911

Insurance, contributions, duties −1,002 −962

Sales commissions −914 −566

Investor relations −557 −544

Telecommunications costs −518 −529

Vehicle costs −472 −714

Voluntary benefits, training and further education −283 −455

Trade fair costs −250 −479

Financial statement preparation, publication and auditing costs −226 −257

Bank charges −193 −259

Expenses for warranties −160 −297

Supervisory Board remuneration incl. reimbursement of expenses −147 −145

Office supplies −138 −167

Addition to loss allowance on receivables and losses on receivables −55 −446

Other −636 −1,486

Total −17,149 −21,715

Expenses for R&D / effect on income statement

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Materials and other costs 3,019 3,564

Other costs (including staff costs and D&A) 7,986 9,010

Total expenses for R&D 11,005 12,574
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8 .  O P E R A T I N G  R E S U L T  ( E B I T )
The operating result or EBIT (Earnings Before Interest and Taxes) is the profit or loss from operating activities from 
the continuing revenue-generating main activities of the LPKF Group plus other income and expenses from operating 
activities. The operating result does not include the financial result and income taxes.

9 .  F I N A N C I A L  R E S U L T

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Finance income

Other interest and similar income 57 22

Finance costs

Interest and similar expenses −290 −518

−233 −496

Other interest and similar income arose from overnight and time deposits totaling EUR 24 thousand (previous year: 
EUR 22 thousand) and from the fair value measurement of derivatives of EUR 33 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thou-
sand). Other interest expense of EUR 254 thousand (previous year: EUR 466 thousand) was incurred in connection 
with long-term loans and short-term money market loans. In addition, interest expenses of EUR 36 thousand 
(previous year: EUR 40 thousand) from leases were recognized. For materiality reasons, borrowing costs are rec-
ognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1 0 .  I N C O M E  T A X E S
Actual and deferred taxes are reported in the income statement as tax expense or tax income unless they affect 
items recognized directly in equity or in total comprehensive income. In this case, the taxes are recognized directly 
in equity.

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Corporate income tax and solidarity surcharge −751 −2,284

Trade tax −117 −584

−868 −2,868

of which related to prior period 94 −13

Deferred taxes −1,095 −2,733

−1,963 −5,601

Other comprehensive income includes tax income from the remeasurement of defined benefit plans in the amount 
of EUR 12 thousand (previous year: EUR 13 thousand).
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The German entities of the LPKF Group are subject to trade tax of 14.8% or 15.7%, depending on the applicable 
trade tax assessment rate. As in the previous year, a corporate income tax rate of 15.0% plus a solidarity surcharge 
of 5.5% on corporate income tax applies. Foreign income taxes are calculated on the basis of the laws and regula-
tions applicable in the individual countries. The income tax rates applicable to the foreign entities vary from 11.0% 
to 33.6% for deferred taxes (previous year: 11.0% to 33.8%) and 11.0% to 33.6% for current taxes (previous year: 
11.0% to 33.8%).

The corporate tax rates applicable in the respective countries were used to calculate the deferred tax assets and 
tax liabilities in connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Reconciliation of anticipated to current tax expense:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Consolidated profit / loss before income taxes 7,305 18,751

Anticipated tax expense 31.5% (previous year: 30.8%) −2,301 −5,775

Effect of different tax rates 288 413

Effect from prevoiusly unrecognized deferred tax assets 111 −42

Effects of legal tax rate changes −23 0

Tax-free income 82 23

Trade tax additions and deductions 3 −4

Tax effect of non-deductible operating expenses −233 −257

Prior-period tax effects 94 13

Other differences 16 28

Effective tax expense 26.9% (previous year: 29.9%) −1,963 −5,601

The tax rate applied for the reconciliation presented above corresponds to the corporate tax rate of 31.5% (previous 
year: 30.8%) that is to be paid on taxable profits by the company in Germany in accordance with German tax law.

The effect from unrecognized deferred tax assets is derived from the non-recognition of deferred tax assets on tax 
loss carryforwards and temporary differences of EUR 30 thousand (previous year: EUR 131 thousand) and from 
the opposite effects as a result of the use of previously unrecognized tax losses and temporary differences of 
EUR −81 thousand (previous year: EUR 89 thousand) and the reinstatement of tax losses carried forward of 
EUR 0 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thousand).
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H. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

11 .  I N T A N G I B L E  A S S E T S  A N D  P R O P E R T Y ,  P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T
Reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period:

in EUR thousand Goodwill
Development  

costs
Other intangible 

assets Total

Acquisition and 
production costs

As of 01/01/2019 74 43,097 11,479 54,650

Additions 0 3,962 65 4,027

Disposals 0 −976 −217 −1,193

Reclassification 0 0 0 0

Currency differences 0 0 0 0

As of 12/31/2019 74 46,083 11,327 57,484

Additions 0 4,724 33 4,757

Disposals 0 0 −14 −14

Reclassification 0 0 0 0

Currency differences 0 0 −1 −1

As of 12/31/2020 74 50,807 11,345 62,226

Accumulated depreciation

As of 01/01/2019 0 −29,322 −10,118 −39,440

Additions 0 −2,896 −411 −3,307

Disposals 0 976 217 1,193

Reclassification 0 0 0 0

Currency differences 0 0 0 0

As of 12/31/2019 0 −31,242 −10,312 −41,554

Additions 0 −3,032 −315 −3,347

Disposals 0 0 14 14

Reclassification 0 0 0 0

Currency differences 0 0 1 1

As of 12/31/2020 0 −34,274 −10,612 −44,886

Carrying amount as of 
12/31/2019 74 14,841 1,015 15,930

Carrying amount as of 
12/31/2020 74 16,533 733 17,340
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Goodwi l l
As a rule, the goodwill arising from business combinations (capitalized differences arising from acquisition account-
ing) is assumed to have an unlimited useful life. The carrying amount of the goodwill is compared with the recoverable 
amount at each reporting date. The goodwill is depreciated if its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
It is assigned to a cash-generating unit for an impairment test. Based on the Welding segment, a detailed planning 
period of five years and an appropriate rate of return on capitalization are applied. Based on this, there was no 
impairment in 2020, as in previous years.

Development  costs
Own capitalized development costs are also amortized over their useful life on a straight-line basis. For materiality 
reasons, borrowing costs are not capitalized, but are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. The item 
is broken down by segment as follows:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Electronics 6,499 5,792

Development 3,028 2,518

Welding 2,365 2,854

Solar 4,641 3,677

Total 16,533 14,841

Both the residual carrying amounts and the useful lives of the intangible assets are tested for impairment, at a 
minimum, as of the end of every financial year. Intangible assets are amortized in accordance with IAS 36 if the 
recoverable amount of the respective asset has dropped below its carrying amount. Capitalized development costs 
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.

Development costs for which an impairment loss was recognized in the past are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether a write-up is required. No other impairment losses or write-ups were necessary in the re-
porting year.

For development costs, a useful life of three years was assumed as planned.

Other  intang ib le  assets
As an intangible asset, purchased software is recognized at cost less straight-line amortization. For software, a 
useful life of three years was assumed as planned.

For other intangible assets amortized in the past, a review is performed at each reporting date to determine whether 
a write-up is required. No other impairment losses or write-ups were necessary in the reporting year.
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12 .  P R O P E R T Y ,  P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T

Reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period:

in EUR thousand

Grundstücke 
und 

Gebäude
Technical 

equipment

Other 
equipment, 

operating 
and office 
equipment

PPE in 
con

struction
Right-of-use 

assets Total

Acquisition and 
production costs

As of 01/01/2019 50,170 12,488 14,287 0 1,938 78,883

Additions 164 593 474 539 924 2,694

Disposals −160 −464 −571 0 −40 −1,235

Reclassification 0 23 −23 0 0 0

Currency differences 37 −7 4 0 0 34

As of 12/31/2019 50,211 12,633 14,171 539 2,822 80,376

Additions 18 877 599 3,274 709 5,477

Disposals 0 −161 −103 −4 0 −268

Reclassification 1,819 −249 1,758 −3,328 0 0

Currency differences −212 −71 −28 0 0 −311

As of 12/31/2020 51,836 13,029 16,397 481 3,531 85,274

Accumulated 
depreciation

As of 01/01/2019 −12,401 −9,019 −11,203 0 0 −32,623

Additions −1,358 −1,343 −976 0 −712 −4,389

Disposals 305 548 473 0 40 1,366

Reclassification 0 0 0 0 0 0

Currency differences −1 −12 −1 0 0 −14

As of 12/31/2019 −13,455 −9,826 −11,707 0 −672 −35,660

Additions −1,362 −1,074 −909 0 −614 −3,959

Disposals 0 97 91 0 0 188

Reclassification 0 163 −163 0 0 0

Currency differences 54 66 23 0 0 143

As of 12/31/2020 −14,763 −10,574 −12,665 0 −1,286 −39,288

Carrying amount as of 
12/31/2019 36,756 2,807 2,464 539 2,150 44,716

Carrying amount as of 
12/31/2020 37,073 2,455 3,732 481 2,245 45,986
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Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated straight-line depreciation. For materiality 
reasons, borrowing costs are not capitalized, but are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Land is 
not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment is tested for impairment if certain events or changes in circum-
stances indicate it.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated in accordance with IAS 36 if the recoverable amount of the respective 
asset has dropped below its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in use and fair value 
less costs to sell. Corresponding write-ups are made if the reasons for an earlier depreciation no longer apply.

Corresponding write-ups are made if the reasons for an earlier depreciation no longer apply.

Production costs cover the costs of materials and related overheads as well as the manufacturing costs and related 
overheads.

They are deemed to have the following useful lives:

Jahre

Buildings 33 bzw. 25

External facilities 10

Plant and machinery 3−10

Other equipment, operating and office equipment 3−10

Right-of-use assets 2−5

Bank loans totaling EUR 4,846 thousand (previous year: EUR 6,660 thousand) are secured by land and buildings.

Leases
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG acts solely as a lessee. Additional information is provided to indicate the effects of 
this on net assets, financial position and results of operations. This is outlined in the following table.

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Write-downs of right-of-use assets −614 −712

of which for property leases −270 −264

of which for movable asset leases −344 −448

Additions to right-of-use assets 709 924

of which for property leases 182 427

of which for movable asset leases 527 497

Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets on 12/31 2,245 2,150

of which for property leases 1,251 1,339

of which for movable asset leases 995 811

Expenses for short-term leases −3 0

Expenses for leasing low-value assets −56 −83

Interest expense on lease liabilities −36 −40

Total cash outflow for leases −735 −816
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LPKF leases immobile leasing goods such as office space and warehouses, and mobile leasing goods such as motor 
vehicles. The contract term for mobile goods is three to four years. Some real estate leases contain extension 
options. Where possible, the Group seeks to include extension options when entering into new leases to ensure 
operational flexibility. The extension options are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessor. At the com-
mencement date, the Group assesses whether the exercise of extension options is reasonably certain. The Group 
reassesses whether the exercise of an extension option is reasonably certain upon the occurrence of a significant 
event or a significant change in circumstances within its control.

Short-term and low-value contracts and ancillary rental costs are not recognized.

13 .  I N V E N T O R I E S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Raw, auxiliary and operating materials 7,701 6,984

Unfinished products and services 4,965 5,236

Finished products and goods 7,101 6,794

Advance payments 78 139

Total 19,845 19,153

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value at the reporting date.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production (such as production 
costs and directly attributable material costs). They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable pro-
duction overheads that are incurred in converting materials into finished goods. For materiality reasons, borrowing 
costs are not capitalized, but are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Inventories are measured using 
the weighted average cost formula. Inventories were written down below cost to their net realizable value and 
scrapped in the amount of EUR 1,311 thousand (previous year: EUR 501 thousand).

14 .  T R A D E  R E C E I V A B L E S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Nominal amount of receivables 13,339 11,955

+ / – Loss allowances for non-credit-impaired receivables −12 −95

+ / – Loss allowances for credit-impaired receivables −128 −534

Receivables after loss allowances,
discounts and currency losses 13,199 11,326

of which receivables with a remaining term of more than one year 262 290

of which receivables with a remaining term of less than one year 12,937 11,035

Items recognized in foreign currencies are measured at the middle spot foreign exchange rate as of the reporting 
date.

There was no income from the recovery of derecognized receivables in the 2020 financial year, as was the case in 
the previous year. See the risk management notes in Section 30 for more information on default risks for trade 
receivables.
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15 .  O T H E R  F I N A N C I A L  A S S E T S

in TEUR 2020 2019

Derivatives – without hedge accounting 33 0

Investment products 0 575

Total 33 575

Derivatives and – in the previous year – investment products are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

16 .  O T H E R  N O N  F I N A N C I A L  A S S E T S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Net assets for defined benefit plans 12 34

Other 20 21

Non-current other non-financial assets 32 55

Input tax receivables 1,632 809

Deferred income 395 412

Contract assets 27 24

Other 367 249

Current other non-financial assets 2,421 1,494

With the exception of the net assets for defined benefit plans, other assets are measured at cost. Disclosures on 
the determination of the net assets are explained in note 21. 

17.  C A S H  A N D  C A S H  E Q U I V A L E N T S
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of bank balances and are reported at their nominal value. Cash and 
cash equivalents in foreign currencies are translated at the respective reporting date exchange rate.

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents on the statement of financial position 20,074 31,343

Overdraft facilities used for cash management 0 −2

Cash and cash equivalents shown in the statement  
of cash flows 20,074 31,341
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1 8 .  D E F E R R E D  T A X E S
Deferred taxes are determined using the liability method pursuant to IAS 12. Accordingly, deferred taxes are rec-
ognized for all temporary differences between the tax base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable that 
adequate earnings will be available in future periods to offset the tax benefits. Income tax liabilities are netted 
against income tax receivables within the same fiscal territory if maturity and type are matched.

The income taxes are calculated in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Capitalized deferred tax assets encompass deferred taxes mainly on loss carryforwards and intercompany profits. 
Deferred tax liabilities largely comprise capitalized development costs. Deferred taxes consist of the following:

D E F E R R E D  T A X  A S S E T S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Tax loss carryforwards 5,233 4,982

Intangible assets 102 132

Property, plant and equipment 463 453

Trade receivables 18 43

Provisions 706 764

Elimination of intercompany profits and other deductible
temporary differences 332 545

Other liabilities 113 121

Other 82 45

Offsetting with deferred tax liabilities −4,422 −3,925

Total 2,627 3,160

D E F E R R E D  T A X  L I A B I L I T I E S

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Capitalized development costs 5,017 4,428

Property, plant and equipment 379 407

Trade receivables 84 101

Other 43 17

Offsetting with deferred tax assets −4,422 −3,925

Total 1,101 1,028

The recoverability of the deferred tax assets from loss carryforwards is based on the multi-year planning calculations 
of the probable future taxable profits of the German fiscal unity in particular.

EUR 3,181 thousand (previous year: EUR 3,350 thousand) in deferred tax assets and EUR 1,284 thousand (previous 
year: EUR 958 thousand) in deferred tax liabilities will be realized within the next twelve months.
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For entities that, in the reporting period or in the previous year, made a tax loss, deferred tax assets in the amount 
of EUR 251 thousand (previous year: EUR 0 thousand) are capitalized because planning assumes the achievement 
of taxable profits.

The amount for tax losses not yet used and temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets were recognized 
in the statement of financial position was EUR 3,274 thousand (previous year: EUR 3,821 thousand). Of these tax 
losses carried forward, EUR 1,255 thousand (previous year: EUR 967 thousand) will expire within the next five years 
and EUR 2,020 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,891 thousand) will expire within the next six to ten years.

No deferred tax liabilities were recognized on temporary differences of EUR 1,045 thousand (previous year: 
EUR 1,051 thousand) related to investments in subsidiaries and branches.

19 .  E Q U I T Y

Subscribed capital
The company’s subscribed capital is EUR 24,496,546 and is divided into 24,496,546 no-par value ordinary bearer 
shares (no-par shares), each with a pro-rata interest of EUR 1.00.

Capital reserve
The capital reserves comprise only a capital reserve pursuant to Section 272 (2) no. 1 of the German Commercial 
Code.

Authorized capital
By the resolution adopted by the Annual General Meeting on 31 May 2018, the Management Board is authorized 
to increase the share capital once or repeatedly until 30 May 2023 with the approval of the Supervisory Board by 
up to a total of EUR 5,567,397.00 by issuing up to 5,567,397 new no-par value bearer shares in return for contri-
butions in cash or in kind (Authorized Capital 2018). Shareholders shall generally be granted a pre-emption right. 
However, the Management Board was authorized, in certain cases and within certain capital limits, to disapply 
shareholders’ pre-emption rights. This authorization was partially utilized in August 2018 by way of a capital increase 
through issuing 2,226,958 new no-par value shares from Authorized Capital 2018 in exchange for contributions in 
cash and excluding shareholders’ pre-emption rights; the share capital was increased by EUR 2,226,958.00. 
Authorized Capital 2018 is still EUR 3,340,439.00 and the capital limit on excluding shareholders’ pre-emption 
rights is fully used up for all existing authorizations. This authorization was not utilized in the past financial year.

The company’s share capital is contingently increased by up to EUR 5,567,397.00 through issuing up to 5,567,397 
new no-par value bearer shares (Contingent Capital 2018/I) in connection with the authorization resolved by the 
Annual General Meeting on 31 May 2018 to issue warrant bonds and / or convertible bonds up to 30 May 2023 
with a total nominal value of up to EUR 80,000,000.00, with the option to disapply pre-emption rights in certain 
cases and within certain capital limits. The contingent capital increase will only be implemented to the extent that 
the bearers or creditors of warrant bonds and / or convertible bonds utilize their warrant or conversion rights 
or fulfill their conversion obligations or the company exercises an option instead of paying the amount of money 
due for no-par value shares of the company. The Management Board did not utilize this authorization in the past 
financial year.

Own shares
The Management Board is authorized by resolution of the scheduled Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2020, 
subject to the Supervisory Board’s prior approval, to buy back own shares until 3 June 2025 corresponding in total 
to up to 10% of the company’s share capital either on the date the resolution was adopted or on the date the au-
thorization is exercised, whichever is higher. Together with other own shares held by the company or attributable 
to it in accordance with Sections 71d and 71e of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the shares acquired 
may at no time account for more than 10% of the share capital. The authorization may not be used for the purpose 
of trading in own shares. The authorization may be exercised in whole or in part, on one or more occasions, in 
pursuit of one or more purposes by the company or companies dependent upon it or majority-owned by it, or by 
third parties acting on their behalf or on behalf of the company.
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2020 employee participation program
From 10 to 13 November 2020 (inclusive), LPKF Laser & Electronics AG bought back on the capital market a total 
of 12,775 no-par value own shares, each with a pro-rata interest of EUR 1.00 in the share capital, under an employee 
participation program, and transferred them to the participating employees through an intermediary.

The average buyback price was EUR 18.9931 per share. The total amount came to EUR 242,636.70. The shares 
have a two-year lock-up period.

LPKF Laser & Electronics AG created an incentive to participate in the employee participation program by fully 
subsidizing employee payments up to a maximum amount of EUR 720.00 per employee. The resulting expense of 
EUR 243 thousand was recognized under staff costs.

2019 employee participation program
From 10 to 12 December 2019, LPKF AG bought back on the capital market a total of 10,266 no-par value own 
shares, each with a pro-rata interest of EUR 1.00 in the share capital, under an employee participation program, 
and transferred them to the participating employees through an intermediary.

The average buyback price was EUR 16.7151 per share. The total amount came to EUR 171,596.76. The shares 
have a two-year lock-up period.

LPKF AG created an incentive to participate in the employee participation program by fully subsidizing employee 
payments up to a maximum amount of EUR 360.00 per employee. The resulting expense of EUR 173 thousand was 
recognized under staff costs.

2 0 .  D E F E R R E D  I N C O M E
Deferred income was recognized for grants for capitalized development costs and other non-current assets. The 
components are released on an accrual basis in accordance with their useful lives. The same applies to government 
grants for building costs at the Suhl site totaling EUR 943 thousand.

2 1 .  P R O V I S I O N S  F O R  P E N S I O N S  A N D  S I M I L A R  O B L I G A T I O N S

Post-employment pension benefits
Germany has a statutory defined contribution national pension scheme for employees that pay pensions contingent 
on income and contributions made. The company has no benefit obligations other than the payment of its contri-
butions to the statutory pension insurance entity. Some of the Group’s employees have also taken out policies with 
a private insurer as part of the company pension plan and based on a shop agreement. In this case, too, the company 
has no other benefit obligations above and beyond the cost of contributions that are reported in current staff costs.

The provisions reported as pension benefits in the statement of financial position comprise only defined benefit 
obligations to former Management Board members of the parent company for which fixed pension benefits have 
been stipulated. The plan is financed through payments to a fund and to insurance companies. The promised 
benefits comprise payments for retirement pensions, disability pensions and widow’s and orphan’s pensions. Once 
the age threshold has been attained by reaching the end of the 65th year of life, or if eligibility to receive a disability 
pension is established prior to reaching the end of the 65th year of life, a commitment is made to pay the beneficiary 
a monthly pension payment for life. The widow’s pension paid to a surviving wife amounts to 60% or 70% of the 
relevant retirement pension entitlement. The weighted average term of the defined benefit plans is 17.5 years.

There is longevity and interest rate risk with regard to the pension provision. Reinsurance policies were obtained 
for hedging purposes and pledged to the beneficiaries. The fair value amounts are reported in the offsetting and 
reconciliation of the excess of plan assets over post-employment benefit liability.
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The carrying amount in the statement of financial position of the net liabilities (assets) for defined benefit plans in 
accordance with IAS 19 corresponds to the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) on the reporting 
date less the fair value of the plan assets. The DBO is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. The DBO’s present value is determined by discounting the expected future cash 
outflows at the interest rate of high-quality corporate bonds. The resulting revaluations (actuarial gains and losses) 
in connection with the remeasurement of net liabilities and net assets are recognized directly in other comprehensive 
income (OCI) due to IAS 19.

The following amounts were reported in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
at beginning of period 812 719

Current service cost 0 0

Interest expense 7 12

Pension payments −17 −17

Actuarial gains (-) and losses (+) 51 98

Present value of the defined benefit obligation  
at end of period 853 812

Plan assets

Reinsurance cover −427 −414

Securities −438 −432

Deficit (net liability (+)) / excess (net asset (−))
shown in the statement of financial position −12 −34

Development of net liabilities / assets: 

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Net assets at beginning of period 34 10

Total amount in the income statement 0 0

Total of the revaluations recognized in OCI −38 7

Benefit payments 0 0

Employer contributions 16 17

Net assets at end of period 12 34

All defined benefit plans are covered by plan assets; there are no unfunded plans. The fair value of the plan assets 
developed as follows:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

At beginning of period 846 729

Interest income from plan assets 7 12

Cost of / income on plan assets without interest income 12 105

Payments from plan assets −17 −17

Funded by the employer 16 17

At end of period 865 846
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The plan assets are made up as follows:

in EUR thousand

2020 2019

Absolute Percentage Absolute Percentage

Equity instruments 0 0% 0 0%

Debt securities 438 51% 432 51%

Other 427 49% 414 49%

Total 865 100% 846 100%

The debt securities include mixed fund shares that are primarily invested in fixed-income securities. Insurance 
plans are reported under Other. As in the previous year, the plan assets do not contain any financial instruments. 

The following amounts were recognized in the income statement:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Interest income from plan assets 7 12

Interest expense on the obligation −7 −12

Total effect on earnings in the income statement 0 0

The provisions for pensions were determined based on the following assumptions:

in % 2020 2019

Discount rate as of 12/31 0.50 0.90

Future salary increases 0.00 0.00

Future pension increases 1.75 1.75

Expected return on plan assets 0.50 0.90

Employee turnover 0.00 0.00

The determination of the expected return on the plan assets was based on the estimated return on the assets, 
taking into account the changes in the yields of non-current fixed-income instruments. The allocations to plans for 
post-employment benefits and pension payments payable in the financial year ending 31 December 2021 are 
estimated to total EUR 33 thousand.

The undiscounted pension payments based on the average life expectancy of 17.5 years result in the following 
maturity analysis:

12/31/2020
in EUR thousand Up to 1 year

Between  
1 and 5 years

Between  
5 and 10 years Total

Pension benefits 17 91 154 262
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Regarding possible changes in the significant actuarial assumptions made, the following sensitivities were 
determined:

Baseline values

Discount rate 0.50%

Pension trend 1.75%

DBO EUR 853,054

Sensitivities
Revalued  

DBO

Percentage
change in the

DBO

Discount rate plus 0.5% EUR 788,687 −7.55%

Discount rate minus 0.5% EUR 925,294 8.47%

Pension trend plus 0.25%   EUR 880,869 3.26%

Pension trend minus 0.25% EUR 826,462 −3.12%

Anniversar y  payments  and benef i ts  s imi lar  to  pens ions
One Group company is obligated to pay its employees a benefit equal to three months of an employee’s salary 
based on the most recently paid salary when employment is terminated due to the employee reaching the maximum 
age threshold. In addition, the company is required to pay a benefit calculated based on the attainment of a certain 
number of years of service with the company. The company, which is included in the consolidated financial state-
ments, meets these obligations itself as soon as they become due. These obligations are measured annually by an 
independent actuary. No plan assets are maintained for this purpose. The amount of the obligation is therefore 
reported in the statement of financial position under provisions for employee benefits.

Payments totaling EUR 44 thousand are expected in the next five years.

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are comprised as follows:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
at beginning of period 345 267

Current service cost 23 18

Interest expense 3 6

Benefit payments −6 −15

Employees left −7 0

Benefit changes 0 0

Actuarial gains (−) and losses (+) −1 69

Present value of the defined benefit obligation  
at end of period 357 345

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED NOTES

COMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT



110

The following amounts were recognized in the income statement:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Current service cost 23 18

Interest expense on the obligation 3 6

Total amount in the income statement 26 24

Regarding possible changes in the significant actuarial assumptions made, the following sensitivities were 
determined:

Baseline values

Discount rate 1.09%

Salary trend 2.00%

DBO EUR 357,817

Sensitivities
Revalued  

DBO

Percentage
change in the

DBO

Discount rate minus 0.5% 385,344 EUR 7.69%

Discount rate plus 0.5% 332,976 EUR −6.94%

Salary trend minus 0.5% 333,126 EUR −6.90%

Salary trend plus 0.5% 384,880 EUR 7.56%

2 2 .  O T H E R  P R O V I S I O N S
Provisions are recognized for legal or constructive obligations resulting from past events if it is probable that settling 
the obligation will lead to an outflow of Group resources and that a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
can be made. Other provisions are recognized at their estimated settlement value in accordance with IAS 12.

in EUR thousand
Guarantees 

and warranties Bonuses LTI Other Total

As of 01/01/2020 1,624 1,411 291 2,070 5,396

Utilization −935 −1,348 0 −1,440 −3,723

Reversals −508 −61 −75 −619 −1,263

Additions 766 939 417 313 2,435

Currency differences −3 −2 0 5 0

As of 12/31/2020 944 939 633 329 2,845

Long-term 0 0 339 0 339

Short-term 944 939 294 329 2,506
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Guarantees and war rant ies
The provisions for guarantees and warranties cover potential statutory or financial obligations under guarantee 
and goodwill cases.

Bonuses
The provision for bonuses is recognized for variable remuneration components that will be paid out after the end 
of the current financial year. It includes short-term bonus components for the Management Board and senior 
management as well as other short-term variable remuneration components for other employees and functions. 
Detailed information on Management Board remuneration can be found under note 33 and in the remuneration 
report, which is part of the management report.

LTI  for  execut ives:  2012 – 2018 t ranches
In 2012, a long-term incentive program (LTI) was launched in which a selected group of LPKF Group executives can 
participate. The beneficiaries are entitled to a long-term bonus. This is paid to the beneficiaries depending on the 
long-term bonus allotment granted to each individual, the average EBIT margin of the LPKF Group during a four-, 
five- or six-year performance period and the performance of LPKF’s share price. The program does not stipulate 
settlement by granting of equity instruments. Payment requires beneficiaries to have an unterminated employment 
contract as of 20 July of the year in which the payment is made.

At plan inception, a preliminary number of phantom stocks corresponding to the allotment value is specified, which 
represents the starting point for calculating the bonus payment. The final number of phantom stocks is determined 
at the end of the performance period. The performance period amounts to at least four years, but can be extended 
to five, or no more than six years, upon the request of an individual beneficiary. The final number of phantom stocks 
is determined based on an in-house measure of the company’s success, the EBIT margin. If the target is exceeded 
or the actual figure falls short of the target, the preliminary number of phantom stocks at the time of the allotment 
is increased or decreased accordingly. The payment amount is determined by measuring the value of the phantom 
stocks using the average XETRA closing price for LPKF shares on the 30 trading days prior to 21 July after the end 
of the four-, five- or six-year performance period. The amount of the payment is limited to no more than 300% of 
the individual allotment value. Im Geschäftsjahr 2019 wurde keine Tranche für Führungskräfte ausgegeben.

LTI  for  execut ives:  2020 t ranche
In 2020, the LTI program for key executives was largely aligned with the new program for Management Board 
members. The beneficiaries are entitled to a long-term bonus. This is paid to the beneficiaries depending on the 
long-term bonus allotment granted to each individual, the average value contribution of the LPKF Group during a 
three-year performance period, and the performance of LPKF’s share price, subject to compliance with further 
requirements in accordance with the long-term bonus plan. The individual performance periods begin on 1 January 
of each year. The program does not stipulate settlement by granting of equity instruments. Payment requires 
beneficiaries to have an unterminated employment contract at the end of the three-year performance period.

At plan inception, a preliminary number of phantom stocks corresponding to the allotment value is specified, which 
represents the starting point for calculating the bonus payment. The final number of phantom stocks is determined 
at the end of the performance period. The final number of phantom stocks is determined based on an in-house 
measure of the average value contribution of the LPKF Group over the respective three-year performance period. 

If the target is exceeded or the actual figure falls short of the target, the preliminary number of phantom stocks at 
the time of the allotment is increased or decreased accordingly. The final number of phantom stocks is limited to 
twice the number of phantom stocks originally allocated. The amount to be paid out is calculated by multiplying 
the final number of phantom stocks by the average XETRA closing price for LPKF shares for the first quarter following 
the end of the three-year performance period. The average XETRA closing share price is increased by the sum of 
all dividends per share paid out during the performance period. The maximum amount of the payment is limited to 
four times the individual allotment value.
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LTI  for  members of  the Management  Board:  2018–2020 t ranches
The LTI program for members of the Management Board served as a template for the LTI program for executives 
relaunched in the 2020 financial year and described above. A key difference is that the amount to be paid out for 
the Management Board is still increased by the dividends per share paid out during the performance period. The 
program for members of the Management Board is explained in detail in the remuneration report, which is part of 
the management report.

LTI  account ing
Reporting of share-based payment transactions settled in cash is governed by IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. The 
expense expected to arise from the long-term bonus program is estimated at fair value at each reporting date using 
an option pricing model. The expected total expense from the program is distributed pro rata temporis across the 
time period up to the first possible exercise date.

The following parameters were used in the option pricing model (modified Black Scholes (Merton) model) for 
determining the fair value as of 31 December 2020:

LTI (executives)

Tranche
2016

Tranche
2017

Tranche
2018

Tranche
2020

Expected volatility 75% 75% 75% 75%

Risk-free interest rate 0.00% p.a. 0.00% p.a. 0.00% p.a. 0.00% p.a.

Allotment value EUR 50 thousand EUR 60 thousand EUR 40 thousand EUR 201 thousand

Expected remaining maturity 7 months 7 months
1 year and
7 months 2 years

LPKF share price as of 30 Dec. 2020 EUR 29.45 EUR 29.45 EUR 29.45 EUR 29.45

Initial price of LPKF shares EUR 6.18 EUR 9.58 EUR 7.02 EUR 19.18

Number of phantom stocks at  
the allotment date 8,100 6,212 5,660 10,950

LTI (members of the Management Board)

Tranche
2018

Tranche
2019

Tranche
2020

Expected volatility 75% 75% 75%

Risk-free interest rate 0.00% p.a. 0.00% p.a. 0.00% p.a.

Expected remaining maturity EUR 72 thousand EUR 140 thousand EUR 140 thousand

LPKF share price as of 30 Dec. 2020 EUR 29.45 EUR 29.45 EUR 29.45

Initial price of LPKF shares EUR 9.01 EUR 6.75 EUR 19.18

Number of phantom stocks at the 
allotment date 7,955 20,741 7,299

The 2018 tranches for executives and members of the Management Board are based on different programs with 
different parameters.

On 10 March 2021, Dr. Goetz M. Bendele, CEO of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG, informed the Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board that he does not wish to extend his contract, which runs until 30 April 2021. Dr. Bendele will 
leave the company at the end of April 2021. As a result, in accordance with the plan’s terms and conditions, this 
Management Board member no longer has the right to receive payments for the 2019 and 2020 tranches of the 
LTI program. The provision of EUR 75 thousand recognized as of 31 December 2019 for the 2019 tranche was re-
versed in profit or loss in 2020.
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LTI provision as of reporting date is:

in EUR thousand 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

LTI (executives) 361 71

LTI (members of the Management Board) 272 220

Total 633 291

The expenses and income from share-based payments recognized in the 2020 financial year amount to

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Other income 75 0

Personnel expenses −417 −273

Total −342 −273

Other
Other provisions mainly include provisions for inventor remuneration, sales commissions and license fees. 

2 3  O T H E R  F I N A N C I A L  L I A B I L I T I E S
Upon initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at fair value after deduction of transaction costs. They 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the disbursement amount (after deduction 
of transaction costs) and the repayment amount is amortized over the term of the liability in the income statement 
using the effective interest rate method.

in EUR thousand
Total

amount
of which 

current
of which 

current
Secured 

amounts

Liabilities to banks

2020 4,846 1,816 3,030 4,846

2019 6,812 1,966 4,846 6,660

Liabilities from  
finance leases

2020 2,096 692 1,404

2019 2,086 0 2,086

Other financial liabilities

2020 6,942 2,508 4,434

2019 8,898 1,966 6,932

All loans were issued in euros. They are earmarked for financing new construction, purchases of property, invest-
ments to expand capacities, and equipment. The loan maturity dates range from March 2023 to December 2024. 
The agreed interest rates are between 1.0% and 2.4%. The loans are secured by land charges.

No overdraft facilities were utilized at the reporting date of 31 December 2020. The overdraft facilities are secured 
by assignment of receivables and security assignment of inventories. The carrying amount of the inventories pledged 
as collateral as of the reporting date is EUR 11,328.
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2 4 .  O T H E R  N O N - F I N A N C I A L  L I A B I L I T I E S
Other non-financial liabilities of EUR 4,428 thousand (previous year: EUR 4,915 thousand) mainly include accrued 
liabilities of EUR 970 thousand (previous year: EUR 715 thousand) that are fixed in principle but subject to residual 
uncertainty as to amount and timing. Short-term employee benefits from wages, salaries and social security con-
tributions of EUR 838 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,424 thousand) and from paid absences such as vacation and 
reduction of overtime in the amount of EUR 1,231 thousand (previous year: EUR 961 thousand) are also reported 
under this item. In addition, liabilities to the Supervisory Board of EUR 142 thousand (previous year: EUR 119 thou-
sand) are recognized.

I .  OTHER DISCLOSURES

2 5 .  S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
Cash flow from operating activities is derived from the consolidated financial statements using the indirect method; 
pursuant to IAS 7, it presents the changes in cash flows broken down by inflows and outflows for operating activities. 
Cash flows from investing and financing activities, on the other hand, are calculated using the direct method. The 
total is the change in cash and cash equivalents. This comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equiv-
alents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

R E C O N C I L I A T I O N  F O R  L I A B I L I T I E S  F R O M  F I N A N C I N G  A C T I V I T I E S  
A S  P E R  I A S  7

Non-cash changes

2020
in EUR thousand 01/01/2020

Cash
changes

Acquisi-
tions

Currency- 
exchange- 

related 
changes

Fair value
changes 12/31/2020

Non-current loans 4,846 −1,816 0 0 0 3,030

Current loans 1,966 −150 0 0 0 1,816

of which overdraft facilities 2 −2 0 0 0 0

Lease liabilities 2,086 −735 745 0 0 2,096

Total 8,898 −2,701 745 0 0 6,942
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Non-cash changes

2019
in EUR thousand 01/01/2019

Cash
changes

Acquisi-
tions

Currency- 
exchange- 

related 
changes

Fair value
changes 12/31/2019

Non-current loans 17,444 −12,598 0 0 0 4,846

Current loans 2,603 −637 0 0 0 1,966

of which overdraft facilities 2 0 0 0 0 2

Lease liabilities 1,938 −816 964 0 0 2,086

Assets held as collateral for
non-current loans 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 21,985 −14,051 964 0 0 8,898

2 6 .  E A R N I N G S  P E R  S H A R E
According to IAS 33, basic earnings per share are determined by dividing the consolidated net profit for the year 
attributable to the shareholders of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG by the weighted number of shares outstanding 
during the financial year. There are currently no transactions that would trigger dilution.

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Number of shares, undiluted 24,496,546 24,496,546

Number of shares, diluted 24,496,546 24,496,546

Consolidated net profit / loss (in EUR thousand) 5,342 13,149

Basic earnings per share (in EUR) 0.22 0.54

2 7.  D I V I D E N D  P E R  S H A R E
LPKF did not generate a positive free cash flow (sum of cash flow from operating activities and cash flow from 
investing activities) in the 2020 financial year due to the difficult economic conditions caused by the pandemic. 
Due to the overall profitable business performance, the solid financing and the positive outlook, the Management 
Board and the Supervisory Board will nevertheless propose to the Annual General Meeting on 20 May 2021 to 
distribute a dividend of EUR 0.10 per share (previous year: EUR 0.10 per share).

2 8 .  T R A N S A C T I O N S  W I T H  R E L A T E D  P A R T I E S
As of the reporting date, LPKF Laser & Electronics AG had EUR 142 thousand in liabilities to members of the 
Supervisory Board (previous year: EUR 119 thousand).

Apart from these, there were no other receivables from or liabilities to, nor were any payments or benefits granted 
to, related parties or LPKF Group companies. Notes 33 and 34 provide details on the corporate bodies of LPKF 
Laser & Electronics AG.

2 9 .  G E R M A N  C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E  C O D E
The declaration of compliance by the Supervisory Board and the Management Board required under Section 161 
of the German Stock Corporation Act on the application of the recommendations of the Government Commission 
of the German Corporate Governance Code, as well as the disclosures of any non-compliance with the recommen-
dations, were made permanently available to the public on the company’s website (https://www.lpkf.com/de/
investor-relations/corporate-governance).
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3 0 .  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S

Classification of financial assets and liabilities 
The financial instruments reported in the LPKF consolidated statement of financial position comprise trade receiv-
ables, cash and cash equivalents, derivatives, trade payables, liabilities to banks as well as other assets and liabilities 
under contractual agreements.

Financial assets are measured at fair value, net of any transaction costs, at the settlement date. Trade receivables, 
on the other hand, are initially recognized at the transaction price. Subsequent measurement of financial assets 
varies depending on classification.

Within the classification of financial assets, IFRS 9 differentiates between debt instruments and equity instruments. 
LPKF Laser & Electronics AG’s consolidated financial statements do not include any equity instruments.

The first step in classifying debt instruments is to analyze how the entity manages the relevant financial instruments 
in order to realize cash flows from them (business model test). The cash flows to be realized are analyzed to de-
termine whether they originate primarily from the HOLDING or SELLING of financial assets or from a COMBINATION 

OF THE TWO. The second step is to analyze the contractual cash flows to determine whether the financial asset 
meets the core principle of a normal lending arrangement. This is the case when the contractual cash flows of a 
financial asset give rise to payments on specified dates that are solely payments of PRINCIPAL and INTEREST on 
the principal amount outstanding.

Based on the business model test and the cash flow criterion, the Group’s financial assets are predominantly clas-
sified under the “at amortized cost” category. On the other hand, derivatives – as well as investment products in the 
previous year – do not meet the cash flow criterion and should therefore be assigned to the “at fair value through 
profit or loss” category. Income and expenses related to the financial assets are recognized in profit or loss.

At initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus any transaction costs. They are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Transaction costs are taken into account 
when calculating the effective interest rate. Income and expenses related to the financial liabilities are recognized 
in profit or loss.
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IFRS 9 carrying amount

2020
in EUR thousand

Measure-
ment

category
as per
IFRS 9

Carrying
amount

as of 
12/31/2020

Amortized
cost

Fair value
through 

other
compre-
hensive
income

Fair 
value

through
profit or

loss

Fair value
as of 

12/31/2020

Fair value
hierarchy

level

ASSETS

Other financial 
liabilities AC 20,074 20,074 – – 20,074 –

Trade receivables AC 13,199 13,199 – – 13,199 –

Derivatives – without 
hedge accounting FVtPL 33 – – 33 33 2

Total 33,306 33,273 0 33 33,306 –

EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES

Trade payables FLAC 7,629 7,629 – – 7,629 –

Liabilities to banks FLAC 4,846 4,846 – – 4,967 2

Other interest-free
liabilities FLAC 1,664 1,664 – – 1,664 –

Lease liabilities n/a 2,096 – – – – –

Total 16,235 14,139 0 0 14,260 –

Aggregated by measurement category as of IFRS 9 in EUR thousand Carrying amou

Amortized cost (AC) 33,273

Fair value through profit or loss (FVtPL) 33

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (FLAC) 14,139

Not to be classified (n/a) 2,096

Total 49,541
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IFRS 9 carrying amount

2019
in EUR thousand

Measure-
ment

category
as per
IFRS 9

Carrying
amount

as of 
12/31/2019

Amortized
cost

Fair value
through 

other
compre-
hensive
income

Fair 
value

through
profit or

loss

Fair value
as of 

12/31/2019

Fair value
hierarchy

level

ASSETS

Cash and cash 
equivalents AC 31,343 31,343 – – 31,343 –

Trade receivables AC 11,325 11,325 – – 11,325 –

Investment products (FVtPL) 575 – – 575 575 2

Total 43,243 42,668 0 575 43,243 –

EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Trade payables FLAC 5,616 5,616 – – 5,616 –

Liabilities to banks FLAC 6,812 6,812 – – 7,014 2

Other interest-free
liabilities FLAC 1,028 1,028 – – 1,028 –

Lease liabilities n / a 2,086 – – – – –

Total 15,542 13,456 0 0 13,658 –

Aggregated by measurement category as of IFRS 9 in EUR thousand Carrying amou

Amortized cost (AC) 42,668

Fair value through profit or loss (FVtPL) 575

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (FLAC) 13,456

Not to be classified (n/a) 2,086

Total 58,785

Determination of the fair value – fair value hierarchy
As far as possible, the LPKF Group uses observable market data to determine the fair value of an asset or liability. 
Based on the inputs used in the measurement, the fair values are assigned to different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy:

•	 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices on active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•	� Level 2: Measurement parameters other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

•	� Level 3: Measurement parameters for assets or liabilities not based on observable market data.
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The LPKF Group recognizes reclassifications between different levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of 
the reporting period in which the change occurred. There were no transfers between different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy in 2020 or the year before.

Because of short remaining maturities, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, current receivables, trade 
payables as well as current financial assets and liabilities closely correspond to the respective carrying amounts. 
The fair value of investment products in the previous year and liabilities to banks was determined by discounting 
future cash flows with risk-adjusted interest rates corresponding to the respective term. The fair value of derivatives 
is determined externally by banks using a mid-market valuation.

The net gains/losses from financial instruments are as follows:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Amortized cost (AC) −686 −135

Fair value through profit or loss (FVtPL) 50 −384

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (FLAC) −290 −518

−926 −1,037

The net gains and losses from financial instruments measured at amortized cost include changes in loss allowances, 
gains and losses on disposal, payments received, reversals of write-downs on receivables as well as currency 
translation.

Hedging po l icy  and r isk  management
The LPKF Group uses various derivative financial instruments to hedge future transactions and cash flows. Partic-
ularly derivatives such as forwards, options and swaps are used to that end. Special hedge accounting rules may 
be applied under IFRS 9 if certain conditions are met. The hedging relationship between the hedged item and the 
hedging instrument must be documented, and its effectiveness must be evidenced. As of 31 December 2020, there 
were no hedge relationships with hedge accounting.

Risk management  pr inc ip les
The assets, liabilities and planned transactions of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG are exposed, in particular, to risks 
from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The aim of financial risk management is to limit these 
risks. Depending on the nature of the risk, this primarily involves the use of derivative financial instruments. These 
instruments are exclusively used for hedging, i.e. they are not used for trading or speculative purposes.

Risk management is handled by the Management Board, which fixes the general guidelines for risk management 
and determines the relevant procedures. It is implemented by the specialist departments and subsidiaries subject 
to compliance with authorized business guidelines and coordinated by the Group Risk Officer.

The material risks from financial instruments and the attendant risk management system of the LPKF Group are 
disclosed below:

Cur rency r isk
The currency risks to which the LPKF Group is exposed mainly arise from receivables, liabilities, cash and future 
transactions in foreign currencies. Assets recognized in currencies with declining exchange rates decline in value. 
Liabilities reported in currencies with rising exchange rates increase in value. From the Group’s point of view, only 
the difference between income and expense in a foreign currency is exposed to risk.
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As a rule, risks are hedged only if they have an impact on the Group’s cash flows. Foreign currency risks that have 
no impact on the Group’s cash flows are not hedged. These include risks from the translation of the assets and 
liabilities reported in the annual financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into euros, the Group’s reporting 
currency. Most invoices related to operations are issued in euros. Sales in North America are invoiced in USD. Cash 
flows in other foreign currencies are required in some cases. As far as possible, the Group pays for its procurement 
in USD, thus applying a natural hedge philosophy. In net terms, however, this does give rise to USD cash inflows. 
Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge net foreign currency inflows contracted for up to twelve 
months. Foreign currency hedges cannot fully offset the negative effects of the euro’s continued strength against 
the US dollar on the Group’s competitive position.

The disclosure of market risks requires sensitivity analyses pursuant to IFRS 7. They show the effects of hypothetical 
changes in the relevant risk variables on performance and equity. Currency risks arising from changes in the USD 
exchange rate have priority for LPKF in this respect. The periodic effects are determined by relating the hypothetical 
changes in the risk variables to the holdings of financial instruments as of the reporting date. The assumption is 
that the value of the holdings as of the reporting date is representative for the whole year. Differences from foreign 
currency translation of the annual financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into euros, the Group’s functional 
currency, are not taken into account.

The currency sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions:

Pursuant to IFRS 7, the analysis shows only the effects of exchange rate changes on financial instruments held by 
the Group as of the reporting date.

Based on a net foreign currency exposure of EUR 654 thousand, if the euro had risen by 10% against the US dollar, 
earnings before income taxes would have reduced by EUR 240 thousand. A 10% decline in the euro would have 
resulted in a positive effect on earnings (before income taxes) of EUR 196 thousand.

In terest  rate  r isk
Variable interest rates give rise to cash flow risks that affect cash and cash equivalents. Based on a risk exposure 
of EUR 25,709 thousand, an increase in interest rates by 25 basis points yields a gain of EUR 64 thousand, while 
a decrease in interest rates by 25 basis points yields a loss of EUR 7 thousand. Given low interest rates, the sen-
sitivities were determined using a hypothetical change by 25 basis points. The low interest rate sensitivities relative 
to cash and cash equivalents largely stem from low-interest cash and cash equivalents.

The long-term loans within the LPKF Group obtained to finance buildings are subject to fixed interest rates.

Liqu id i ty  r isk
The liquidity risk concerns the risk of not being able to satisfy existing or future payment obligations due to a lack 
of cash. The Group’s objective in managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, sufficient cash is available 
under both normal and stressed conditions to meet payment obligations as they fall due without incurring unac-
ceptable losses or causing damage to the Group’s reputation.

The LPKF Group’s financing policy counters any liquidity risks with a profitable business performance, a reduction 
in working capital, moderate debt, a diversified maturity profile and adequate liquidity reserves. LPKF limits liquidity 
risk by actively managing liquidity. The essential core of liquidity management is planning working capital and cash. 
In addition, as of 31 December 2020, there are commitments for credit facilities with the core banks of the LPKF 
Group totaling EUR 25.0 million, which had not been utilized as of the reporting date and may be utilized if additional 
liquidity is required.
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This risk is managed centrally within the LPKF Group. The liquidity risk is minimized through continuous liquidity 
planning. In addition to existing cash and cash equivalents, credit lines are also available from various banks. The 
European companies of the LPKF Group pool their liquidity peaks by way of cash pooling. All other companies carry 
out their ongoing cash management locally. LPKF is continually reviewing whether to expand cash pooling to other 
international companies. In the event of a significant financing requirement, reviews are performed to determine 
whether to utilize local financing or financing via LPKF Laser & Electronics AG. Long-term bank loans were used to 
finance the buildings in Garbsen, Suhl and Fürth.

F I N A N C I A L  L I A B I L I T I E S  M A T U R I T Y  B R E A K D O W N
The contractual remaining maturities of the financial liabilities at the reporting date, including estimated interest 
payments, are presented below. These are undiscounted gross amounts including contractual interest payments, 
but without presentation of the effect of offsetting.

in EUR thousand

Carrying
amount

as of 12/31
Total

amount Up to 1 year

Between
1 and 5 

years
More than

5 years

Trade payables

2020 7,629 7,629 7,629 0 0

2019 5,616 5,616 5,612 4 0

Financial obligations
and loans

2020 4,846 4,978 1,898 3,080 0

2019 6,812 7,059 2,080 4,978 0

Other interest-free liabilities

2020 1,664 1,664 1,664 0

2019 1,028 1,028 1,028 0 0

Lease liabilities

2020 2,096 2,378 692 1,686 0

2019 2,086 2,505 743 1,762 0

Credi t  r isk
The LPKF Group’s operating business and some of its financing activities expose it to default risks. Outstanding 
receivables from the operating business are monitored on an ongoing, decentralized basis by the segments and 
subsidiaries. Default risks are accounted for by appropriate loss allowances. There are no significant counterparty 
credit risks by customer group or geographical region. Receivables are hedged in part through credit insurance or 
bank guarantees (LC).

The maximum default risk for financial assets normally corresponds to the carrying amount. There is also EUR 419 thou-
sand in payment commitments from banks (letters of credit) to cover trade receivables. This leaves solely the credit 
risk of the collateral provider. In addition, EUR 8,612 thousand in trade receivables is securitized through credit 
default insurance. 49% of the trade receivables are securitized and 51% are not. The maximum default risk for trade 
receivables is therefore 49% of the carrying amount.
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Impairment model for financial assets
Impairment is based on the expected loss model. The amount of the impairment is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, dis-
counted at the effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognized directly in profit or loss under respective 
impairment loss items. The expected credit losses are adjusted as of the end of each reporting period to reflect 
changes in the credit risk since initial recognition of the respective instrument.

Trade receivables are managed on a rolling basis. With a few exceptions, trade receivables from third parties are 
covered by trade credit insurance. So far, no significant changes in bad debt losses compared with previous years 
have been identified as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Genera l  approach: 
The general approach to the impairment model as per IFRS 9 contains three stages:

Stage 1 ( low defau l t  r isk)
At the date of addition, all financial instruments are categorized as stage 1. An exception to this is financial instru-
ments that are already impaired at the date of addition. These financial instruments do not exist at LPKF. The loss 
allowance is based on the value of the expected credit losses over the next 12 months. The expected credit risk is 
based on historic and current information as well as future-oriented estimates.

Stage 2 (s ign i f icant  defau l t  r isk)
If a stage 1 financial instrument is subject to a significant increase in its credit risk, then it is reclassified as 
stage 2. As long as there is no rebuttable presumption, contractually agreed payments that are more than 30 days 
past due constitute a significant increase in credit risk. The loss allowance is based on the value of the expected 
losses over the remaining maturity. The expected credit risk is based on historic default rates and is adjusted 
by individual expectations.

Stage 3 (cred i t  impai rment)
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of that financial asset occur. Indicators of this might be significant financial difficulties on the 
part of the debtor or an enhanced probability that the debtor will become bankrupt. If there are no other indi-
cations in the relevant case, the LPKF Group assumes that a financial asset is credit-impaired when it is more 
than 90 days past due.

Deprec iat ion,  amor t izat ion and wr i te-downs
The LPKF Group assumes that a financial asset has defaulted if the receivable is unrecoverable, e.g. if the given 
debtor is bankrupt. The gross carrying amount of a defaulted financial asset is subsequently written down when 
the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Within the LPKF Group, the general approach to the impairment model as per IFRS 9 is used for cash and cash 
equivalents. The losses that may be incurred as a result are immaterial to the LPKF Group.
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Simpl i f ied approach:
In accordance with IFRS 9, the LPKF Group exercises the option to apply a simplified approach to current trade 
receivables. Accordingly, the receivables are to be assigned to stage 2 on initial recognition and an assessment of 
a significant increase in credit risk is not required.

The LPKF Group uses an impairment matrix to determine the expected losses for current trade receivables. The 
default rates used in this matrix are based on historic default rates and are adjusted by future-oriented estimates. 
Forward-looking information includes, but is not limited to, audited annual financial statements, management 
calculations, cash flow forecasts and available press information about customers as well as information about the 
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate obtained from various sources. The historic 
default rates are updated and the future-oriented estimates are reanalyzed on each reporting date.

The time bands used in the impairment matrix to determine the expected losses are as follows:

Gross value of receivables in EUR

Days past due 12/31/2020 Credit-impaired 12/31/2019 Credit-impaired

Current 11,269 No 9,407 No

1–30 days past due 1,057 No 1,104 No

31–60 days past due 305 No 498 No

61–90 days past due 401 No 213 No

More than 90 days past due 307 Yes 733 Yes

Total 13,339 11,955

The changes in loss allowances on trade receivables were as follows in the reporting year:

Loss allowances recognized on trade receivables and loans
in EUR thousand 2020 2019

As of 01/01 −629 −337

+ / − Stage 2 loss allowances 83 25

+ / − Stage 3 loss allowances 406 −317

− Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 0 0

As of 12/31 −140 −629
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Capi ta l  management  d isc losures
The Group’s capital management serves to secure the company’s existence as a going concern and pursue opportunities 
for growth with the aim of continuing to funnel profits to its shareholders and provide other interested parties with 
services due to them. Maintaining the best possible capital structure to reduce capital costs is another objective. To 
maintain or modify its capital structure, depending on the given situation, the Group adjusts dividend payments to its 
shareholders, repays capital to its shareholders, issues new shares or sells assets in order to discharge liabilities.

Equity available in EUR thousand 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Debt securities 92,912 90,837

Fremdkapital 28,743 37,175

3 1 .  O T H E R  F I N A N C I A L  O B L I G A T I O N S
There are framework agreements for purchase orders with the aim of fixing prices for a larger quantity that will not 
be accepted until after the reporting date, amounting to EUR 812 thousand (previous year: EUR 4,113 thousand). 
For annually recurring maintenance contracts, mainly for software applications, there are contracts amounting to 
EUR 1,241 thousand (previous year: EUR 1,264 thousand) beyond the reporting date. There are no other significant 
financial obligations.

3 2 .  �D I S C L O S U R E S  P U R S U A N T  T O  S E C T I O N   3 15 E  O F  T H E  G E R M A N  
C O M M E R C I A L  C O D E

The requirements of Section 315e of the German Commercial Code for the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements according to IFRS, as applicable in the EU, have been fulfilled. In addition to IFRS disclosure obligations, 
LPKF also publishes details and explanations required under the German Commercial Code.

3 3 .  D I S C L O S U R E S  O N  M A N A G E M E N T  B O A R D  R E M U N E R A T I O N

Dr. Goetz M. Bendele Strategy, Sales, Human Resources, Marketing

Christian Witt Finance, Investor Relations, Compliance and Legal Affairs

The remuneration of the Management Board is performance-based and consists of a fixed component and variable, 
performance-based salary components. Details regarding the remuneration system and individual disclosures are 
presented in the remuneration report, which is part of the Group management report.

The members of the Management Board received total remuneration of EUR 953 thousand in the 2020 financial 
year (2019: EUR 477 thousand). EUR 473 thousand of this was attributed to fixed remuneration components, in-
cluding incidental benefits that were fully paid out in the 2020 reporting year. A total of EUR 480 thousand (2019: 
EUR 0 thousand) is attributable to the variable remuneration components that accrued to the members of the 
Management Board for tax purposes in the 2020 financial year.

Expenses relating to setting of provisions for share-based payments as defined in IAS 24.17 (e) of EUR 127 thousand 
(previous year: EUR 220 thousand) were also recognized for members of the Management Board and EUR 75 thou-
sand was reversed. An amount of EUR 10 thousand (previous year: EUR 440 thousand) was set aside for the 2020 
bonus. The fair value of the share-based remuneration at the allotment date was EUR 352 thousand.

LPKF ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SEGMENTSTO OUR SHAREHOLDERS



125

Commitments to members of the Management Board upon departure
A post-contractual non-competition clause for a period of twelve months after departure is in place for members 
of the Management Board irrespective of whether the departure was ordinary or extraordinary.

If the appointment of a member of the Management Board ends early on account of his death while in office, the 
fixed monthly remuneration shall still be paid to his heirs for a period of three months.

The company did not make any performance-based pension commitments to the current members of its Manage-
ment Board in the reporting period.

Total remuneration of former members of the Management Board
Provisions were recognized for EUR 651 thousand (previous year: EUR 617 thousand) in pension commitments 
(pension plan, disability pension and widow’s pension) to former members of the Management Board and their 
survivors. A total of EUR 17 thousand (previous year: EUR 17 thousand) in pensions was paid to a former member 
of the Management Board in 2020.

The interest income from plan assets of EUR 7 thousand (previous year: EUR 12 thousand) and the interest expense 
on the obligation of EUR 7 thousand (previous year: EUR 12 thousand) offset each other, so there is no effect on 
the income statement.

3 4 .  D I S C L O S U R E S  O N  S U P E R V I S O R Y  B O A R D  R E M U N E R A T I O N

Jean-Michel Richard
(Member from 25 November 2020 and Chairman  
from 1 December 2020)

Founder and independent senior advisor at Fisadis 
Consulting Ltd, Rushall, UK

Dr. Dirk Rothweiler
(Deputy Chairman from 6 June 2019) Independent management consultant, Weimar, Germany

Prof. Dr.-Ing. Ludger Overmeyer

University professor and Head of the Institute of 
Transport and Automation Technology at Leibniz 
University Hanover, Germany

Member of other statutory supervisory boards: 
Member of the Supervisory Board of Viscom AG, 
Hanover, Germany (listed company)

Dr. Markus Peters
(Member and Chairman up to 13 November 2020)

Former Head of Finance and Investment of German 
Technology AG, Hanover, Germany (up to 30 June 2020)
Former member of the Board of Directors of LPKF 
Distribution Inc., Portland, US (up to 23 November 2020)

Each member of the Supervisory Board receives fixed basic remuneration for each full financial year of membership 
on the Supervisory Board, which is specified by resolution of the Annual General Meeting and is payable after the 
end of the financial year. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives double and the Deputy Chairman receives 
one-and-a-half times the amount of the fixed basic remuneration. By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 
2 June 2016, the fixed basic remuneration of each member of the Supervisory Board was set at EUR 32 thousand 
effective from 1 January 2017.
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The remuneration of the Supervisory Board’s active members solely concerns short-term benefits as defined in 
IAS 24.17 (a). Further disclosures regarding the remuneration of the Supervisory Board, particularly individual 
disclosures, are set out in the remuneration report, which is part of the Group management report.

3 5 .  A U D I T O R  F E E S  I N V O I C E D  D U R I N G  T H E  F I N A N C I A L  Y E A R
The company is obligated under the German Commercial Code (Section 314 (1) no. 9) to disclose Group auditor’s 
fees for auditing the annual financial statements invoiced during the financial year:

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Audits of financial statements 139 155

of which prior-period 19 0

Other assurance services 0 0

Other services 16 26

Total 155 181

3 6 .  E V E N T S  A F T E R  T H E  R E P O R T I N G  P E R I O D
On 10 March 2021, Dr. Goetz M. Bendele, CEO of LPKF Laser & Electronics AG, informed the Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board that he does not wish to extend his contract, which runs until 30 April 2021. Dr. Bendele will 
leave the company at the end of April 2021.

Beyond this, no events occurred after the end of the 2020 financial year that are of particular significance for the 
Group’s net assets, financial position and results of operations.

Garbsen, 16 March 2021

LPKF Laser & Electronics Aktiengesellschaft

The Management Board

		
	
	
D R .  G O E T Z  M .  B E N D E L E 		  C H R I S T I A N  W I T T
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the Group, and 
the Group management report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the 
position of the Group, together with a description of the material opportunities and risks associated with the ex-
pected development of the Group.

Garbsen, 16 March 2021

LPKF Laser & Electronics Aktiengesellschaft

The Management Board

		
	
	
D R .  G O E T Z  M .  B E N D E L E 		  C H R I S T I A N  W I T T
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND OF THE COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT

O P I N I O N S
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LPKF Laser & Electronics Aktiengesellschaft, Garbsen, 
and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 
2020 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 and notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. In addition, we 
have audited the management report on the company and the Group (hereinafter “combined management report”) 
of LPKF Laser & Electronics Aktiengesellschaft for the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. 
In accordance with German legal requirements, we have not audited the content of those components of the 
combined management report specified in the “Other information” section of our auditor’s report.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

•	� the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the IFRSs as adopt-
ed by the EU and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315e (1) HGB 
[Handelsgesetzbuch: German Commercial Code] and, in compliance with these requirements, give a true and 
fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2020 and of its financial 
performance for the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, and

•	� the accompanying combined management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s posi-
tion. In all material respects, this combined management report is consistent with the consolidated financial 
statements, complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks 
of future development. Our opinion on the combined management report does not cover the content of those 
components of the combined management report specified in the “Other information” section.

Pursuant to Section 322 (3) sentence 1 HGB, we declare that our audit has not led to any reservations relating to 
the legal compliance of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report.

B A S I S  F O R  T H E  O P I N I O N S
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report in ac-
cordance with Section 317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation No. 537/2014 (referred to subsequently as “EU Audit 
Regulation”) and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promul-
gated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under 
those requirements and principles are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the con-
solidated financial statements and of the combined management report” section of our auditor’s report. We are 
independent of the group entities in accordance with the requirements of European law and German commercial 
and professional law, and we have fulfilled our other German professional responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. In addition, in accordance with Article 10 (2) (f) of the EU Audit Regulation, we declare that we have 
not provided non-audit services prohibited under Article 5 (1) of the EU Audit Regulation. We believe that the evi-
dence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions on the consolidated financial 
statements and on the combined management report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO LPKF L ASER & ELECTRONICS  
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT, GARBSEN
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K E Y  A U D I T  M A T T E R S  I N  T H E  A U D I T  O F  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  
F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements for the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Capitalization of development costs
Please refer to section G.2 and H.11 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements for information on cap-
italized development costs.

The r isk  for  the f inancia l  s tatements
Capitalized development costs amounted to EUR 16.5 million as of 31 December 2020, representing 13.6% of total 
assets.

The development costs relate to development projects for equipment and related software. Development costs are 
capitalized if the requirements of IAS 38 are met. Research costs are recognized as expenses.

The examination of the capitalization requirements under IAS 38 for projects under development is complex and 
based on a number of discretionary assumptions. These include, in particular, the forecast cash flows, technical 
feasibility, the discount rates used and the allocation of costs by origin. Against this background, there is a risk for 
the financial statements that an intangible asset has been recognized although the requirements have not been met.

Our audi t  approach
We have gained an understanding of the company’s process of capitalizing development costs through explanations 
provided by accounting staff and an appreciation of the Group’s accounting guidelines. We have examined the 
control implemented in this process with regard to the fulfillment of the capitalization requirements for design, 
application and effectiveness.

As part of our audit, on a spot check basis we evaluated the documentation on which the capitalized development 
costs. For the projects in the sample, we examined the recognition criteria in accordance with IAS 38 and verified 
the valuation on the basis of the attributable costs. To this end, we discussed the expected cash flows with the 
persons responsible for planning.

Our conclus ions
The capitalization of development costs is in accordance with the provisions of IAS 38 and the assumptions and 
parameters used by the company are appropriate.

O T H E R  I N F O R M A T I O N 
Management and/or the Supervisory Board are responsible for the other information. The other information com-
prises the following components of the combined management report, whose content was not audited:

•	� the combined corporate governance declaration, which is included in section 7 of the combined management 
report, and

•	� the combined separate non-financial report expected to be available to us after the date of this audit opinion, 
which is referred to in the combined management report.
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The other information also includes the remaining parts of the annual report expected to be available to us after 
the date of this audit opinion.

The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements, the combined management report 
information audited for content and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined management report do not cover the 
other information, and consequently we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other above-mentioned information and, in so doing, 
to consider whether the other information

•	� is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, with the combined management report 
information audited for content or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

•	 otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S  O F  M A N A G E M E N T  A N D  T H E  S U P E R V I S O R Y  B O A R D  
F O R  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  A N D  T H E  C O M B I N E D 
M A N A G E M E N T  R E P O R T
Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that comply, in all material 
respects, with the IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant 
to Section 315e (1) HGB and for ensuring that the consolidated financial statements, in compliance with these 
requirements, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the 
Group. In addition, management is responsible for such internal controls as they have determined necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern. In addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on the going concern basis of accounting 
unless there is an intention to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

Furthermore, management is responsible for the preparation of the combined management report that, as a whole, 
provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and is, in all material respects, consistent with the consolidated 
financial statements, complies with German legal requirements, and appropriately presents the opportunities and 
risks of future development. In addition, management is responsible for such arrangements and measures (systems) 
as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a combined management report that is in accor-
dance with the applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to provide sufficient appropriate evidence 
for the assertions in the combined management report.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process for the preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report.

LPKF ANNUAL REPORT 2020 SEGMENTSTO OUR SHAREHOLDERS



131

A U D I T O R ’ S  R E S P O N S I B I L I T I E S  F O R  T H E  A U D I T  O F  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D 
F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  A N D  O F  T H E  C O M B I N E D  M A N A G E M E N T  R E P O R T
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the combined management report 
as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and, in all material respects, is consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal re-
quirements, and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as well as to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined manage-
ment report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Section 317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards 
for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW) will always detect a material 
misstatement. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements and this combined management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and of the 
combined management report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal 
controls.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and 
of arrangements and measures (systems) relevant to the audit of the combined management report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of these systems.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by management and the reasonableness of estimates 
made by management and related disclosures.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material un-
certainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the con-
solidated financial statements and in the combined management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our respective opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be able to continue 
as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements present the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial 
position and financial performance of the Group in compliance with the IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the 
additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315e (1) HGB.

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



132

•	� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business ac-
tivities within the Group to express opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined 
management report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our opinions.

•	� Evaluate the consistency of the combined management report with the consolidated financial statements, its 
conformity with law and the view of the Group’s position it provides.

•	� Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by management in the combined manage-
ment report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant 
assumptions used by management as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the proper derivation 
of the prospective information from these assumptions. We do not express a separate opinion on the prospec-
tive information and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future 
events will differ materially from the prospective information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant inde-
pendence requirements, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, the related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter.

OTHER LEGAL AND REGUL ATORY REQUIREMENTS 

R E P O R T  O N  T H E  A S S U R A N C E  I N  A C C O R D A N C E  W I T H  S E C T I O N  3 17  ( 3 B )  H G B 
O N   T H E  E L E C T R O N I C  R E P R O D U C T I O N  O F  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L 
S T A T E M E N T S  A N D  T H E  C O M B I N E D  M A N A G E M E N T  R E P O R T  P R E P A R E D  F O R 
D I S C L O S U R E  P U R P O S E S
We have performed assurance work in accordance with Section 317 (3b) HGB to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the reproductions of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management 
report (hereinafter the “ESEF documents”) contained in the attached file “LPKF_Konzernabschluss_2020.zip” 
(SHA256-Hashwert: 6220d9ee73887ae933aa73d1e480173c7b7bec22c31f16d1b78f03eb73cf2264) and prepared 
for disclosure purposes comply in all material respects with the requirements of Section 328 (1) HGB for the elec-
tronic reporting format (“ESEF format”). In accordance with German legal requirements, this assurance only extends 
to the conversion of the information contained in the consolidated financial statements and the combined man-
agement report into the ESEF format and therefore relates neither to the information contained in these reproduc-
tions nor any other information contained in the above-mentioned file.
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In our opinion, the reproductions of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report 
contained in the above-mentioned attached file and prepared for disclosure purposes comply in all material respects 
with the requirements of Section 328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format. We do not express any opinion 
on the information contained in these reproductions nor on any other information contained in the above-mentioned 
file beyond this reasonable assurance opinion and our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements and the accompanying combined management report for the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 
31 December 2020 contained in the “Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the 
combined management report” above.

We conducted our assurance work on the reproductions of the consolidated financial statements and the combined 
management report contained in the above-mentioned attached file in accordance with Section 317 (3b) HGB and 
the Exposure Draft of the IDW Assurance Standard: Assurance in accordance with Section 317 (3b) HGB on the 
Electronic Reproduction of Financial Statements and Management Reports Prepared for Disclosure Purposes (ED 
IDW AsS 410). Accordingly, our responsibilities are further described below. Our audit firm has applied the IDW 
Standard on Quality Management 1: Requirements for Quality Management in Audit Firms (IDW QS 1).

The company’s management is responsible for the preparation of the ESEF documents including the electronic 
reproductions of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report in accordance with 
Section 328 (1) sentence 4 item 1 HGB and for the tagging of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with Section 328 (1) sentence 4 item 2 HGB.

In addition, the company’s management is responsible for the internal controls they consider necessary to enable 
the preparation of ESEF documents that are free from material intentional or unintentional non-compliance with 
the requirements of Section 328 (1) HGB for the electronic reporting format.

The company’s management is also responsible for the submission of the ESEF documents together with the auditor’s 
report and the attached audited consolidated financial statements and audited combined management report as 
well as other documents to be published to the operator of the German Federal Gazette [Bundesanzeiger].

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of the ESEF documents as part of the financial 
reporting process.
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Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ESEF documents are free from material inten-
tional or unintentional non-compliance with the requirements of Section 328 (1) HGB. We exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the assurance work. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material intentional or unintentional non-compliance with the requirements 
of Section 328 (1) HGB, design and perform assurance procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
assurance evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our assurance opinion.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the assurance of the ESEF documents in order to 
design assurance procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an assurance opinion on the effectiveness of these controls.

•	� Evaluate the technical validity of the ESEF documents, i.e. whether the file containing the ESEF documents 
meets the requirements of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815, as amended as of the reporting 
date, on the technical specification for this file.

•	� Evaluate whether the ESEF documents enable an XHTML reproduction with content equivalent to the audited 
consolidated financial statements and the audited combined management report.

•	� Evaluate whether the tagging of the ESEF documents with Inline XBRL technology (iXBRL) enables an appro-
priate and complete machine-readable XBRL copy of the XHTML reproduction.

F U R T H E R  I N F O R M A T I O N  P U R S U A N T  T O  A R T I C L E  1 0  O F  T H E  E U 
A U D I T   R E G U L A T I O N
We were elected as group auditor at the Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2020. We were engaged by the Super-
visory Board on 21 December 2020. We have been the auditor of LPKF Laser & Electronics Aktiengesellschaft 
without interruption since the 2019 financial year.

We declare that the opinions expressed in this auditor’s report are consistent with the additional report to the audit 
committee pursuant to Article 11 of the EU Audit Regulation (long-form audit report).

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, we have provided to the Group entities the following services 
that were not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements or in the combined management report:

In addition to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the annual financial statements, we have 
conducted various audits of the annual financial statements of subsidiaries. We have reviewed the combined sep-
arate non-financial report for the previous year and provided other certification services.

GERMAN PUBLIC AUDITOR RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ENGAGEMENT

The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement is Björn Kniese. 

Hanover, 19 March 2021

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

gez. Kniese			   gez. Geisler 
Wirtschaftsprüfer			   Wirtschaftsprüfer 
(German Public Auditor)		  (German Public Auditor)
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INCOME STATEMENT
FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2020

in EUR thousand 2020 2019

Revenue 46,185 60,032

Change in inventories of finished and unfinished products −905 −197

Other own work capitalized 67 141

Other operating income 2,267 4,343

47,614 64,319

Cost of materials

Costs for raw, auxiliary and operating materials and for purchased goods −17,796 −25,359

Staff costs

Wages and salaries −14,753 −15,989

Social security costs and pension costs
(of which pension costs:  
EUR 103 thousand; previous year: EUR 107 thousand) −2,878 −2,626

Depreciation and amortization of non-current assets and property, 
plant and equipment −2,268 −2,810

Other operating expenses −12,447 −16,337

−50,142 −63,121

Income from investments
(of which from affiliated companies: EUR 4,888 thousand;  
previous year: EUR 4,670 thousand) 4,888 4,670

Other interest and similar income
(of which from affiliated companies: EUR 155 thousand;  
previous year: EUR 91 thousand) 158 101

Income from profit transfers 4,486 10,533

Costs of loss absorption −2,629 0

Depreciation of financial assets −446 −50

Interest and similar expenses −168 −351

Taxes on income and earnings 97 −3,366

Earnings after tax 3,858 12,735

Other taxes −56 −42

Net profit 3,802 12,693

Accumulated profits / losses brought forward from the previous year 16,403 6,159

Retained profit 20,205 18,852
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BALANCE SHEET
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020

in EUR thousand 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets that have been acquired, concessions  
and similar rights 259 486

Property, plant and equipment

Land, similar rights and buildings 17,323 16,189

Technical equipment 1,197 1,597

Other equipment, operating and office equipment 3,217 1,952

Advance payments made on assets under construction 481 539

22,218 20,277

Financial assets

Shares in affiliated companies 15,136 15,582

37,613 36,345

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Raw, auxiliary and operating materials 5,159 4,355

Unfinished products 1,257 1,067

Finished products and goods 2,874 2,383

Advance payments 13 18

9,303 7,823

Receivables and other assets

Trade receivables  
(of which with remaining maturities of more than one year:  
EUR 262 thousand; previous year: EUR 290 thousand) 3,630 3,326

Receivables from affiliated companies 22,515 15,721

Other assets 1,253 447

27,398 19,494

Cash on hand, bank balances and checks 13,354 27,179

55,917 54,496

Deferred income 247 235

Deferred taxes 5,901 5,632

Capitalized differences from asset offsetting 214 229

94,031 96,937

ASSETS
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in EUR thousand 12/31/2020 12/31/2019

EQUITY

Subscribed capital 24,497 24,497

Capital reserves 16,160 16,160

Retained earnings

Statutory reserve 41 41

Other retained earnings 11,200 11,200

Retained profit 20,205 18,852

72,102 70,750

PROVISIONS

Tax provisions 0 399

Other provisions 2,246 3,136

2,246 3,535

LIABILITIES

Liabilities to banks 1,495 3,173

Advances received 1,299 626

Trade payables 4,624 3,170

Liabilities to affiliated companies 9,788 12,977

Other liabilities 1,208 626

(of which taxes: EUR 195 thousand; previous year: EUR 210 thousand)

(of which in conjunction with social security: EUR 21 thousand;  
previous year: EUR 14 thousand)

18,414 20,572

Accruals and deferred income 825 1,678

Deferred taxes 443 402

94,031 96,937

EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES

CONSOLIDATED AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOMPANY COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
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C A P I T A L  E M P L O Y E D
Capital employed calculated as fixed assets and working 
capital.

C D T E  ( C A D M I U M T E L L U R I D )
A highly efficient semiconductor, used in the manufac-
ture of thin glass solar modules, an alternative to CIGS 
solar cells.

C I G S 
( A L S O  K N O W N  A S  C I G S S E  O R  C I S )
CIGS is a thin-film technology for solar modules and is 
an abbreviation for the following elements used: copper, 
indium, gallium, sulfur and selenium.

E B I T
Earnings before interest and taxes.

E B I T D A
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and 
amortization.

E B I T  M A R G I N
Ratio of earnings before interest and taxes to revenue.

F T E  ( F U L L - T I M E - E Q U I V A L E N T )
FTE represents the value that a full-time employee pro-
duces in an equivalent period of time.

L D S  P R O C E S S 
( L A S E R  D I R E C T  S T R U C T U R I N G )
A laser-based manufacturing process for three-dimen-
sional plastic circuit carriers (MIDs) that can also per-
form mechanical functions. 

L E V E R A G E  R A T I O
Debt ratio (net debt/EBITDA)

L I D E  ( L A S E R  I N D U C E D  D E E P  E T C H I N G )
Process for precision machining on glass. LIDE enables 
the production of extremely precise holes and structures 
at high speed in glass and includes the TGV process.

L T P  P R O C E S S  
( L A S E R  T R A N S F E R  P R I N T I N G )
A process for digital printing of functional pastes as an 
alternative to screen printing.

M E M S 
( M I C R O - E L E C T R O M E C H A N I C A L 
S Y S T E M S )
MEMS are tiny components that combine logic elements 
and micromechanical structures in a single chip. They 
can process mechanical and electrical information. They 
can be sensors, for example.

N E T  I N D E B T E D N E S S
Long-term and current liabilities to banks, less cash and 
cash equivalents.

P C B
Printed circuit board

R A P I D  P R O T O T Y P I N G
A process for the chemical manufacture of near-produc-
tion-quality printed circuit board prototypes in 
laboratories.

R O C E 
( R E T U R N  O N  C A P I T A L  E M P L O Y E D )
The return on capital employed is calculated as EBIT 
divided by capital employed.

S T E N C I L  L A S E R
A laser system used for cutting fine, high-precision open-
ings in stainless steel stencils. Stencils are used to print 
solder paste precisely onto printed circuit boards.

T G V  P R O C E S S  ( T H R O U G H  G L A S S  V I A )
A laser process for putting ultra-fine holes into glass 
(see LIDE).

T H I N - F I L M  S O L A R  M O D U L E S
Thin-film solar modules are created by coating glass 
panels or films with extremely thin layers. Each layer is 
divided into strips by the laser, so that a series connec-
tion of cells is realized in the finished module.

W A C C 
In the semiconductor industry, photovoltaics industry 
and the world of micromechanics, a wafer is a circular 
or square disc, about 1 mm thick, which is the substrate 
on which electronic or micromechanical components or 
photoelectric layers are manufactured using different 
technical processes.

V A L U E  A D D E D
Value added is calculated as follows: (ROCE-WACC) 
*capital employed

�GLOSSARY
OF SPECIALIST TERMS



FINANCIAL CALENDAR

CONTACT & PUBLISHING INFORMATION

03 / 24 / 2021
Annual Financial Report 2020
Press conference on financial statements

04 / 29 / 2021
3-Month Financial Report 2021

05 / 20 / 2021
Annual General Meeting (virtual event)

07 / 29 / 2021
Half-year Financial Report 2021

10 / 28 / 2021
9-Month Financial Report 2021

Disclaimer

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that are based on the Management Board’s current estimates and forecasts and on information 

currently available. These forward-looking statements are not be understood as guarantees of forecast future performance and results. Instead. future 

performance and results depend on a large number of risks and uncertainties and are based on assumptions that might not prove accurate. We disclaim 

any obligation to update these forward-looking statements. For mathematical reasons. rounding differences may occur in percentage figures and numbers 

in the tables. illustrations and texts of this report.

This annual report is published in German and English. In case of any discrepancies. the German version shall prevail.
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